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No broker, dealer, sales representative or other person has been authorized by the City or the Underwriter 
to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained in this Official 
Statement, and if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as 
having been authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to 
sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any person in any 
jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. The 
information set forth herein has been obtained from the City and other sources that are believed to be 
reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by, and is not to be construed as a 
representation by, the Underwriter. The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in 
this Official Statement: "The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in 
accordance with, and as part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied 
to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or 
completeness of such information." The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to 
change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder 
shall, under any circumstance, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the 
City since the date hereof 
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THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IS NOT, AND MAY NOT BE CONSTRUED AS, A CONTRACT 
WITH THE PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS. STATEMENTS CONTAINED IN THE 
OFFICIAL STATEMENT WHICH INVOLVE ESTIMATES, FORECASTS, OR MATTERS OF 
OPINION, WHETHER OR NOT EXPRESSLY SO DESCRIBED HEREIN, ARE INTENDED 
SOLELY AS SUCH AND ARE NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A REPRESENTATION OF 
FACTS. 

THE UNDERWRITER INTENDS TO OFFER THE BONDS INITIALLY AT THE OFFERING 
PRICES SET FORTH ON THE COVER PAGE OF TillS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, WHICH 
MAY SUBSEQUENTLY CHANGE WITHOUT ANY REQUIREMENT OF PRIOR NOTICE. IN 
CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR 
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF 
THE BONDS OFFERED HEREBY AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT 
OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET, AND SUCH STABILIZING, IF 
COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
COMMISSION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE 
UPON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

$8,090,000 

THE CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

SERIES 2012 

INTRODUCTION 

This introduction is only a brief description and summary of certain information contained in this Official 
Statement and is qualified in its entirety by reference to more complete and detailed information 
contained in the entire Official Statement, including the cover page and appendices hereto, and the 
documents summarized or described herein. A full review should be made of the entire Official 
Statement. 

Purpose of the Official Statement 

The purpose of this Official Statement is to furnish information relating to (a) The City of Lincoln, 
Nebraska (the "City"), a home rule city of the primary class and political subdivision of the State of 
Nebraska (the "State"), and (b) the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 (the "Bonds"), of 
the City, dated the date of delivery thereof, issued in the principal amount of $8,090,000. 

The City 

The City is a city of the primary class and political subdivision organized and existing under the laws of 
the State of Nebraska. See "THE CITY." 

The Bonds 

The Bonds have been authorized by Ordinance No. 19722 (the "Ordinance"), passed by the Council on 
June 11, 2012 and approved by the Mayor on June 18,2012 pursuant to authority granted to the City by 
Sections 10-142 and 15-244, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, as amended, and Article IX, Sections 
39 to 43, inclusive, of the Home Rule Charter of the City. The net proceeds of the Bonds, together with 
certain legally available funds of the City, will be used to (a) provide for the payment and redemption on 
June 15,2013 (the "Redemption Date") of $7,960,000 principal amount of the City's General Obligation 
Various Purpose Bonds, Series 2003, dated July 8, 2003 (the "Refunded Bonds"), and (b) pay certain 
costs of issuing the Bonds. See "PLAN OF FINANCING - The Refunding" and "THE BONDS." 
The net proceeds of 2003 Bonds were used to (1) pay the costs of certain improvements to the City's 
storm water sewer and drainage system, (2) provide for the payment and redemption of (a) $975,000 
aggregate principal amount of the City's General Obligation Various Purpose Refunding Bonds, Series 
1993, dated June 1, 1993, (b) $2,400,000 aggregate principal amount of the City's General Obligation 
Storm Sewer and Drainage System Bonds, Series 1995, dated April 15, 1995, (c) $4,225,000 aggregate 
principal amount of the City's General Obligation Various Purpose Bonds, Series 1995, dated August 1, 
1995, and (d) $1,957,779 aggregate principal amount of Sanitary Improvement District No.7 of Lancaster 
County, Nebraska General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1989, dated July 15, 1989, and (3) pay the 
costs of issuing the 2003 Bonds. 



Security and Source of Payment 

The Bonds are general obligations of the City and will be payable from ad valorem taxes which may be 
levied without limitation as to rate or amount upon all taxable property within the City. See 
"SECURITY. " 

Financial Statements 

The audited financial statements of the City for Fiscal Year ended August 31, 2011, are included in 
APPENDIX B - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS hereto. The financial statements in APPENDIX B­
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS have been audited by BKD, LLP, Lincoln, Nebraska, independent 
auditors, whose report thereon is also included in APPENDIX B - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
hereto. The City has not requested that BKD, LLP perform any updating procedures subsequent to the 
date of its audit report on the August 31, 2011 financial statements. 

Bond Ratings 

The Bonds have been rated "Aaa" by Moody's Investors Service ("Moody's") and "AAA" by Standard 
& Poor's ("S&P"). 

THE CITY 

The City is a city of the primary class and political subdivision created and existing under the laws of the 
State, including, without limitation, Chapter 15, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, as amended. The 
City encompasses approximately 90 square miles and includes most of the urban area of Lancaster 
County. Located in southeastern Nebraska approximately midway between Chicago and Denver, the City 
has a popUlation of 254,001. See "APPENDIX A - THE CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA" and 
"APPENDIX B - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS." 

PLAN OF FINANCING 

Authorization and Purpose of Bonds 

The Bonds are authorized pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution and statutes of the 
State of Nebraska, including particularly Sections 10-142 and 15-244, Reissue Revised Statutes of 
Nebraska, as amended, and Article IX, Sections 39 to 43, inclusive, of the City's Home Rule Charter. 
The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Ordinance to provide funds which, together with certain other 
available funds and investment earnings thereon, will be used to pay and redeem in full all of the 
Refunded Bonds on the Redemption Date. Such payment and redemption will reduce the City's debt 
service on its outstanding general obligation indebtedness. 

The Refunding 

On the date of issuance of the Bonds, a portion of the net proceeds thereof, together with certain other 
funds held by City with respect to the Refunded Bonds, will be deposited into an escrow account (the 
"Escrow Account") to be held under an Escrow Agreement, dated July 12, 2012 (the "Escrow 
Agreement"), between the City and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, Minneapolis, Minnesota, 
(the "Escrow Agent"). Such deposit will be used to purchase on such date of issuance direct obligations 
of the United State of America ("Government Securities") which will be held in the Escrow Account. 
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The Government Securities will mature on such dates and in such amounts as shall provide funds which, 
together with other funds in the Escrow Account, will be sufficient to pay when due the principal amount 
or redemption price of and all interest due on the Refunded Bonds through and including the Redemption 
Date and to redeem on the Redemption Date all of the then outstanding Refunded Bonds. 

After the issuance of the Bonds and the deposit of the proceeds thereof and other moneys with the Escrow 
Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, the Refunded Bonds will be payable from the maturing 
principal of the Escrowed Securities, together with the earnings thereon and other money held for such 
purpose by the Escrow Agent. Under the Escrow Agreement the Escrowed Securities and the moneys 
held by the Escrow Agent are irrevocably pledged to the payment of the Refunded Bonds and the interest 
thereon and may be applied only to such payment, and the Refunded Bonds will no longer be deemed 
outstanding for purposes of the Ordinance. 

Verification of Mathematical Computations 

Upon delivery of the Bonds, Chris D. Berens, CPA, P.C., a firm of independent certified public 
accountants, will deliver to the Underwriter a report verifying the mathematical accuracy of certain 
computations relating to (a) the adequacy of the maturing principal amount of the securities held in the 
Escrow Fund, interest earned thereon and certain uninvested cash to pay the principal and redemption 
price of, and interest on, the Refunded Bonds as such principal and redemption price and interest become 
due and payable, and (b) the mathematical computations supporting the conclusion that the Bonds are not 
"arbitrage bonds" under Section 148 of the Code. Such verification of the accuracy of the computations 
will be based upon information supplied by the Underwriter and on interpretations of the Code provided 
by Bond Counsel. 

Sources and Uses of Funds 

The following table summarizes the estimated sources of funds, including the proceeds from the sale of 
the Bonds, and the expected uses of such funds, in connection with the plan of financing: 

Sources of Funds: 

Principal Amount of Bonds 
Plus: Net Original Issue Premium 

Total 

Uses of Funds: 

Deposit to Escrow Account 
Costs of Issuance 

Total 

$8,090,000.00 
279,496.70 

$8,369,496.70 

$8,242,367.27 
127,129.43 

$8,369,496.70 

{The remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 

-3-



THE BONDS 

General 

The Bonds will be issued in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, be dated the 
date of delivery thereof (the "Dated Date"), bear interest from the Dated Date payable on June 15 and 
December 15 of each year, beginning December 15, 2012, mature on June 15 in the years and the 
principal amounts, and bear interest at the rates (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 
twelve, 30-day months) as set forth on the cover. Each installment of interest is payable by check or draft 
mailed by BOKF, National Association (the "Registrar") on the due date (or on the next business day if 
such due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday or bank holiday applicable to the Registrar) to the registered 
owner of any Bond as shown on the bond registration records of the City maintained by the Registrar as 
of the Record Date (hereinafter defined). The principal of each Bond is payable only upon the surrender 
of such Bond to the Registrar. The "Record Date" for each installment of interest shall be the fifteenth 
day (whether or not a business day) next preceding such interest payment date. 

Book-Entry System 

General. The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The 
ownership of one fully registered Bond for each maturity, as set forth on the cover hereof, each in the 
aggregate principal amount of such maturity, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as DTC's 
nominee. Ownership interests in the Bonds will be available to purchasers through a book-entry system 
maintained by DTC (the "Book-Entry System"). A description of DTC, the Book-Entry System and 
definitions of initially capitalized terms used under this caption are found in "APPENDIX C - BOOK­
ENTRY SYSTEM." 

Risk Factors. Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may experience some delay in their receipt of 
distributions of the principal or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds because such distributions 
will be forwarded by the Registrar to DTC, credited by DTC to its Direct Participants, and then credited 
to the accounts of the Beneficial Owners either directly or indirectly through Indirect Participants. 

Because transactions in the Bonds can only be effected through DTC, DTC Participants and certain 
banks, the ability of a Beneficial Owner to pledge Bonds to persons or entities that do not participate in 
the Book-Entry System, or otherwise to take actions in respect of such Bonds, may be limited due to the 
lack of physical certificates. The Registrar will not recognize Beneficial Owners as registered owners for 
purposes of the Bond Resolution, and Beneficial Owners will be permitted to exercise the rights of 
registered owners only indirectly through DTC and DTC Participants. 

Optional Redemption 

The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities. 

Interchangeability and Transfer 

Each Bond when issued shall be registered by the Registrar in the name of the owner thereof on the Bond 
Register. Bonds are transferable only upon the Bond Register upon presentation and surrender of the 
Bonds, together with instructions for transfer. Bonds may be exchanged for Bonds in the same aggregate 
principal amount and maturity upon presentation to the Registrar, subject to the terms, conditions and 
limitations set forth in the Bond Resolution and upon payment of any tax, fee or other governmental 
charge required to be paid with respect to any such registration, transfer or exchange. 
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In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or transferring the Bonds is exercised, the City shall 
execute and the Registrar shall deliver the Bonds in accordance with the Ordinance. For every such 
transfer or exchange of Bonds, the Registrar shall require the payment by the registered owner requesting 
such transfer or exchange of any tax or other governmental charges payable with respect thereto, and may 
charge a sum not exceeding the actual cost for each new Bond. 

The foregoing procedures will not apply to the Bonds so long as they held are in book-entry form. The 
transfer and exchange of Bonds held in book-entry form will be governed by the procedures described in 
"APPENDIX C - BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM." 

SECURITY 

The full faith and credit of the City has been pledged to the payment of the principal or redemption price 
of and interest on the Bonds. The City has the power and is obligated to levy ad valorem taxes without 
limitation as to rate or amount upon all property subject to taxation by the City sufficient to pay the 
principal or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds, which taxes shall be in excess of and in 
addition to all other taxes now or hereafter authorized to be levied by the City. See "NEBRASKA 
LAWS RELATED TO BUDGETS AND TAXATION." 

Among other factors affecting an investment in the Bonds, potential investors should be aware that the 
United States Bankruptcy Code enables debtors (including municipalities such as the City) that are 
insolvent to obtain relief through a petition and plan that may result in the modification or delay of 
payments to creditors, including registered owners of the Bonds. In the event the City becomes insolvent, 
the registered owners of the Bonds would be treated as general creditors of the City along with all other 
unsecured claimants. The extent to which the exception from limitations upon overall tax rates provided 
for in existing legislation might entitle registered owners of the Bonds to be treated as a separate class or 
otherwise given priority over other unsecured claimants is a matter that would be subject to future 
determinations of state and federal courts interpreting and applying both state law and the provisions of 
the United States Bankruptcy Code. Procedures under the United States Bankruptcy Code or other 
insolvency laws could result in delays in payment and modifications of payment rights. The State of 
Nebraska has authorized its political subdivisions to seek relief under the United States Bankruptcy Code. 

NEBRASKA LAWS RELATED TO BUDGETS AND TAXATION 

The Nebraska Legislature (the "Legislature") has enacted legislation intended to reduce the level of 
expenditures and property taxes by political subdivisions in the State. Sections 13-518 to 13-522, 
inclusive, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, as amended, and related sections (collectively, the 
"Budget Limitations"), limit the increase of certain restricted funds that may be budgeted by 
governmental units such as the City. Such restricted funds include property taxes, sales taxes and other 
funding sources comprising approximately 75% of funding sources used to fund the City's tax supported 
budget, but exclude restricted funds pledged to retire bonded indebtedness. The Budget Limitations 
currently provide for a base limitation of 2.5% upon increases plus the percentage increase in the property 
tax provided by new construction, improvements to existing property, annexations and new personal 
property added to the property tax base. The base limitation is subject to review by the Legislature from 
year to year and may be exceeded by an additional 1% upon an affirmative vote of at least 75% of the 
governing body. The Budget Limitations are enforced through the office of the Auditor of Public 
Accounts of the State and State aid may be withheld from governmental units that fail to comply. The 
Budget Limitations do not apply to the revenues of proprietary funds except to the extent such revenues 
are used for general fund purposes. 
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For the 2011-2012 fiscal year, the City was permitted to increase its appropriation of restricted funds 
under the Budget Limitations by 2.50%. Unused restricted fund authority from prior years can be carried 
over into future fiscal years to use in addition to the annual increases allowed. As of August 31,2011, the 
City had accumulated $18,279,327 of unused restricted funds authority which would be available for 
future fiscal years. 

The Legislature has also enacted Section 77-3442, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, as amended, 
and related sections (collectively, the "Levy Limitations"), to provide overall limitations on the property 
tax levies of political subdivisions, including the City. The Levy Limitations expressly exclude any 
property taxes levied for bonded indebtedness. The maximum levy for the City is presently set at 45¢ per 
$100 of taxable valuation with an additional 5¢ per $100 of taxable valuation available to provide for the 
City's share of revenue required under any agreement executed by the City with another governmental 
unit pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act or the Joint Public Agency Act. The City's current levy 
(excluding its bond levy) is 27.87¢ per $100 of taxable valuation on all the taxable property within the 
City. 

Ad valorem taxes levied to pay debt service on the Bonds are not subject to either the Budget 
Limitations or the Levy Limitations. The City is authorized to levy ad valorem taxes without 
limitation as to rate or amount upon all of the taxable property in the City sufficient to pay the 
principal or redemption price of and interest on the Bonds, which taxes may be in excess of and in 
addition to all other taxes now or hereafter authorized to be levied by the City. The authority of 
the City to levy such taxes with respect to the Bonds is not subject to any charter, statutory or 
constitutional limitations. 

Future legislation, decisions of the Nebraska Supreme Court, or initiative petitions proposed and passed 
by qualified voters in the State may alter the Budget Limitations and the Levy Limitations, or may 
otherwise modifY the sources of and limitations on the revenues used by governmental units in the State 
to finance their activities. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Legal Proceedings 

As of the date hereof, there is no controversy, suit or other proceeding of any kind pending or threatened 
in or by which any question is raised or may be raised, questioning, disputing or affecting in any way the 
legal organization of the City or its boundaries, or the right or title of any of its officers to his or her 
respective office, or the legality of any official act in connection with the authorization, issuance and sale 
of the Bonds, or the constitutionality or validity of the Bonds or any of the proceedings had in relation to 
the authorization, issuance or sale thereof, or the levy and collection of a tax to pay the principal and 
interest thereof, or which might affect the City's ability to meet its obligations to pay the Bonds. 

Approval of Legality 

All legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds are subject to the approval of 
Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Lincoln, Nebraska, Bond Counsel. Bond Counsel has participated in the 
preparation of this Official Statement, but the factual and financial information appearing herein has been 
supplied or reviewed by certain officials of the City. 

-6-



TAX MATTERS 

The following is a summary of the material federal and State of Nebraska income tax consequences of 
holding and disposing of the Bonds. This summary is based upon laws, regulations, rulings and judicial 
decisions now in effect, all of which are subject to change (possibly on a retroactive basis). This 
summary does not discuss all aspects of federal income taxation that may be relevant to investors in light 
of their personal investment circumstances or describe the tax consequences to certain types of owners 
subject to special treatment under the federal income tax laws (for example, dealers in securities or other 
persons who do not hold the Bonds as a capital asset, tax-exempt organizations, individual retirement 
accounts and other tax deferred accounts, and foreign taxpayers), and, except for the income tax laws of 
the State of Nebraska, does not discuss the consequences to an owner under any state, local or foreign tax 
laws. The summary does not deal with the tax treatment of persons who purchase the Bonds in the 
secondary market. Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding federal, 
state, local and other tax considerations of holding and disposing of the Bonds. 

Opinion of Bond Counsel 

In the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P .C., Bond Counsel, under the law existing as of the issue date of the 
Bonds: 

Federal and Nebraska Tax Exemption. The interest on the Bonds (including any original issue discount 
properly allocable to an owner thereof) is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
and is exempt from income taxation by the State of Nebraska. 

Alternative Minimum Tax. Interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of 
computing the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, but is taken into 
account in determining adjusted current earnings for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum 
tax imposed on certain corporations. 

Bank Qualification. The Bonds have not been designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for 
purposes of Section 265(b) of the Code. 

Bond counsel's opinions are provided as of the date of the original issue of the Bonds, subject to the 
condition that the City comply with all requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the 
issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or continue to be, excludable from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes. The City has covenanted to comply with all such requirements. Failure 
to comply with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of interest on the Bonds in gross 
income for federal and Nebraska income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. 
Bond Counsel is expressing no opinion regarding other federal, state or local tax consequences arising 
with respect to the Bonds but has reviewed the discussion under the heading "TAX MATTERS." 

Other Tax Consequences 

Original Issue Premium. If a Bond is issued at a price that exceeds the stated redemption price at 
maturity of the Bond, the excess of the purchase price over the stated redemption price at maturity 
constitutes "premium" on that Bond. Under Section 171 of the Code, the purchaser of that Bond must 
amortize the premium over the term of the Bond using constant yield principles, based on the purchaser'S 
yield to maturity. As premium is amortized, the owner's basis in the Bond and the amount of tax-exempt 
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interest received will be reduced by the amount of amortizable premium properly allocable to the owner. 
This will result in an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax 
purposes on sale or disposition of the Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the owner's basis is 
reduced, no federal income tax deduction is allowed. Prospective investors should consult their own tax 
advisors concerning the calculation and accrual of bond premium. 

Sale, Exchange or Retirement of Bonds. Upon the sale, exchange or retirement (including redemption) 
of a Bond, an owner of the Bond generally will recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the 
difference between the amount of cash and the fair market value of any property received on the sale, 
exchange or retirement of the Bond (other than in respect of accrued and unpaid interest) and such 
owner's adjusted tax basis in the Bond. To the extent a Bond is held as a capital asset, such gain or loss 
will be capital gain or loss and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Bond has been held for more 
than 12 months at the time of sale, exchange or retirement. 

Reporting Requirements. In general, information reporting requirements will apply to certain payments 
of principal, interest and premium paid on the Bonds, and to the proceeds paid on the sale of the Bonds, 
other than certain exempt recipients (such as corporations and foreign entities). A backup withholding 
tax will apply to such payments if the owner fails to provide a taxpayer identification number or 
certification of foreign or other exempt status or fails to report in full dividend and interest income. The 
amount of any backup withholding from a payment to an owner will be allowed as a credit against the 
owner's federal income tax liability. 

Collateral Federal Income Tax Consequences. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware 
that ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to certain taxpayers, 
including, without limitation, financial institutions, property and casualty insurance companies, individual 
recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, certain S corporations with "excess net 
passive income," foreign corporations subject to the branch profits tax, life insurance companies, and 
taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or carry or have 
paid or incurred certain expenses allocable to the Bonds. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding 
these tax consequences. Purchasers of Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to the applicability of 
these tax consequences and other federal income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and 
disposition of the Bonds, including the possible application of state, local, foreign and other tax laws. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Ratings 

Moody's has assigned the Bonds the rating of "Aaa" and S&P has assigned the Bonds the rating of 
"AAA." Such ratings reflect only the views of such organizations, and an explanation of the significance 
of such ratings may be obtained from Moody's Investors Service, 7 World Trade Center, 350 Greenwich 
Street, 23 rd Floor, New York, New York 10007, telephone (212) 553-0300, and Standard & Poor's 
Ratings Services, 55 Water Street, New York, New York, 10041, telephone (212) 438-2124. 

Generally, rating agencies base their ratings on such information and materials and investigations, studies 
and assumptions furnished to and obtained and made by the rating agencies. The debt ratings are not a 
recommendation to purchase, sell or hold a security, inasmuch as they do not comment as to market price 
or suitability for a particular investor. There is no assurance that the above ratings will remain for any 
given period of time or that they may not be lowered, suspended or withdrawn entirely by either or both 
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rating services if they deem circumstances are appropriate. Any downward change in, suspension or 
withdrawal of either or both ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. 

Underwriting 

The Underwriter has agreed, subject to certain customary closing conditions, to purchase the Bonds at a 
purchase price of $8,301,136.20 (par amount of the Bonds, plus net original issue premium of 
$279,496.70 and less an underwriting discount of $68,360.50), and to make a public offering of the Bonds 
at not in excess of the public offering prices or less than the yields set forth on the cover page hereof. The 
Underwriter will be obligated to purchase all of the Bonds if any Bonds are purchased. The Bonds may 
be offered and sold to certain dealers at prices lower than such public offering prices, and the Underwriter 
may change such public offering prices from time to time. 

The Underwriter has read and participated in the preparation of certain portions of this Official Statement 
and has supervised the compilation and editing thereof. The Underwriter has not, however, independently 
verified the factual and financial information contained in this Official Statement and, accordingly, 
express no view as to the sufficiency or accuracy thereof. 

Continuing Disclosure 

The City is executing the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking for the benefit of the owners and Beneficial 
Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with Rule 15c2-12 of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Rule"). The City is the only "obligated persons" within the 
meaning of the Rule with responsibility for continuing disclosure. The City is current in its continuing 
disclosure reporting and is in compliance with all prior undertakings. 

Annual Reports. Pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the City shall, not later than May 1 
of each year, commencing May 1, 2013, provide to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
("MSRB") the following financial information and operating data (the "Annual Report"): 

(a) The audited financial statements of the City for the prior fiscal year, prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. If audited financial statements are not 
available by the time the Annual Report is required to be filed, the Annual Report shall contain 
unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the financial statements contained in the final 
Official Statement relating to the Bonds, and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the 
same manner as the Annual Report promptly after they become available. 

(b) Updates as of the end of the fiscal year of the financial information and operating 
data relating to the City contained in APPENDIX A of this Official Statement in substantially the 
same format contained in this Official Statement. 

Material Event Notices. Pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, not later than 10 business 
days after the occurrence of any of the following events, each the City shall also give, or cause a 
dissemination agent to give, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the 
Bonds ("Material Events"): 

(1) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
(2) non-payment related defaults, if material; 
(3) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 
(4) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 
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(5) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
(6) adverse tax opinions; the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final 

determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other 
material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other 
material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds; 

(7) modifications to rights of bondowners, if material; 
(8) bond calls, if material, and tender offers; 
(9) defeasances; 
(10) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material; 
(11) rating changes; 
(12) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City; 
(13) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or the sale 

of all or substantially all of the assets of the City, other than in the ordinary course of 
business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to 
its terms, if material; and 

(14) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of the trustee, if 
material. 

If the City has not submitted the Annual Report to the MSRB by the date specified above, the City shall 
send a notice to the MSRB of the failure of the City to file the Annual Report on a timely basis, which 
notice shall be given by the City in accordance with the above procedures. 

The City may, from time to time, appoint or engage a dissemination agent to assist it in carrying out its 
obligations under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, and may discharge any such dissemination 
agent, with or without appointing a successor dissemination agent. The dissemination agent shall not be 
responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report prepared by the City pursuant to the 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the City and any 
dissemination agent may amend the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (and such dissemination agent 
shall agree to any amendment so requested by the City) and any provision of the Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking may be waived, provided Bond Counselor other counsel experienced in federal securities 
law matters provides the City and any dissemination agent with its opinion that the undertaking of the 
City, as so amended or after giving effect to such waiver, is in compliance with the Rule and all current 
amendments thereto and interpretations thereof that are applicable to the Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking. 

In the event of a failure of the City or any dissemination agent to comply with any provision of the 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, any owner or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions 
as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, 
to cause the City or any dissemination agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under the 
Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. A default under the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall not be 
deemed an event of default under the Bond Resolution, and the sole remedy under the Continuing 
Disclosure Undertaking in the event of any failure of the City or any dissemination agent to comply with 
the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall be an action to compel performance. 
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Electronic Municipal Market Access System (EMMA). All Annual Reports and notices of Material 
Events required to be filed by the City or the dissemination agent pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking must be submitted to the MSRB through the MSRB's Electronic Municipal Market Access 
system ("EMMA"). EMMA is an internet-based, online portal for free investor access to municipal bond 
information, including offering documents, material event notices, real-time municipal securities trade 
prices and MSRB education resources, available at www.emma.msrb.org. Nothing contained on EMMA 
relating to the City or the Bonds is incorporated by reference in this Official Statement. 

Independent Auditors 

The audited financial statements of the City for Fiscal Year ended August 31, 2011, are included in 
APPENDIX B - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS hereto. The financial statements in APPENDIX B­
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS have been audited by BKD, LLP, Lincoln, Nebraska, independent 
auditors, whose report thereon is also included in APPENDIX B - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
hereto. The City has not requested that BKD, LLP perform any updating procedures subsequent to the 
date of its audit report on the August 31, 2011 financial statements. 

Certification and Other Matters Regarding Official Statement 

Information set forth in this Official Statement has been furnished or reviewed by certain officials of the 
City, certified public accountants, and other sources, as referred to herein, which are believed to be 
reliable. Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, estimates or 
projections, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and 
no representation is made that any of the estimates or projections will be realized. 

The form of this Official Statement, and its distribution and use by the Underwriter(s), has been approved 
by the City. Neither the City nor any of its officers, directors or employees, in either their official or 
personal capacities, has made any warranties, representations or guarantees regarding the financial 
condition of the City or the City's ability to make payments required of it; and further, neither the City 
nor its officers, directors or employees assumes any duties, responsibilities or obligations in relation to the 
issuance of the Bonds other than those either expressly or by fair implication imposed on the City by the 
Bond Resolution. 

This Official Statement is issued by the City. 

THE CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 

By: /s/ Steve Hubka 
Steve Hubka, Interim Finance Director 
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THE CITY OF LINCOLN 

General 

Lincoln, the capital of Nebraska, is located in southeastern Nebraska near the center of population of the state. The City was 
originally incorporated in 1869. It is approximately midway between Chicago and Denver. It has an area of 90.85 square miles, 
and in its growth and development has annexed five other municipalities so that the City includes most of the urban area of 
Lancaster County. It enjoys a unique position in Nebraska as the center of the state governmental and educational activities. 

Population 

The 1980 population of the City was 171,932; the 1990 population was 191,972; the 2000 population was 225,588; and the 2010 
population was 258,379, a 14.5 percent increase over the 2000 count. The 2010 count represents 90.5 percent of the population of 
Lancaster County, the county in which the City is located. 

City Government 

The City, operating under a home rule charter, has a mayor-council form of government with an elected full-time chief executive, 
the Mayor, and an elected legislative body, the Council, composed of seven members. Three are elected at large and four by 
district on a nonpartisan basis for a term of four years. The administration of City government is performed under the direction of 
the Mayor by administrative departments. 

City government has a broad range of responsibilities, including electric, water, and sanitary sewer systems, and an impressive 
park and playground system of over 6,503 acres maintained for public use, nine public swimming pools, and five public golf 
courses. The City has cooperated actively with the county government in several joint governmental buildings, and in other 
specific areas of responsibility, including health, planning, civil defense, data processing, tax collection, parks, and jail facilities. 
There are cooperative agreements with the United States government on parks and flood control, with the University of Nebraska 
on planning and property transfer, with the area Watershed District on flood control, and with the Lincoln School District on 
recreation. 

Transportation 

The Lincoln metropolitan area is served by Interstate 80, and U.S. Highways 2, 6, 34, and 77. 

Lincoln is served by two commercial airports with daily shuttle service available between locations. The Lincoln Municipal 
Airport is located less than 10 minutes from downtown and has daily departures to Chicago, Denver, Detroit, and Minneapolis. 
Eppley Airfield, located in east Omaha, is 65 minutes from downtown Lincoln and offers service from multiple airlines. Together 
the two airports offer more than 100 arrivals and departures daily. The Lincoln Municipal Airport also offers General Aviation 
services. The General Aviation runway is 8,649 feet long, and the runway is lit dusk to dawn. 

Railroad transportation facilities include those of Burlington Northern/Santa Fe, Union Pacific, and AMTRAK. Ground 
transportation is furnished by GreyhoundIBlack Hills Stage Lines and local StarTran bus services. 

Government Center 

The State Capitol, an architectural achievement located in Lincoln, is considered one of the most impressive in all the 50 states. 
Other state governmental facilities in the City include the Nebraska Educational Telecommunications facility, the Nebraska 
Game and Parks Commission headquarters, the Lincoln Regional Center (state hospital), and the Nebraska Penal Complex. 

Federal agencies in Lincoln include regional offices of the U.S. Department of Agriculture (Mid-West Regional Technical 
Service Center), the Immigration & Naturalization Service and the Veterans Administration, as well as the state offices of other 
federal agencies. There is also a U.S. Veterans Medical Facility. 

Lancaster County offices are also located in Lincoln, the county seat. 
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Education 

The University of Nebraska, with approximately 24,000 students, Nebraska Wesleyan University, with approximately 2,100 
students, Union College, with approximately 900 students, Kaplan University, with approximately 930 students and Southeast 
Community College, with approximately 10,300 students and with a number of facilities for both full-time and part-time 
occupational training, are located in the City of Lincoln. The City's modem and progressive school system, with an enrollment of 
over 35,000 is served by 6 high schools, 11 middle schools, and 37 elementary schools. Lincoln is home to nearly 30 private and 
parochial schools. Lincoln's private school offerings range from pre-K to high school institutions. Affiliations include Roman 
Catholic, Lutheran, SDA, and nondenominational Christians. 

Building Permits and Property Values 

LAST TEN YEARS 

COMMERCIAL 1 RESIDENTIAL 1 
CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION 

FISCAL # # PROPERTY VALUE 2 
YEAR PERMITS VALUE PERMITS VALUE COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL TOTALS 

2011 1,320 $ 223,215,672 2,336 $ 155,181,140 $ 4,477,256,519 $ 10,648,151,681 $ 15,125,408,200 
2010 1,234 241,509,266 2,225 116,914,465 4,438,463,100 10,546,474,527 14,984,937,627 
2009 1,196 199,331,086 1,794 104,316,385 4,382,749,195 10,839,440,027 15,222,189,222 
2008 1,064 274,267,477 2,261 149,678,215 4,246,365,596 10,723,170,809 14,969,536,405 
2007 994 293,968,408 2,820 202,786,768 4,236,340,817 10,402,515,684 14,638,856,501 
2006 1,088 263,006,153 3,150 195,885,622 3,814,534,869 9,083,290,211 12,897,825,080 
2005 1,092 204,677,969 3,387 277,158,200 3,694,097,147 8,727,702,573 12,421,799,720 
2004 1,061 258,670,339 3,846 321,126,701 3,598,787,015 8,402,403,364 12,001,190,379 

2003 1,036 269,298,229 3,913 315,662,242 3,094,988,486 7,255,640,292 10,350,628,778 

2002 1,013 245,476,386 3,405 262,293,941 2,855,200,333 7,048,688,380 9,903,888,713 
I 

City of Lincoln, Building and Safety Department. 
2 
Lancaster County Assessor. 

Police and Fire Protection 

Lincoln has fourteen fire stations manned by 283 firefighters and three police stations with 321 police officers. 

City Employee Information 

For the 2011-2012 fiscal year, contracts have been signed with all of our unions. Unions include: the Lincoln Police Union (LPU) 
representing police officers; the International Association of Firefighters (IAF) representing firefighters, the Amalgamated 
Transit Union (ATU) representing transit workers, the Public Association of Government Employees (PAGE) representing labor, 
trades, and clerical personnel, the City Employees Association (CEA) representing supervisory, highly technical, and 
professional personnel, and the Lincoln M Class Employees Association (LMCEA) representing upper management, 
administration and professional personnel. All contracts expire at the end of August, 2012. 

Since the inception of labor contracts in 1970, the City of Lincoln has been able to handle its labor relations in such a manner as 
to avoid interruptions, although it has been necessary to use the facilities of the Nebraska Commission of Industrial Relations on 
issues involving the International Association of Firefighters, International Brotherhood of Police Officers, and the Public 
Association of Government Employees. 
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SELECTED ECONOMIC INDICATORS 

LINCOLN SMSA (LANCASTER COUNTY) 
NONAGRICULTURAL WAGE AND SALARY EMPLOYMENT 

MAY 31, 2011 NOVEMBER 30,2011 

Number Percent Number Percent 
EmEloyed of Total Employed of Total 

Industry Manufacturing: 
Durable Goods 8,130 4.6 8,064 4.5 
Nondurable Goods 4,833 2.8 4,768 2.7 

Total Industry Manufacturing 12,963 7.4 12,832 7.2 
Nonmanufacturing: 

Natural Resource & Construction 6,621 3.8 6,493 3.7 
Transportation, Communications & Utilities 10,491 6.0 10,711 6.0 
Wholesale Trade 4,028 2.3 4,150 2.3 
Retail Trade 18,370 10.5 19,346 10.9 
Information 2,130 1.2 2,184 1.3 
Finance, Insurance & Real Estate 13,327 7.6 13,354 7.5 
Services (except domestic) 67,979 38.8 69,100 39.1 
Government 39,201 22.4 38,948 22.0 

Total Nonmanufacturing 162,147 92.6 164,286 92.8 
TOTAL 175,110 100.0 177,118 100.0 

Lincoln is proud to have some of the nation's leading industrial companies as local employers, including Goodyear Tire and 
Rubber Company, Burlington Northern Railroad, Archer-Daniels-Midlands Company, Kawasaki Motors Corporation USA, and 
Square D. 

LINCOLN SMSA (LANCASTER COUNTY LABOR FORCE DATA 2011-2002) 
(For the Calendar Year Indicated) 

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

Civilian Labor Force 160,683 157,933 159,298 159,943 157,887 157,632 157,999 158,444 156,940 153,021 

Unemployment 6,130 6,802 7,015 4,899 4,462 4,592 5,643 5,346 5,841 5,007 

Percent of Labor Force 3.8 4.3 4.4 3.1 2.8 2.9 3.6 3.4 3.7 3.3 

Employment 154,553 151,130 152,283 155,044 153,425 153,040 152,355 153,098 151,100 148,013 

STATE OF NEBRASKA 

Percent of Labor Force 

Unemployment 4.2 4.7 4.7 3.3 3.0 3.2 3.9 3.8 3.8 3.6 

Source: State of Nebraska, Department of Labor 
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DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 
LAST TEN YEARS 

Per Capita 

Personal School 

Year Population Income 2 Enrollment 3 

2011 258,379 $ 36,530 

2010 254,001 35,896 
2009 251,624 37,361 34,973 

2008 248,744 37,990 34,061 

2007 241,167 36,838 33,466 
2006 239,213 35,441 32,934 
2005 238,625 33,799 32,505 

2004 236,146 33,024 32,270 

2003 235,565 32,098 31,889 

2002 231,800 31,208 31,867 

Sources: 

1 LincolnlLancaster Planning Department. 

2 U.S. Dept. of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis. 

Per Capital Income is based on Lincoln Metropolitan Statistical Area, which includes 

all of Lancaster and Seward Counties 

Per Capita Income for 2010 and 2011 is unavailable. 

3 Lincoln Public Schools. 

Median age from the 2010 census was 31.8. Education statistics per the 2010 Census indicate that 92.4% of the population 25 
years and older has a high school degree or greater with 35.2% of the same population holding a Bachelor's degree or greater. 

LINCOLN UTILITY CUSTOMERS LAST 
TEN YEARS 

Water Gas Electricity 

Year Customers Customers Customers 

2011 79,184 94,231 128,373 

2010 78,740 93,916 129,322 

2009 77,973 93,679 128,115 

2008 77,532 93,419 126,978 

2007 76,816 93,301 124,878 

2006 75,919 92,824 123,376 

2005 74,649 92,152 121,508 

2004 73,059 91,046 119,456 

2003 72,260 89,642 116,974 

2002 69,704 89,085 114,388 

Source: Indicated Utility Companies 
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SELECTED FINANCIAL STATISTICS 

1 
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Streets Culture Health 
Fiscal General Public And And Economic And Mass Debt 
Year Government Safe~ Hi~hwa~s Recreation OQQortuni~ Welfare Transit Service Totals 

20ll $ 36,622,362 69,537,057 18,335,078 21,794,585 15,811,914 21,993,415 15,088,883 26,439,462 225,622,756 

2010 35,865,006 64,679,523 19,832,223 21,483,873 15,359,628 21,652,729 12,034,413 17,032,401 207,939,796 

2009 34,428,477 63,984,484 16,445,304 22,449,569 11,321,242 20,349,757 9,575,670 16,990,105 195,544,608 

2008 35,278,575 61,147,903 16,482,240 21,686,564 14,685,668 21,053,132 10,707,601 14,427,795 195,469,478 

2007 33,946,258 60,953,651 17,430,452 21,719,544 11,670,315 20,378,863 14,877,357 11,589,720 192,566,160 

2006 34,666,641 60,064,604 16,928,575 20,938,212 12,623,307 25,566,267 8,901,327 11,016,269 190,705,202 

2005 32,532,685 58,669,932 17,064,845 21,669,847 14,870,592 19,126,931 8,306,921 10,562,993 182,804,746 

2004 30,884,544 55,272,920 13,633,902 22,308,940 14,728,510 18,544,667 10,525,090 7,914,521 173,813,094 

2003 28,938,852 50,933,285 12,317,663 19,935,823 16,469,645 17,614,751 7,996,019 8,507,223 162,713,261 

2002 27,237,134 49,913,169 10,833,055 16,974,798 14,017,601 17,989,603 12,691,837 7,411,878 157,069,075 

Includes General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. 

1 
GENERAL REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Taxes And Permits Reimbursement 

Fiscal Special Inter- And For Investment 
Year Assessment Governmental Fees Services Earnin~s Other Totals 

2011 $ 144,632,640 71,532,824 18,524,372 7,521,366 5,454,877 11,279,552 258,945,631 

2010 131,562,303 61,640,301 16,432,219 7,004,334 5,197,259 6,467,138 228,303,554 

2009 130,360,416 75,099,973 17,119,002 6,600,299 5,791,391 7,818,015 242,789,096 

2008 130,094,818 73,830,720 18,013,104 6,511,457 6,806,258 7,667,778 242,924,135 

2007 125,328,388 63,928,043 19,126,239 6,491,112 10,371,565 7,052,107 232,297,454 

2006 121,857,986 60,757,501 18,423,079 7,063,192 4,082,196 7,886,377 220,070,331 

2005 119,318,079 63,180,171 16,535,049 6,936,334 4,327,311 12,028,417 222,325,361 

2004 114,756,962 58,619,699 15,593,326 6,322,870 5,207,711 10,188,520 210,689,088 

2003 107,114,577 52,773,424 12,679,623 6,097,336 4,353,336 8,234,138 191,252,434 

2002 105,139,052 59,029,609 12,449,879 5,605,557 4,606,825 10,325,634 197,156,556 

Includes General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. 
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SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

August 31 

2011 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 

1 
LAST TEN YEARS 

Special Assessment 
Collections 

Including Interest 

$ 1,103,720 
1,136,150 
1,071,238 
1,418,936 
1,448,146 
1,667,037 
1,413,582 
2,104,925 
1,814,191 
1,867,653 

Special assessment collections are not tracked by levy year, therefore the portion of collections during any year that apply to any particular 
levy cannot be determined. 

Authority to Levy Taxes 

Article IX, Section 3 of the Home Rule Charter of the City provides that the City shall have power to levy a tax each year for 
general revenue purposes upon all property subject to taxation; provided that the maximum amount of taxes that can be levied by 
the City in anyone year for general revenue purposes shall not exceed an amount known as the City tax limit. The City tax limit 
is a tax ceiling established by using the September 1, 1966 City dollar tax limit as an initial tax limit, and increasing that tax limit 
each year following 1966 by 7% so that in each fiscal year thereafter, the amount of the City tax limit shall be the amount of the 
city tax limit for the previous year, plus 7% thereof. In addition, the City also has the power to levy taxes each year sufficient to 
pay any judgment existing against the City and the interest on bonded debt and the principal on any bonded debt maturing during 
the fiscal year or within six months thereafter, as well as taxes authorized by state law. The City is also authorized to receive all 
taxes collected and distributed pursuant to state law and in lieu oftax payments imposed by law. The 2011 tax levy for the 2011--
2012 fiscal year is $100,174,806 below the legal limit, a tax rate per $100 valuation of .31580. The assessed value upon which 
the 2011 levy is based is $15,900,828,813. By charter, only 90% ofthe property tax levy may be appropriated. 

For the 2011-2012 fiscal year the City is subject to a state imposed lid on the appropriation of "restricted funds", that are 
revenues received from property tax, sales tax, state aid, in-lieu of tax and highway allocation fees. Bonded indebtedness, capital 
improvements, and costs associated with inter local agreements are exempt from the lid. For 2011-2012 the City can also use 
authority equal to the greater of 2.5% or the amount of real growth in the tax base that was .12%. An additional 1 % can be 
authorized by a 75% vote of the City Council but was not utilized for the 2011-2012 budget. The 2011-2012 budget is 
approximately $18.3 million below the state imposed lid limit. 
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PROPERTY TAX LEVIED AND COLLECTED 
LAST TEN YEARS 

The fiscal year of the City begins September 1 and ends August 31. Taxes are levied in October. First installments of real estate 
taxes are delinquent the following April 1, second installments delinquent August 1; personal property taxes are delinquent 
Aprill and August 1. Delinquent taxes bear 14 percent interest. The figures below include interest and penalties. The figures 
below do not include motor vehicle in lieu of ad valorem taxes. 

CollectedAs Of August 31 Accumulated Collections 
Tax Taxes AfterLe~ As Of August 31,2011 
Year Levied Amount Percent Amount Percent 

2011 $ 45,718,972 $ 44,206,917 96.69 % $ 44,206,917 96.69 % 
20lO 45,197,040 $ 43,791,366 96.89 45,170,841 99.94 
2009 45,884,670 44,385,970 96.73 45,867,726 99.96 
2008 45,052,028 43,526,689 96.61 45,039,392 99.97 
2007 43,291,440 41,815,295 96.59 43,284,921 99.98 
2006 40,930,818 39,549,553 96.63 40,927,221 99.99 
2005 38,755,995 37,488,504 96.73 38,749,283 99.98 
2004 36,994,112 35,696,288 96.49 36,902,819 99.75 
2003 35,007,926 33,648,496 96.12 34,916,463 99.74 
2002 33,731,282 32,482,000 96.30 33,720,019 99.97 

TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS 

Listed below are the ten largest taxpayers in the City of Lincoln as reported by the County Assessor. These taxpayers each pay 
less than five percent of the total taxes levied. 

Percentage 

2011 Of Total 

Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayers Type of Business Valuations Valuation 

B & J Partnership Ltd. Building Management $ 78,862,600 0.50% 

Burlington Northern Railroad 71,668,442 0.45% 

Kawasaki Manufacturing 70,126,972 0.44% 

Ameritas Life Insurance Corp Insurance 61,017,194 0.38% 

WEA Gateway LLC Retail Management 56,997,083 0.36% 

BryanLGH Hospital 53,953,361 0.34% 

Pfizer Animal Health 47,060,705 0.30% 

Nebco Construction/Development 46,160,673 0.29% 

Chateau Van Dorn LLC Real Estate Development 45,364,619 0.29% 

Black Hills Utility Holdings Gas Utility 45,124,751 0.28% 

$ 576,336,400 3.63% 
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CITY SALES TAX INFORMATION 

The City had a one percent (1%) sales and use tax through June 30, 1985. Effective July 1, 1985 the sales and use tax was raised 
to one and one half percent (1.5%). These taxes are administered and collected for the City by the State of Nebraska. The State 
receives three percent (3%) for their service. The City has had a sales tax since 1969. 

Property and 
Fiscal Motor Vehicle 
Year Taxes 
2011 $ 31,449,267 
2010 31,486,553 
2009 33,783,984 
2008 32,181,660 
2007 31,454,763 
2006 28,366,526 
2005 26,727,618 
2004 24,546,532 
2003 22,780,085 
2002 23,353,414 

SALES AND USE TAX COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN YEARS 

Year Ended 

August 31 Amount 

2011 $ 57,959,545 

2010 54,925,013 

2009 54,255,376 

2008 55,733,297 

2007 53,960,485 

2006 54,270,346 

2005 53,781,209 

2004 51,869,477 

2003 48,657,268 

2002 45,393,491 

GENERAL FUND TAX COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN YEARS 

Sales and Sundry Taxes 
Use Taxes Taxes In Lieu 
57,959,545 30,957 1,755,098 

54,925,013 11,895 1,620,431 
54,255,376 8,143 1,540,752 

55,733,297 18,600 1,511,404 
53,960,485 10,492 1,399,939 
54,270,346 9,526 1,315,038 
53,781,209 12,445 1,159,742 

51,869,477 9,263 1,144,747 

48,657,268 10,876 1,199,507 

45,393,491 8,403 1,163,468 
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Occupation 
Taxes Total 

11,699,691 102,894,558 
10,467,534 98,511,426 
10,071,230 99,659,485 
9,670,060 99,115,021 
9,596,588 96,422,267 
8,936,502 92,897,938 
9,169,791 90,850,805 
9,037,781 86,607,800 

8,831,712 81,479,448 
9,097,442 79,016,218 



TAXABLE ASSESSED V ALVA TION 
I 

LAST TEN YEARS 

Tax Real All 
Year Estate Other Total 

2011 $ 15,125,408,200 755,852,220 15,881,260,420 
20lO 14,984,937,627 761,515,955 15,746,453,582 
2009 15,222,189,222 7l3,383,515 15,935,572,737 
2008 14,969,536,405 684,390,085 15,653,926,490 
2007 14,638,856,501 703,307,287 15,342,163,788 
2006 12,897,825,080 685,425,215 l3,583,250,295 
2005 12,421,799,720 716,716,506 l3,l38,516,226 
2004 12,001,190,379 742,915,0l3 12,744, lO5,392 
2003 10,350,628,778 779,959,389 11,130,588,167 
2002 9,903,888,713 820,797,124 lO,724,685,837 

I 

Property is assessed at actual value; therefore, the assessed values are equal to actual value. 

TOTAL PROPERTY TAX LEVIES 
ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

I 
LAST TEN YEARS 

Tax Year 
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 

City of Lincoln 0.2879 0.2879 0.2879 0.2879 0.2833 0.3009 0.2950 0.2903 0.3145 0.3145 
School District No. 1 1.2462 1.2537 1.2668 1.2719 1.2764 1.3142 13141 1.3011 1.2830 1.2732 
Lancaster County 0.2683 0.2683 0.2683 0.2755 0.2655 0.2841 0.2797 0.2683 0.2683 0.2583 
Educational Service Unit #18 0.0145 0.0150 0.0150 0.0141 0.0141 0.0150 0.0150 0.0150 0.0150 0.0150 
Community Technical College 0.0600 0.0676 0.0722 0.0689 0.0689 0.0696 0.0655 0.0655 0.0655 0.0636 
Lower Platte South Natural Res. Dis!. 0.0406 0.0410 0.0410 0.0418 0.0416 0.0422 0.0323 0.0323 0.0359 0.0365 
Railroad Transportation Safety Dis!. 0.0260 0.0260 0.0260 0.0260 0.0246 0.0260 0.0260 0.0248 0.0220 0.0221 
Lancaster County Correctional JPA City 0.0189 0.0194 0.0195 
Lancaster County Correctional JPA County 0.0106 0.0107 0.0106 
Agricultural Society of Lancaster County 0.0017 0.0016 0.0015 0.0016 0.0016 0.0018 0.0020 0.0030 0.0012 0.0024 
Lancaster County Fairgrounds 0.0038 0.0038 0.0038 0.0043 0.0037 0.0042 0.0042 0.0043 0.0050 0.0052 
Public Building Commission 0.0170 0.0170 0.0170 0.0170 0.0170 0.0170 0.0170 0.0170 0.0170 0.0170 

1.9955 2.0120 2.0296 2.0090 1.9967 2.0750 2.0508 2.0216 2.0274 2.0078 

I 
The assessment rate is 100% of market and the levy is expressed as the tax per $100 of estimated market value. 
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DEBT MANAGEMENT 
OUTSTANDING INDEBTEDNESS AS OF AUGUST 31, 2011 

Long-term debt is comprised ofthe following individual issues (in thousands of dollars): 

Original 
Amount _-,Iss",ue=d _______ I"'ss"'ue"-____ _ 

General <l>ligation Bonds: 
General Bonds: 

8.220 

15,595 
),710 

9.950 
8,295 
8,200 

19,290 

03/01199 Various Purpose Series B 
07/08/0) Various Purpose 
07/08/03 Various Purpose 

06/15/05 Stonn Sewer Construction 
06127107 Stonnwater Drainage and Flood Mgmt 
02/10/11 StonnwaterBonds 
06/21111 Refunding 

Total General Bonds 

Tax Allocation Bonds: 
1,035 04/21104 Tax Allocation Bonds 
5,500 04/21104 Tax Allocation Bonds 

365 08115/05 Tax Allocation Bonds 
288 IO/Oll06 Tax Allocation Bonds 

2,205 04/05/07 Tax Allocation Bonds 
601 06/0 I/07 Tax Allocation Bonds 
388 06/0 I/07 Tax Allocation Bonds 
369 06115/07 Tax Allocation Bonds 

42 07115/08 Tax Allocation Bonds 
71 07/15/08 Tax Allocation Bonds 

474 07115/08 Tax Allocation Bonds 
547 08/01108 Tax Allocation Bonds 
200 08/0 1108 Tax Allocation Bonds 
611 06/30/09 Tax Allocation Bonds 

3,375 07128/09 Tax Allocation Bonds 
263 04/0 III I Tax Allocation Bonds 

Total Tax Allocation Bonds 

Tax Supported Bonds: 
35,000 03117/04 Highway Allocation Fund 
27,000 12/05/06 Highway Allocation Fund 

Total Tax Supported Bonds 

Special Assessment Bonds: 
825 08/18/11 Special Assessment 
375 08/18/11 Special Assessment 

Total Special Assessment Bonds 

West Haymarket Joint Ptblic Agency 
31,515 09/08/10 Facility Bonds Taxable Build America Bonds 
68,485 09/08110 Facility Bonds Taxable Build America Bonds 
15,785 12/01/10 Facility Bonds Taxable Build America Bonds 
52,180 12/01/10 Facility Bonds Taxable Build America Bonds 
32,035 12/01/10 Recovery Zone Economic Development 
44,290 08/24/11 Facility Bonds 
55,710 08124111 Facility Bonds 

Total West Haymarket Joint Public Agency 

TOTAL GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

Tax Supported Bonds: 
11,080 3/13/02 Antelope Valley Project 

Revenue Bonds: 
39,235 07/31103 WastewalerRevenue 

15,765 07131/03 Wastewater Revenue 
18,000 08/03/05 Wastewater Revenue 

16,710 04/18/07 Wastewater Revenue 
3,750 04118/07 Wastewater Revenue 

Total Wastewater Bonds 

11,850 ll122/02 Water Revenue 
6,660 ll/22/02 Water Revenue 

32,180 05/01103 Water Revenue 
40,000 1l/16/04 Water Revenue 
10,515 08/04/09 Water Revenue 
4,905 08104/09 Water Revenue 

Total Water Bonds 

4,360 12/18/01 ParkingReverme 
1,640 12/18/01 ParkingReverme 
2,065 12129/10 Parking Reverrue 

10,775 01127/11 Parking Reverrue and Refunding 

4,000 

148,190 
93.045 
33.265 
61,290 
53,710 

183.230 
81.850 

Total Parking Bonds 

08/17/06 Solid Waste Management Revenue 

1010 1/02 Electric ReveIRIe and Refunding Bonds 
10/01/03 Electric ReveIlle and Refunding Bonds 
10/01103 Electric ReveIlle and Refunding Bonds 
1010 liDS Electric ReveIlle Bonds 
10/01105 Electric ReveIlle Bonds 
05115/07 Electric Revenue and Refunling Bonds 
05115107 Electric Reverue and Refunding Bonds 

Total Electric Bonds 

TOTAL REVENUE BONDS 

Interest 
Rate 

3.000 - 4.250 
2.625 - 3.750 
4.000 14.125 
3.250 - 4.250 

4.625 - 5.000 
2.000 - 4.500 

0.2000 - 5.000 

2000-3200 
3.000 - 4.800 

4.750 
5.100 

5.000 - 5.550 
5.240 

5.240 
5.400 
4.660 
4.660 
4.660 

4.610 
4.610 
7.00 

2.500 -6.400 

3.990 

2.000 - 5.000 
4.000 - 5.000 

0.400 - 3.700 
4.200 

When Due 

Serial 1999t02011 
Serial 2004 to 2017 
Term 2020 & 2023 
Serial 2006 to 2025 

Serial 2008 to 2027 
Serial 2013 to 2030 
Serial 2011 to 2022 

Serial 2004 to 2011 
Serial 2004 to 2015 
Serial 2006 to 20 18 
Serial 2008 to 2016 
Serial 2009 to 2018 
Serial 2008 to 2018 

Serial 2007 to 2020 
Serial 2007 to 2014 
Serial 2009 to 2021 
Seria12oo9 to 2017 
Serial 2009 to 2022 

Serial 2009 to 2022 
Serial 2009 to 2022 

Seria120 II to 2023 
Serial 2011 to 2023 

Serial 20 II to 2022 

Serial 2007 to 2023 
Serial 2008 to 2027 

Serial 2012 to 2026 
Term 2031 

3 500 - 4.45 Seria12020 to 2030 
4750/5.000 Term 2035 & 2045 
4.000 - 5.000 Seria12020 - 2025 

5.400/5.800 /6.000 Term 2030 2035 2039 
6.750 Term 2045 

3.500 - 5.000 Serial 2021 to 2032 
4.25015.000 Term 2036 & 2042 

1.500 - 5.000 

2.000 - 5.000 
4.625/5.000 
4.000 - 5.000 

4.000 -4.500 
4.375 

2.750 - 5.000 

5.000 
5.000 

3.000 - 5.000 

2.000 - 4.125 
45000 

3.750 - 5.000 
5.125 

Serial 2002 to 2016 

Serial 2004 to 2023 

Term 2025 & 2028 
Serial 2006 to 2030 
Serial 2008 to 2029 

Tenn 2032 

Serial 2005 to 2017 
Tenn 2022 
Serial 2004 to 2012 
Serial 2005 to 2025 

Serial 2013 to 2029 
Term 2034 

Serial 2002 to 2017 
Term 2021 

1.250-2.850 Seria12011t02014 

5.000 I 5.l251 5.500 Term 2026 & 2031 

4.000 - 4.250 

4.000 - 5.000 
3.000 - 5.000 

4.750 
5.000 
4.750 

4.000 - 5.000 
4.500 14.750 

Serial 2007 to 2021 

Seria12004 to 2025 
Serial 2004 to 2026 
Tenn 2028 
Serial 2029 to 2032 
Term 2035 
Serial 2009 to 2035 
Term 2034 & 2037 
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Date 
Callable 

2007 
2013 
2013 
2015 
2017 
2020 
2019 

2008 
2010 

AnytIme 
Anytime 

2012 

Anytime 
Anytime 
Anytime 

Anytime 
Anytime 
Anytime 

Anytime 
Anytime 

Anytime 
Anytime 

Anytime 

2014 
2016 

Anytime 
Anytime 
Anytime 
Anytime 
Anytime 

2021 
2021 

2012 

2013 
2013 

2015 
2017 
2017 

2012 
2012 

2014 
2019 
2019 

20ll 
20ll 

N/A 

2021 

2013 

2012 
2014 
2014 
2015 
2015 
2016 
2016 

Interest 
Date 

Semiannually 

Semiannually 

Semiannually 

Semiannually 

Semiannually 

Semiannually 

Semiannually 

Semiannually 

Semiannually 

Outstanding 

260 
5.215 
3,710 
7,660 

7.265 
8,200 

19,290 
51,600 

160 
2,880 

216 

188 
1.845 

561 
300 
190 
37 

63 
332 
469 
170 

609 
3,375 

263 
11,658 

31.965 
23,240 
55,205 

825 
375 

1,200 

3I,515 
68,"'85 
15.785 
52,180 
32.035 
44.290 
55,710 

300,000 

419,663 

5,920 

26,350 

15,765 
15,000 

14,760 
3,750 

75.625 

6.180 
6,660 
2,630 

33,030 
10,515 
4.905 

63,920 

1.935 
1,640 
1,760 

10,775 
23.855 

3,020 

81.660 
78.200 
33,265 
61,290 
53.710 

176,255 
81,850 

566,230 

732.650 



The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on all outstanding debt are as follows (in thousands of dollars): 

Fiscal Governmental Activities 
Year Ended General Oblillation Bonds Tax Supported Bonds Capi tal Leases 
August 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2012 $ 6,636 19,029 710 271 3,688 959 
2013 8,563 19,575 740 238 3,284 889 
2014 8,816 19,283 780 200 3,421 817 
2015 9,061 18,971 815 162 3,511 738 
2016 9,455 18,603 855 122 3,586 643 

2017 -2021 47,260 87,656 2,020 51 9,322 2,051 
2022 - 2026 72,657 74,055 5,458 830 
2027 - 2031 55,835 59,699 1,255 68 
2032 - 2036 60,645 46,279 
2037 - 2041 73,345 29,401 
2042 - 2046 67,390 8,882 

$ 419,663 401,433 5,920 1,044 33,525 6,995 

Fiscal Business-Type Activities 
Year Ended Revenue Bonds Loans Papble CaEital Leases 
August 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2012 $ 28,020 34,879 195 116 258 24 
2013 27,010 33,539 307 112 198 18 
2014 28,255 32,258 312 107 205 13 
2015 29,500 30,887 318 101 152 7 
2016 30,845 29,481 323 96 98 5 

2017 - 2021 178,095 123,373 1,694 399 98 2 
2022 - 2026 117,595 86,452 1,839 254 
2027 - 2031 119,815 59,989 1,896 97 
2032 - 2036 119,470 29,412 107 
2037 - 2041 54,045 3,676 

$ 732,650 463,946 6,991 1,283 1,009 69 

Fiscal Major Enterprise Funds 
Year Ended Wastewater S~stem Water S~stem Electric S~stem 
August 31 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2012 $ 3,075 3,620 5,380 2,905 18,680 27,267 
2013 3,287 3,500 3,310 2,647 19,610 26,333 
2014 3,397 3,370 3,425 2,506 20,595 25,353 
2015 3,522 3,217 3,555 2,354 21,620 24,323 
2016 3,648 3,057 3,690 2,191 22,675 23,271 

2017 - 2021 20,475 12,768 20,915 8,199 131,510 98,220 
2022 -2026 25,189 7,816 16,315 3,406 71,630 72,415 
2027 - 2031 18,611 2,161 4,240 1,266 90,790 55,355 
2032 - 2036 1,412 58 3,090 283 115,075 29,072 
2037 - 2041 54,045 3,676 

$ 82,616 39,567 63,920 25,757 566,230 385,285 

The City issues general obligation, special assessment, and revenue bonds to finance the acquisition and construction of major 
capital assets. Bonded indebtedness has also been entered into to advance refund several general obligation and revenue bonds. 
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government. Special assessment bonds 
are repaid from amounts levied against affected property owners, but in the unlikely event collections are not sufficient to make 
debt payments, the responsibility rests with the City to meet that obligation. For revenue bonds the government pledges income 
derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay the debt service. 

Net assets of $2,666,408, $3,016,975, $10,291,693, and $85,335 are currently available in the debt service funds to service the 
General Obligation Bonds, Tax Supported Bonds, Tax Allocation Bonds, and Special Assessment Bonds, respectively. Revenue 
Bonds are funded partially from reserve accounts set up for debt repayment and partially from proceeds of daily operations. 
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The City has entered into lease agreements for financing the acquisition of land, buildings, street lights, emergency ambulances 
and defibrillators, fire engines, golf equipment and computer equipment and software. These lease agreements qualify as capital 
leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as 
of the inception date. Assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

Land 
Buildings 
Improvements 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and Equipment 
Construction In Progress 
Less Accumulated Depreciation, 

(where applicable) 

Total 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

1,774,450 
18,171,399 

219,925 
13,719,213 
2,946,000 

388,181 

(5,566,307) 

$ ===3"",1,6=5",,2,=86=1= 

$ 

Business-Type 
Activities 

210,000 

3,492,756 

(2,256,254) 

$ =====1,=44=6"",5=02= 

Under the City's Home Rule Charter, there is no legal debt limit. The various bond indentures contain significant limitations and 
restrictions on annual debt service requirements, minimum amounts to be maintained in various bond reserve funds, and 
minimum revenue bond coverage. 

The general obligation debt of all local governmental units which provide services within the City's boundaries and which debt 
must be borne by properties in the City (commonly called overlapping debt) as of August 31,2011, is summarized below 
(unaudited): 

Estimated Direct And 
Debt Percentage Overlapping Debt 

Governmental Units Outstandinii; AEElicable I To The City 
Direct: 

City $ 419,663,000 100.0 % $ 419,663,000 
Overlapping: 

School District # 1 362,755,000 99.5 360,941,000 
Lower Platte South N.R.D. 75.4 
Lancaster County 1,400,000 85.4 1,196,000 
Public Building Commission 41,660,000 85.4 35,578,000 
Lancaster County Correctional Facility 59,570,000 85.4 50,873,000 

Lancaster County Fairgrounds 8,480,000 85.4 7,242,000 
473,865,000 455,830,000 

Total $ 893,528,000 $ 875,493,000 

The City has no direct liability for the School District, Lower Platte South N.R.D., Lancaster County, Public Building 
Commission, Lancaster County Fairgrounds or Lancaster County Correctional Facility debt summarized above. This results in a 
per capita direct City debt of $1,624.21; a per capita direct and overlapping debt of $3,388.41; a ratio of direct City debt to 2011 
actual valuation of2.64 percent; and a ratio of direct and overlapping debt to 2011 actual valuation of 5.51 percent. 

In addition to the governmental units listed above, the Airport Authority of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska (the "Airport 
Authority"), a body politic and corporate separate and distinct from the City of Lincoln, provides services within the City's 
boundaries and has overlapping general obligation indebtedness. As of June 30, 2011, the Airport Authority had outstanding 
$9,080,000 in aggregate principal amount of its general obligation airport bonds. The Airport Authority anticipates that such 
bonds will be paid from revenues derived from its operations of the Lincoln Municipal Airport, but the Airport Authority is 
authorized to levy a property tax, at a rate not to exceed three and five-tenths cents ($.035) on each $100 of taxable valuation, on 
all the taxable property in the City. The Airport Authority has not levied a property tax since 1985 for any purpose, including 
airport operating expenses or debt service on its bonds. 

Debt Payment Record 

The City of Lincoln has never defaulted on its obligation to pay principal or interest on its indebtedness. 
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Fiscal 
Year 

2011 
2010 
2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 
2004 
2003 
2002 

Contingencies 

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits in its normal course of operations and management is of the opinion that ultimate 
settlement of such lawsuits will not have a materially adverse effect on the financial statements. 

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES 
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Total 
Total General 

Ratio Of 
Debt Service 

To Total 
Fiscal Debt Governmental General 

I 

2 

$ 

Year Principal Interest 2 Service Expenditures EXEenditures 

2011 $ 6,857,978 $ 5,147,840 $ 12,005,818 $ 225,622,756 5.32 % 
2010 7,457,532 5,676,933 13,134,465 207,939,796 6.32 
2009 8,036,544 5,814,071 13,850,615 195,544,608 7.08 
2008 6,824,828 5,979,172 12,804,000 195,469,478 6.55 
2007 5,617,536 4,986,687 10,604,223 192,566,160 5.51 
2006 5,770,794 4,670,734 10,441,528 190,705,202 5.48 
2005 5,421,699 4,860,926 10,282,625 182,804,746 5.62 
2004 4,934,224 2,893,437 7,827,661 173,813,094 4.50 
2003 5,435,370 2,986,634 8,422,004 162,713,261 5.18 
2002 4,921,172 2,421,303 7,342,475 157,069,075 4.67 

Includes: General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. 

Does not include fiscal and miscellaneous charges. 

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT IN RELATION TO POPULATION, ASSESSED V ALUA TION, 
AND REAL PROPERTY VALVA TION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Ratio of 
Net Ratio of Net Debt 

General General NetG.O. Assessed Net Debt Assessed To Estimated 
Oblligation Oblligation Bonded Valuation To Assessed Valuation Valuation 

Bonded Sinking Bonded Debt Per Real And Valuation Of Taxable Of Taxable 
Debt Funds Debt POEuiation I CaEita Personal Real & Personal 2 Real ProEe!:!X 2 Real ProEert~ 

119,663,000 $ 13,305,000 $ 106,358,000 258,379 $ 411.64 $ 15,881,260,420 0.67% $ 15,125,408,200 0.70% 
118,383,000 13,480,000 104,903,000 254,001 413.00 15,746,453,582 0.67% 14,984,937,627 0.70% 
125,181,000 13,604,000 111,577,000 251,624 443.43 15,935,572,737 0.70% 15,222,189,222 0.73% 

128,581,000 12,962,000 115,619,000 248,744 464.81 15,653,926,490 0.74% 14,969,536,405 0.77% 

133,413,000 11,574,000 121,839,000 241,167 505.21 15,342,163,788 0.79% 14,638,856,501 0.83% 

99,347,000 9,733,000 89,614,000 239,213 374.62 13,583,250,295 0.66% 12,897,825,080 0.69% 

104,538,000 13,364,000 91,174,000 238,625 382.08 13,138,516,226 0.69% 12,421,799,720 0.73% 

98,915,000 20,509,000 78,406,000 236,146 332.02 12,744,105,392 0.62% 12,001,190,379 0.65% 

61,759,000 17,083,000 44,676,000 235,565 189.65 11,130,588,167 0.40% 10,350,628,778 0.43% 

56,997\000 15,847,000 41,150,000 231,800 177.52 1O,724,685~837 0.38% 9,903,888,713 0.42% 

Source: LincolnlLancaster Planning Department. Assessed valuation is 100% of actual 
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REVENUE BOND COVERAGE 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEAR 

Direct Net 
Gross Operating Available Debt Service Reguirements 

Revenue EXE!':nses Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage 

Wastewater S:J:stem 
2011 $ 23,546,370 12,543,964 11,002,406 2,865,000 3,647,609 6,512,609 1.69 
2010 22,472,095 11,664,593 10,807,502 2,695,000 3,731,444 6,426,444 1.68 
2009 22,643,270 11,771,291 10,871,979 2,620,000 3,820,044 6,440,044 1.69 
2008 22,347,867 11,393,624 10,954,243 2,415,000 4,030,454 6,445,454 1.70 
2007 21,158,743 11,462,964 9,695,779 2,005,000 3,081,481 5,086,481 1.91 
2006 19,827,194 11,125,819 8,701,375 2,065,000 3,043,500 5,108,500 1.70 
2005 18,248,683 10,482,955 7,765,728 1,500,000 2,403,519 3,903,519 1.99 
2004 18,092,619 10,042,919 8,049,700 1,750,000 2,133,704 3,883,704 2.07 
2003 15,607,743 9,086,469 6,521,274 1,032,500 266,722 1,299,222 5.02 
2002 15,731,749 8,632,287 7,099,462 992,500 316,847 1,309,347 5.42 

Water S:J:stem 
2011 $ 30,629,506 15,455,027 15,174,479 6,310,000 3,191,857 9,501,857 1.60 
2010 26,515,467 14,091,292 12,424,175 6,050,000 3,458,097 9,508,097 1.31 
2009 . 27,838,187 14,995,077 12,843,110 5,795,000 3,128,414 8,923,414 1.44 
2008 27,257,184 14,425,521 12,831,663 5,555,000 3,376,201 8,931,201 1.44 
2007 29,386,495 14,351,136 15,035,359 5,340,000 3,612,001 8,952,001 1.68 
2006 29,014,999 13,808,214 15,206,785 5,130,000 3,834,301 8,964,301 1.70 

2005 27,153,937 13,145,665 14,008,272 4,895,000 3,517,932 8,412,932 1.67 

2004 24,557,918 12,477,486 12,080,432 3,115,000 2,411,632 5,526,632 2.19 

2003 22,094,721 11,631,496 10,463,225 3,010,000 2,898,489 5,908,489 1.77 

2002 22,894,652 11,474,433 11,420,219 2,880,000 2,110,590 4,990,590 2.29 

Golf 
2011 $ 2,766,603 2,683,690 82,913 365,000 14,783 379,783 0.22 
2010 2,779,424 2,562,064 217,360 350,000 28,783 378,783 0.57 
2009 3,133,238 2,516,538 616,700 335,000 41,848 376,848 1.64 
2008 2,933,843 2,402,983 530,860 325,000 54,035 379,035 1.40 
2007 2,926,985 2,463,827 463,158 315,000 65,060 380,060 1.22 
2006 2,993,961 2,467,141 526,820 305,000 74,973 379,973 1.39 
2005 3,135,875 2,568,462 567,413 295,000 83,823 378,823 1.50 
2004 2,899,670 2,467,141 432,529 290,000 91,653 381,653 1.13 
2003 2,648,552 2,408,947 239,605 280,000 98,513 378,513 0.63 
2002 2,673,078 2,141,707 531,371 305,000 75,628 380,628 1.40 

Parking Facilities I.2 

2011 $ 7,698,018 3,606,008 4,092,010 580,000 689,717 1,269,717 3.22 
2010 6,869,392 3,340,601 3,528,791 1,435,000 558,519 1,993,519 1.77 
2009 7,014,250 2,874,768 4,139,482 1,360,000 624,394 1,984,394 2.09 

2008 7,134,709 2,912,511 4,222,198 1,305,000 687,194 1,992,194 2.12 
2007 6,645,013 2,781,952 3,863,061 1,240,000 746,374 1,986,374 1.94 

2006 6,785,593 2,775,122 4,010,471 1,185,000 799,931 1,984,931 2.02 

2005 6,219,935 2,972,709 3,247,226 1,140,000 850,501 1,990,501 1.63 

2004 6,299,598 2,733,492 3,566,106 1,145,000 908,456 2,053,456 1.74 

2003 5,988,240 2,304,632 3,683,608 1,085,000 962,829 2,047,829 1.80 

2002 5,483,546 1,964,389 3,519,157 1,115,000 924,470 2,039,470 1.73 

Solid Waste Management 
2011 $ 7,628,127 6,386,050 1,242,077 210,000 132,425 342,425 3.63 

2010 7,377,385 8,482,526 200,000 140,425 340,425 

2009 7,664,336 4,482,819 3,181,517 195,000 148,225 343,225 9.27 

2008 8,537,520 5,701,312 2,836,208 190,000 155,825 345,825 8.20 

Includes parking meter revenues that were deposited to the General Fund but are pledged per bond ordinance. 

Information in this table does not agree with information in the transmittal letter of the City'S CAFR because that information is calculated 
in accordance with specific requirements of the bond covenants. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 

GENERAL FUND 
SUMMARY CASH FLOW STATEMENT - CASH BASIS 

FOR LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FY 2011 F.Y. 2010 F.Y. 2009 FY 2008 FY 2007 FY 2006 F.Y. 2005 FY 2004 F.Y. 2003 FY. 2002 

Cash & Investment Balance -

September 1 of Year Indicated 14,597,487 16,286,626 15,738,481 14,632,274 13,475,643 18,948,253 23,521,130 26,784,845 26,589,993 24,802,768 

Receipts 

Property Tax 31,449,267 31,486,553 33,783,984 32,181,660 31,454,763 28,366,526 26,727,618 24,546,532 22,780,085 23,353,414 

City Sales & Use Tax 57,959,545 54,925,013 54,255,376 55,733,297 53,960,485 54,270,346 53,781,209 51,869,477 48,657,268 45,393,492 

Other Income 33,232,580 27,906,103 27,389,492 26,270,119 27,663,641 25,390,112 25,620,145 23,615,320 24,933,838 26,342,414 

Total Receipts 122,641,392 114,317,669 115,428,852 II 4, 185,076 II 3,078,889 108,026,984 106,128,972 100,031,329 96,371,191 95,089,320 

Less Disbursements 120,296,470 II 6,006,808 114,880,707 II 3,078,869 111,922,258 113,499,594 II 0,70 I ,849 103,295,044 96,176,339 93,302,095 

Cash & Investment Balance -

August 31 of Year Indicated 16,942,409 14,597,487 16,286,626 15,738,481 14,632,274 13,475,643 18,948,253 23,521,130 26,784,845 26,589,993 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
GENERAL BONDED INDEBTEDNESS AND DEBT SERVICE FUND 

SUMMARY CASH FLOW STATEMENT - CASH BASIS 
FOR LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

F.Y 2011 FY 2010 F.y. 2009 F.y. 2008 F.y. 2007 F.y. 2006 FY 2005 F.y. 2004 F.Y 2003 FY 2002 

Cash Balance - September 1 
of Year Indicated 2,941,245 3,533,968 4,201,889 4,057,088 2,761,491 3,364,608 3,570,557 2,935,997 3,440,537 3,099,198 

Receipts: 

Property Tax 5,337,610 5,517,878 5,689,007 5,709,454 5,460,690 2,973,410 5,607,615 5,387,468 5,883,592 6,340,938 

Interest Income 28,331 60,063 131,475 153,977 84,935 86,812 83,286 48,595 32,298 53,873 

Bond Proceeds 20,236,484 6,597,635 9,436,083 

Other Income 116,758 124,279 173,446 1,003,173 1,927,112 2,935,603 149,038 691,340 240,110 232,009 

Total ReceIpts 25,719,183 5,702,220 5,993,928 6,866,604 7,472,737 5,995,825 12,437,574 6,127,403 15,592,083 6,626,820 

Disbursements: 

Bonds Paid 2,720,000 4,110,000 4,320,000 4,260,000 3,950,000 4,250,000 3,850,000 3,215,000 4,177,765 4,137,254 

Bonds Defeased 9,609,774 

Interest Paid 1,753,957 2,178,545 2,335,411 2,456,373 2,217,610 2,342,582 2,197,207 2,271,548 2,309,084 2,144,322 

Transfer to Trustee 21,746,822 6,504,876 

Other Di sbursements 204,668 6,398 6,438 5,430 9,530 6,360 91,440 6,295 3,905 

Total Disbursements 26,425,447 6,294,943 6,661,849 6,721,803 6,177,140 6,598,942 12,643,523 5,492,843 16,096,623 6,285,481 

Equity Transfer 

Cash Balance - August 31 
of Year Indicated 2,234,981 2,941,245 3,533,968 4,201,889 4,057,088 2,761,491 3,364,608 3,570,557 2,935,997 3,440,537 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVOLVING FUND 

SUMMARY CASH FLOW STATEMENT - CASH BASIS 
FOR LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2009 F.Y 2008 FY 2007 FY 2006 F.Y 2005 F.Y 2004 F.Y 2003 F.Y 2002 

Cash & Investment Balance -
September I of Year Indicated 4,302,257 4,161,711 11,148,146 9,991,053 8,846,000 7,583,251 7,830,502 6,910,967 6,586,633 3,778,207 

Receipts. 

Special Assessment Collections 996,209 984,301 954,672 1,235,621 1,257,112 1,476,284 1,208,686 1,654,695 1,271,575 1,360,347 

Interest on Special Assessments 106,379 148,383 112,749 179,258 188,349 189,927 204,108 267,298 346,725 294,839 

City's Share of Costs 233,615 292,420 34,802 187,957 723,038 578,992 116,009 97,107 2,145,574 

Developers' Share of Costs 4,617 

Bond Proceeds 1,200,000 

Interest on Investments 60,248 135,149 335,273 453,282 340,274 254,809 217,996 140,289 130,555 137,143 

Miscellaneous 38,456 33,964 49,403 74,657 30,687 288,482 195,535 474,438 

Total Receipts 2,634,907 1,560,253 1,437,496 1,902,125 2,023,095 2,718,715 2,240,469 2,466,773 2,041,497 4,416,958 

Disbursements: 

Construction Costs 2,081,765 1,113,691 861,203 742,698 766,768 1,066,513 1,796,239 1,399,323 1,560,456 1,090,434 

Bonds Paid 55,000 100,000 105,000 105,000 110,000 

Equity Transfer 7,554,009 

Interest Paid on Bonds & Notes 3,758,342 37,581 3,425 10,420 17,534 24,762 

Other Refunds & Expenses 337,877 306,016 8,719 2,334 18,693 389,453 588,056 32,495 34,173 383,336 

Total Disbursements 6,177,984 1,419,707 8,423,931 745,032 878,042 1,455,966 2,487,720 1,547,238 1,717,163 1,608,532 

Cash & Investment Balance -
August 31 of Year Indicated 759,180 4,302,257 4,161,711 11,148,146 9,991,053 8,846,000 7,583,251 7,830,502 6,910,967 6,586,633 
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MAYOR CHRIS BEUTLER 
lincoln,ne.goY 

Office of !h~ Mayor 
m South 10!n Street 

Suite 301 
lincoln, Nebraska 685!l8 

402·441·7511 
·1120 

LINCOLN 

February 17, 2012 

Dear Citizens and Public Officials: 

.,. It is my pleasure to submit the City of Lincoln's Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2011, 

Ensuring both fiscal and operational accountability in our use of public resources is a 
priority for my Administration, and this report is essential to that effort, This report 
provides a complete and accurate picture of the City's financial status and fulfills our 
continuing disclosure responsibilities in accordance with governmental reporting 
standards. 

Our ability to manage the City's fiscal amlirs and provide a full disclosure of the 
City'S fiscal condition is exhibited by the unqualified audit opinion that follows. I 
am proud to report that the 2010 report submitted to the Government Finance 
Officers Association was recognized with the prestigious Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the 28th consecutive year. This 
recognition is a credit to the City and a compliment to our dedicated Finance 
Department. 

I would like to thank the Finance Department employees for their commitment in 
dealing with these complex accounting issues and to all City departments for their 
cooperation in the preparation of this document. 

Sincerely, 

Chris Beutler 
Mayor of Lincoln '\ 
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February 17, 2012 

Finante !)epartmem 
Steve Hubka, Interim finance Dimtor 

m South 10th Street 
Suite 103 

tinco!n, Nebraska 68)08 

MAYOR CHRIS BEUTlER 

402-441-7411 
fax: 402-441·8325 

lintoln.ne.gov 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Lincoln: 

LINCOLN 

80th the City Charier and State law require an annual audit of the City's funds and accounts be made by a 
recognized independem and qualified accountant covering all financial transactions, affair~, and financial 
condition of the Cily, with the audit report published within six months after the dose of the fiscal year. 
Pursuant to this requirement, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Lincoln. 
:-.lebraska for the fiscal year ended August 31,2011, is hereby submitted. 

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data found in this report and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with management. In developing and evaluating the City's 
accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal 
accounting con1rols arc designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurancc regarding the 
safcguarding of assets against loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure the reliability of financial records for 
preparing financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP) and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable a,::surance 
recognizes that: (I) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the 
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

In 2011, the City implemented GASE Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Govcmmental Fund 
Type Definitions, as required for GAAP reporting. As a result, the City's General Fund, as reported on page 
18, now includes approximately $8.4 million of additional heginning fund balance frum what the City 
budgeting and accollnting strudure considers to be other independent funds, Management believes that this 
change decreases the ll'Sefulness of rbe financial reports, in particular the Governmema! Funds Balance Sheet. 
In order to make comparisons to prior year information for our internal reporting purposes, revie\vers will he 
required to reference other lower level statemems and footnotes. 

As a recipient of federal. state and local financial assistance, the City is also responsible for ensuring that an 
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure and document compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations related to these programs. The federal government, under the revised OMB Circular A"D], 
requires local governments that expend $500,000 or more in federal funds in any fiscal year to have a 
financial and compliance audit performed. As part of the City'S Single Audit, tests were made of the City's 
imernal control structure over compliance and its compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including 
those related to major federal t1nancial assistance programs. The Single Audit for the year ended 
August 31,2011, disclosed no material internal control weaknesses, The independent accountants' reports 
arc included in the Single Audit section found at the (,Hd of the CAFR. 

To the best of management's knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all mateda! respects and 
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and financial activities of the City. AH 
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the government's financial activities as 
specified by all currently effective statements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board have been 
included. 
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A finn of licensed certified public accountants has audited the City's financial statements. The goal of the 
independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City are free of 
material misstatement. The audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent 
accountants concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering unqualified 
opinions that the City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2011. are fairly presented in 
confonnity with GAAP. 

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, 
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the fonn of management's discussion 
and analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found in the Financial Section immediately following the 
report of the independent accountants. 

Profile of the City 

The City of Lincoln, capital city of Nebraska, was originally incorporated on April 7, 1869. Lincoln is 
located in the southeastern corner of the state, is midway between Chicago and Denver, and is currently one 
of the fastest growing metro areas in the Midwest. It occupies a land area of approximately 90 square miles, 
serves a popUlation of over 258,000, and in its growth and development has annexed five other municipalities 
so that the City includes most of the urban area of Lancaster County. It enjoys a unique position in Nebraska 
as the center of the state's governmental and educational activities. 

The City operates under a Home Rule Charter and has a Mayor-Council fonn of government with an elected 
full-time chief executive, the Mayor, and an elected legislative body, the Council, composed of seven 
members. Three Council members are elected at large and four by district on a nonpartisan basis for a tenn 
of four years. All legislative powers of the City are exclusively vested in the Council, as well as the power to 
adopt the budget, set the tax levy, and equalize taxes and assessments. The Mayor is responsible for the 
proper conduct of the affairs of the City, with the administration of City government performed under the 
direction of the Mayor through administrative departments. 

The City of Lincoln provides a full range of services, including public safety (police and fire); the 
construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; health; planning and zoning; golf 
courses, parks and recreation; urban development; mass transportation; ambulance transport; electric, water, 
and wastewater utilities; solid waste management; auditorium; parking facilities; and general administrative 
services. 

The City Council exercises budgetary and/or rate setting authority over the City Library and Lincoln Electric 
System (LES), neither of which are legally separate from the City and are thus included as part of the 
primary government. The Lincoln Water System, Lincoln Wastewater System, Emergency Medical 
Services, Solid Waste Management, Parking Facilities and Lots, Golf Courses, Pershing Municipal 
Auditorium, and Community Health Endowment are all part of administrative departments under the 
direction of the Mayor and are included as part of the primary government. The City is considered to be 
financially accountable for the West Haymarket loint Public Agency, and has included the Agency as part of 
the primary government as a blended component unit. Separately audited financial statements are available 
for LES, Lincoln Water System, Lincoln Wastewater System, Emergency Medical Services, Solid Waste 
Management, Parking Facilities, Community Health Pennanent Endowment Trust, and West Haymarket 
loint Public Agency. 

The annual budget serves as the basis for the City of Lincoln's financial planning and control. Following 
public hearings and not later than five days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, the budget is legally 
adopted by resolution of the City Council. Appropriation controls are required at the department level, 
however, as a matter of policy and practice, appropriations generally are controlled at the next level of 
organization (division) or by fund within a department. The Mayor has the authority to transfer balances 
within a depmtment as well as lower appropriations in any fund where actual revenues are lcss than 
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appropriated in order to avoid incun'ing a budget deficit for the year. Appropriation transfers between 
departments may only be authorized by resolution of the City Council. The Council may not make any 
appropriations in addition to those authorized in the annual budget, except in the event of an emergency 
threatening serious loss oflife, health, or property in the community. 

Economic Condition and Outlook 

Population growth is one of the best indicators of a community's economic well being. As such, the Lincoln 
metropolitan area's population growth during the past several years reflects a community that is economically 
viable and is strongly positioned to meet future challenges. 

The Lincoln metropolitan area population base (Lancaster County) continues to demonstrate a pattern of 
sustained growth. According to the U. S. Census figures, the Lincoln metropolitan area population grew by 
77.96 percent since 1960. Lancaster County's rate of growth between 2000 and 20 lO has been 14.0 percent 
or approximately 1.36 percent per year. The 20 I 0 population of Lancaster County has been estimated to be 
in excess of285,000 persons. 

While such a growth rate may be modest by some standards, this healthy pace of expansion places Lincoln as 
one of the fastest growing communities in this region. Recent projections envision Lincoln to continue to 
grow at a rate of over 1 % per year. As importantly, the City of Lincoln continues to absorb about 90% of all 
growth in Lancaster County. 

Lincoln's unemployment rate at August 31, 2011, was 3.7%, well below the national average of 9.1 %, with 
employment strongest in the categories of government, educational & health services, and retail trade. 
Lincoln's current number of construction penn its is down 14% when compared to levels 5 years ago, with a 
corresponding decrease in the value of construction permits of over $80 million. 

To more aggressively pursue economic opportunities, the City, Lancaster County, and LES have partnered to 
hire an economic development coordinator to facilitate job creation in the private sector. In addition, the 
Mayor's Technology Council completed its technology audit, which led to a new strategic plan for economic 
development. 

Net sales and use tax revenue increased $2,633,412 or 4.8% from the previous fiscal year. In relation to this 
primary revenue source, the City is seeing slight signs of recovery from the negative economic factors that 
have affected the local and national economies. 

Long-Term Planning and Major Initiatives 

Urban Development 

The City anticipates approximately $19 million of public expenditures funded through various urban 
development projects and programs over the next three years. Thesc projccts are varied in type and size and 
are located in the Downtown and Haymarket areas, North 27th Street and Havelock business areas, Focus 
Area neighborhoods, the South Capitol blight area, the Antelope Valley project area, West 0, and in low­
moderate income neighborhoods throughout the City. 

Financing will be provided by a variety of sources, including Tax Increment Financing (TIF), Parking 
Revenues, CDBG, HOME, Economic Development Initiative, Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) 
grants, Advanced Land Acquisition funds, Special Assessments, and General Fund. Funding is often 
combined with developer, grant or other private sector funds. 

The City's involvement will vary depending upon the project and could likely include property acquisition, 
relocation and demolition; housing rehabilitation and development; commercial development; and 
construction of public improvements including parking, sidewalks, infrastructure and streetscapes. 
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Ongoing and anticipated projects include: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Downtown Redevelopment Projects: 
1) Block 38 Catalyst One site. 7) Telesis/Meadow Gold project. 
2) Civic Plaza project. 8) Haymarket Hotel and Tool House. 
3) West Haymarket Residential/Retail/Hotel 9) N Street Corridor planning. 

project. 10) P Street Retail Corridor planning. 
4) North Haymarket Arts & Humanities Block. 11) Centennial Mall project. 
5) Block 85. 12) 17th & Q/Credit Union project. 
6) Construction of Haymarket area parking 13) Replace downtown meters with 

garage. advanced technology. 

North 27th Street redevelopment efforts are focusing on the acquisition of blighted properties and 
assembly for redevelopment and new housing construction. 

Antelope Valley Redevelopment Projects: 
1) Plaza Parkway Triangle, phase 1 - Assurity project site. 
2) 19th & K - W JS project site. 
3) 23 rd & P - Antelope Creek Village. 

Havelock Redevelopment on-going projects include streetscape improvements, commercial building 
facade improvements, and park improvements. 

University Place redevelopment of the former Green's Plumbing site. 

• West 0 Street redevelopment projects and historic DLD marker project. 

• NW Corridor redevelopment (West Comhusker Highway). 

• Innovation Campus redevelopment. 

• 84th and Havelock redevelopment. 

• South Capitol redevelopment. 

• 56th and Arbor Road redevelopment. 

• Focus area projects in Malone and South Capitol. 

• 11 th Street streetscape. 

• Prescott Street streetscape, 4th to 48th. 

• Housing rehabilitation programs for quality, affordable housing and home ownership: 
1) Continuation of First-time Homebuyer and Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Loan 

programs. 
2) Partner with NeighborWorks-Lincoln for their Home Ownership Zone in Antelope Valley. 
3) Partner with other non-profit and for-profit housing organizations for affordable housing projects in 

low-to-moderate income neighborhoods under the Mayor's Stronger Safer Neighborhoods Program. 
4) Manage the local affordable housing effort made possible by Federal Economic Stimulus Programs. 

• Real estate major acquisition, negotiation and relocation projects: 
I) For effective transportation: 
../ Antelope Valley transportation projects. ../ Pine Lake Road, 59lh to Hwy 2 . 
../ Antelope Valley redevelopment plan ../ 14th & Cornhusker Hwy safety project. 

catalyst projects. ../ North I st Street, Cornhusker Hwy to 
../ West Haymarket transportation projects. Superior Street. 
../ Yankee Hill Roadway, 70th to 84th Street. ../ RTSD Quiet Zone project. 
../ SW 40lh Street overpass. ../ East Beltway preliminary acquisitions . 
../ 14lh Street, Superior to Alvo Road. ../ South Beltway preliminary acquisitions . 
../ 56th Street, Old Cheney to Shadow Pines. ../ Arterial rehab, executive order, traffic 
../ Coddington & West Van Dorn signal, and Federal Infrastructure 

intersection improvements. Stimulus funded projects . 
../ Old Cheney Road, 70th to 84th Street. 
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• 

2) For environmental quality: 
../ Park sites city-wide. 
../ Antelope Valley storm water projects. 
../ Stevens Creek sanitary sewer Phase III, 

IV &V. 
../ Yankee Hill water main, 56th to 84th 

Street. 
../ 98th Street water main, Holdrege to Alvo. 

3) Relocation activities: 
../ North 27th Street projects . 
../ West Haymarket projects. 
,/ Antelope Valley projects. 

../ 56th & Arbor Road sewer and water 
district projects . 

../ Conservation easements and wetlands 
acquisitions . 

../ Additional projects made possible by 
Federal Infrastructure Stimulus funds . 

Workforce Investment Act funds received by the City provide employment skills to low-income adults 
and youth and also to individuals laid-off from area employers. Funding is provided for GED, Adult 
Education and Literacy Activities, secondary and post-secondary education, and placement in work 
experience and On-the-Job Training with an emphasis on high wage and high demand occupations. 

Services are provided from the Career Center located in the Gold's Building. Partner agencies co­
located at the Center include Operation ABLE, Goodwill Industries, Vocational Rehabilition, Nebraska 
Department of Labor, and Experience Works. Over 20,000 individuals and 500 employers use the 
Center annually. 

Examples of specialized projects this year include: 
1) "The Metro SyNErgy" project in Lincoln and Omaha providing green building teclmology to 

unemployed and incumbent workers. 
2) A specialized work readiness class for youth which combines literacy and numeracy training, GED 

preparation and work readiness curriculum done in collaboration with Southeast Community 
College. 

3) Regional Innovation Network fostering collaboration of education, economic development and 
workforce development leaders in a twelve county southeast Nebraska area focusing training and 
job placement efforts to the target industries of: 
../ Agriculture & Life Sciences . 
../ Advanced Manufacturing . 
../ Transportation & Logistics . 
../ Health Services, and 

Business Services & Information Technology. 

West Haymarket Project 

The West Haymarket Redevelopment Project is a multi-facted endeavor to revitalize the 100 acres of 
underutilized property that lies on the western edge of Lincoln's downtown and Haymarket district. On May 
11, 2010, the citizens of Lincoln voted to approve the issuance of arena bonds which signaled approval for 
the project to proceed. The project involves the relocation and elimination of existing railroad tracks and 
completion of other site preparation activities, the construction of a 16,000 seat civic arena, a community ice 
center, private retail and office space, a new Amtrak Station, residential units, surface and decked parking, 
public gathering areas, street and utility improvement, landscaping, trails and walkways, pedestrian bridges, 
and environmental enhancements. The overall project cost is estimated to be approximately $340 million. 

The West Haymarket Joint Public Agency (WHJPA) is the governmental agency responsible for oversight of 
the project, for issuing bonds, collecting revenue, and making bond payments over the course of the Project. 
Participants in the agency are the City and the Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska. 
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Beginning January 1, 2011, an occupation tax was imposed on car rental, hotel, restaurant and bar charges 
within the City of Lincoln. This revenue has been pledged to repayment of any outstanding WHJPA bonds. 

Antelope Valley Project 

The City of Lincoln, Lower Platte South Natural Resource District and the University of Nebraska-Lincoln 
have joined together through an interlocal agreement to form the Joint Antelope Valley Authority (JAVA). 
JA V A is in the process of implementing the Antelope Valley project, which consists of stormwater, 
transportation and community revitalization strategies. 

The stormwater and transportation portions of the project are scheduled for substantial completion in 2012. 
Redevelopment projects have begun and will progress as flood control work is completed. The channel work 
needed for re-mapping of the floodplain was completed in 2010. 

Projects completed include Fleming Field, Lewis Fields; Military, Y Street, and Vine Street blidges and 
roadways; the BNSF overpass and roadway (Big T & East Leg Bridge and Roadway) near Devaney Center; 
channel work between Salt Creek and J Street; the BNSF railroad bridge project over Antclope Creek; 
landscaping work on the Military, Y Street, Vine Street, Vine to Y, P to Vine, East Leg and Big T roadway 
projects and the BNSF overpass project; roadway construction between P and Y streets; and the J, P, Q, and 
o Street bridges and roadways. 

Work on the north/south roadway between K and P and the South Street bridge project began in 2011 and 
will be completed in 2012. 

The entire project is projected to cost $246 million, which includes all components of the Antelope Valley 
project: community revitalization, flood control, and transportation. 

Wastewater System 

The Lincoln Wastewater System is projecting a capital improvements program in the amount of 
approximately $61,738,000 over the 6-year period of fiscal year 2011-12 through fiscal year 2016-17. Of 
that total, approximately $29,685,000 will be financed by revenue bonds, approximately $4,470,500 will be 
financed by impact fees, $640,000 from TIF funding, with the remaining $26,942,500 to come from utility 
revenue fces. The majority of these dollars are needed for replacement and maintenance of existing 
infrastructure, new infrastructure to serve development in various basins throughout the City, and 
improvements to both the Theresa Street and Northeast treatment plants. 

Water System 

The Lincoln Water System is projecting a capital improvements program in the amount of approximately 
$61,380,000 over the 6-year period of fiscal year 2011-12 through 2016-17. Of these dollars, approximately 
$20,575,000 will be financed through revenue bonds, approximately $4,510,000 will be financed from TIF 
funding, approximately $5,900,000 will be financed through impact fees, with the balance of $30,395,000 
coming from utility revenue fees. The major projects contributing to these total dollars include the 
installation of transmission lines, replacement mains, replacement and new wells, and additional storage 
reservoirs. 

Streets and Highways 

The 2012-2017 Streets and Highways capital improvements program and Transportation improvement 
program identify average annual expenditures of $26 million for the next six years. Funding for these 
projects includes $102 million in City revenues, $33 million in federal aid, and $21 million in other funds. 
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Infrastructure Impact Fees 

The City's growth in both population and employment have created demands for new residential and 
nonresidential development, which in tum creates the need for additional public facilities, including water 
and wastewater systems, arterial streets, and neighborhood parks and trails. The City's laws, taxes, fees, 
utility charges, and other forms of revenue generated from new development do not provide sufficient funds 
to finance these new facilities. 

In response to these funding needs the City of Lincoln passed an ordinance to provide for the imposition of 
impact fees to ensure that facilities are available to serve new growth and that new development bears its 
proportionate share of the cost of improvements to the City's facilities. Impact fees for all types of new 
construction have been set and adopted by the City Council and began June, 2003. 

Pension Costs 

The City cunently contributes $2 for every $1 contributed by employees in the civilian retirement plans. In 
an effort to control this significant budget item, the City and three of four civilian unions, as well as non 
union employees which includes Department Directors and Mayoral Aides, have agreed to change these 
plans to a $1.29 to $1 match for new employees hired after the effective date. The City is unable to legally 
change the match for cunent employees. The City anticipates saving 20 to 25 percent in retirement costs for 
each employee hired under this new anangement. 

Property Tax Collections 

As of August 31,2011, current tax collections by the County Treasurer were 96.69% of the tax levy, a 
decrease of .20% from last year. Allocations of property tax levy by purpose are as follows: 

City Tax Leyy by Purpose 2010-2011 2009-2010 2008-2009 

General Fund .1739 .1772 .1806 
Library .0398 .0398 .0396 
Social Security .0141 .0097 .0129 
Police and Fire Pension .0261 .0251 .0201 
General Obligation Debt .0340 .0361 .0347 

.2879 .2879 .2879 
Parking Facilities 

The City of Lincoln operates the following parking garages: 

Facility Number of Stalls Date Opened 

Center Park 1,048 November, 1978 
Cornhusker Square 405 December, 1983 
University Square 436 April,1990 
Que Place 773 October, 1994 
Caniage Park 710 February, 1995 
Market Place 433 August, 2000 
Haymarket 420 August, 2002 

The City'S parking garages have been built to promote downtown redevelopment efforts by working with 
private industry in providing necessary parking to various businesses in the downtown area. 

Revenue generated by the parking facilities and on-street parking meters, as well as unappropriated street 
construction funds, are pledged for debt service of the 2001 Parking Revenue Bonds, the 2010B Parking 
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Revenue Bonds, and the 2011 Parking Revenue and Refunding Bonds. Comparative data for the past two 
fiscal years are presented in the following table: 

Operating Revenues 
Operating Income Before Depreciation 
Debt Service 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

Solid Waste Management 

2010-2011 

$ 7,124,602 
3,518,594 
1,944,138 

1.81 

2009-2010 

6,747,738 
3,407,137 
1,998,056 

1.71 

The City of Lincoln owns and operates a municipal solid waste landfill and a construction and demolition 
debris landfill that are subject to the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency rule Solid Waste Disposal 
Facility Criteria. which establishes closure and postclosure care requirements. As of August 31, 2011, the 
City estimates that it will incur costs approximating $21 million to adhere to such requiremcnts (see Notc 18 
of Notes to the Financial Statements). 

Water and Wastewater System 

The City's Wastewater Utility System showed an increase in operating revenues and an increase in operating 
income. Comparative data for the past two fiscal years is presented in the following table: 

Wastewater System 

Operating Revenues 
Operating Income 
Revenue Available For Debt Service 
Debt Service 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

2010-2011 

$22,973,653 
3,301,436 

11,002,406 
6,512,609 

l.69 

2009-2010 

21,703,427 
2,875,498 

10,807,502 
6,426,444 

l.68 

The City's Water Utility System showed an increase in operating revenues and an increase in operating 
income. Comparative data for the past two fiscal years is presented in the following table: 

Water System 

Operating Revenues 
Operating Income 
Revenue Available For Debt Service 
Debt Service 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

Lincoln Electric System (LES) 

2010-2011 

$28,559,484 
5,459,411 

15,174,479 
9,501,857 

l.60 

2009-2010 

25,135,127 
3,881,476 

12,424,175 
9,508,097 

1.31 

The City owns and operates its own electric utility system that is managed by an administrative board. 
Actions of the board with regard to rates, budgets, and long-term financing are subject to final review and 
approval by the City Council. In accordance with Section 4.24.090 of the Lincoln Municipal Code, LES 
operates on a January 1 - December 31, fiscal year. Audited financial infonnation as of and for LES' fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2010, is included in the City'S August 31, 2011, financial statements. 

Certificate of Achievement 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Lincoln, Nebraska, for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended August 31,2010. This was the twenty-eighth 
consecutive year that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual 
financial report. This report must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America and applicable legal requirements. 
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our curren! comprehensive 
al)l1I1<11 financial report continues lo meet the Certificale of Achievemelll Program's reqniremenrs and we are 
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another cenificate. 
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CPAs & Advisors 

1248 "0" SV('C:1. Suite 1040 

lincoln. NE 6115D8 1461 

402.473.1600 Fax 402.473.1'698 www.bkd.com 

Independent Accountants' Report on Financial Statements 
and Supplementary Information 

The Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Lincoln, Nebraska 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lincoln, 
Nebraska (the City) as of and for the year ended August 31,2011, which collectively comprise the City of 
Lincoln's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Lincoln Electric System 
which represent 58%, 34% and 78%, respectively, of the total assets, net assets and revenues of the 
business-type activities. Those financial statements were audited by other accountants whose report 
thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Lincoln 
Electric System, is based solely on the report of the other accountants. The prior-year summarized 
comparative financial information in these statements has been derived from the City's basic financial 
statements as of and for the year ended August 31, 2010, and in our report dated February 23, 2011, we 
expressed unqualified opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with aUditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of the 
other accountants provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other accountants, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Lincoln, Nebraska as of August 31,2011, and the respective changes in financial position and 
cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund and 
street construction fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

As discussed in Note I, in 2011 the City changed its method of accounting for fund balances through 
retroactive application to prior year's fmancial statements. 

.-
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The accompanying management's discussion and analysis and the schedules of funding progress and 
employer contributions as listed in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board. We and the other accountants have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally 
of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required 
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory section and statistical 
section as listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

February 17,2012 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The management of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska (the City) offers readers of the City's financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended 
August 31,2011. Please consider this discussion in conjunction with the additional inforn1ation provided in 
the Letter of Transmittal (beginning on page vii) and the transactions, events and conditions reflected in the 
City's financial statements (beginning on page 16). 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at August 31, 2011, by $1,599,891,832 (net assets). Of this 
amount, $321,043,795 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government's ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. 

The City's total net assets increased by $53,322,049. Of this amount, $27,824,537, or 52 percent, was 
an increase in governmental activities and $25,497,512, or 48 percent, related to business-type activities. 

As of August 31,2011, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$426,496,342, an increase of $239,607,770 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total fund balance, 
12 percent, or $50,502,001, is available for spending at the City'S discretion (unrestricted fund balance). 

As of August 31, 2011, unrestricted fund balance for the general fund was $29,336,927, or 27 percent of 
total general fund expenditures. Due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 54, reference must 
be made to page 76 of this report for an accurate comparison with the prior year balance. 

The City's total bonded debt increased by $287,585,000 (33 percent) during the current fiscal year. The 
West Haymarket Joint Public Agency (JPA) issued $300,000,000 of bonded debt in the current year. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City'S basic financial statements. 
The City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other 
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT -WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City'S assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the year 
ended August 31, 20 II. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported 
in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected 
taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general administrative services, public safety, 
streets and highways, health, planning and zoning, parks and recreation, libraries, aging services, job 

5 



programs, urban development, mass transportation, engineering, self-insurance, and fleet management. The 
business-type activities of the City include water, wastewater and electric utilities; ambulance transport; solid 
waste management; golf courses; auditorium; and parking. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 16-17 of this report. 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local govemments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds 
of the City can be divided into three categories: govemmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Govemmental funds - Govemmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, govemmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information may be useful in evaluating the City's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of govemmental funds is nalTower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare the information presented for govemmental funds with similar information presented 
for govemmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the govemment's near-term financing decisions. Both the govemmental 
fund balance sheet and the govemmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between govemmental funds and govemmental 
activities. 

The City maintains thirty-one individual govemmental funds. Infonnation is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues. expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the General fund, the Street Construction fund, and the West Haymarket lP A 
fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a 
single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor govemmental funds is 
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund and most other governmental funds. A 
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General and Street Construction major funds to 
demonstrate compliance with this budget. The West Haymarket JP A major fund is not required to adopt an 
annual budget so a budgetary comparison has not been provided. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages) 8-23 of this report. 

Proprietary funds - The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. 
The City uses enterprise funds to account for its parking facilities and lots; golf courses; auditorium; solid 
waste management; ambulance services; and wastewater, water, and electric systems. Internal service funds 
are used to accumulate and allocate costs intemally among the City'S various functions. The City uses 
internal service funds to account for its data processing, engineering, insurance, fleet management, municipal 
services center operations, telecommunications, and copy services. Because these services predominantly 
benefit govemmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within govemmental 
activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the govemment-wide financial statements, only in 
more detaiL The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water, 
Wastewater and Electric Systems, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City. Data from the 
other enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Intemal service funds are also 
combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund 
data for these funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-26 of this report. 
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Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not available to SUppOlt the City's own programs. The accounting used for 
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27-28 of this report. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 
30-70 of this report. 

OTHER INFORMA nON 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary infonnation concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide 
pension benefits to its police and fire employees, and to provide other postemployment benefits. Required 
supplementary information can be found on page 71 of this report. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In 
the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $1,599,891,832 at August 31, 2011. 

By far the largest portion of the City'S net assets (63 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, buildings, improvements, utility plant, infrastructure, and machinery and equipment), less any related 
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to 
liquidate these liabilities. 

Current and Other Assets 
Capital Assets 

Total Assets 
Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding 

Other Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 
Net Assets: 

Invested in Capital Assets, 
Net of Rdatcd Debt 

Restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total Net Assets 

S 

City Of Lincoln 
Condensed Statements of Net Assets 

August 31, 2011 and 2010 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 

2011 2010 2011 2010 

651,101,529 398,115,532 247.265.929 246.650,963 

713,530,269 622,796,373 1,437,335,316 1,417,922,340 

1,364,631,798 1,020,911,905 1,684,601,245 1,664,573,303 

504,062,995 189,192,032 766,638,529 773,188.114 

22,171,662 21,147,269 156,468.025 155,388,010 

526,234,657 210,339,301 923,106,554 928,576,124 

386.451,715 482,099,420 622,950,944 598,053.416 

235,695,091 121.155,820 33,750,287 37,040,667 

216,250,335 207.317,364 104,793,460 100,903,096 

838,397.141 810.572,604 761,494,691 735,997,179 

Total 

2011 2010 

898,367,458 644,766,495 

2,150.865,585 2.040,718,713 

3,049,233,043 2,685.485,208 
1,270,701.524 962,380,146 

178,639,687 176.535,279 

1,449,341,211 1,138.915.425 

1,009,402,659 1,080,152,836 

269,445,378 158,196.487 

321,043,795 308,220.460 

1,599,891,832 1,546,569,783 

An additional portion of the City'S net assets (17 percent) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on their use. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (20 percent) may be used to meet 
the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At August 31, 2011, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for 
the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities_ 
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City Of Lincoln 
Condensed Statements of Activities 

For the Years Ended August 31, 2011 and 2010 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 'Ibtal 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 
Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 

Charges for Services $ 46,426,307 41,701.425 335.205,232 313,690,349 381,631,539 355,391,774 
Operating Grants and Contributions 73,594,748 55,013,696 73,594,748 55,013.696 
Capital Grants and ContJibutions 7,982,667 I 6.1 71.I 92 4.645,062 5,767,531 12,627.729 21,938,723 

General Revenues: 
Property Tax 48,621,668 48,637,701 48,621.668 48,637,701 
Sales and Use Tax 57,996,100 55,362,688 57.996,100 55,362.688 
Occupation Tax 20,403,399 10,847,214 2.059,361 1,984,400 22,462.760 12,831,614 
Other Taxes 16.378,863 I 5,82 l,l 71 16,378,863 15.821,171 
Unrestricted Grants and Conmbutions 1,927.588 2.006,071 1,927.588 2,OO6,O7l 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 1,370,358 1,926.976 1,564.708 1,673,to3 2,935,066 3.600,079 
Other 2,309,497 793,365 343,835 893.109 2,653,332 1,686,474 

Total Revenues 277,011.195 248,281.499 343,818,198 324,008,492 620,829.393 572,289,991 

Expenses: 
General Government 40,059,839 36,991.820 40,059,839 36,991,820 
Pub lic Safety 81.218,142 75,364,591 81,218,142 75,364.591 
Streets and Highways 39,840,551 38,150.193 39,840,551 38,150,193 
Culture and Recreation 26.578,448 25,713,710 26.578,448 25,713.710 
Economic OppOltunity 16,336,855 17,198.314 16,336,855 17.198,314 
Health and Welfare 21,153,869 20,840,847 21.153,869 20,840.847 
Mass Transit 12,007,410 1l,198,681 12,007,410 11,198,681 
Equipment Management 1,882,136 1.767,774 1.882,136 1,767,774 
Engineering Services 1,219,084 829,470 1,219,084 ~29,470 

Interest on Long-Term Debt 11,568,353 6,373,674 11,568,353 6,373,674 
Parking 5,632,973 5.475,157 5,632,973 5,475.157 
Golf Courses 3.414,074 3,165,446 3,414,074 3,165,446 
Auditorium 2,202,234 2.243,518 2.202,234 2,243.518 
Solid Waste Management 8.490,392 10,607,775 8,490.392 10,607,775 
Ambulance Transport 3,940.669 3.819,895 3.940,669 3,819.895 
Wastewater 23.135,157 22,265,579 23,135.157 22,265,579 
Water 26,084,158 23.469,948 26.084,158 23,469,948 
Elecmc 242,743,000 229,241,000 242,743.000 229,241,000 

Total Expenses 251.864,687 234,429,074 315,642,657 300,288,318 567.507,344 534,717.392 

Increase in Net Assets Before Transfers 25,146,508 13,852,425 28,175,541 23,720,174 53,322.049 37,572,599 
Transfers 2,678,029 2,581,647 (2,678.029) (2,581,647) 
Increase in Net Assets 27,824,537 16,434,072 25,497,512 21,138,527 53,322,049 37,572,599 
Net Assets - Beginning 810.572,604 794,138,532 735,997,179 714,858,652 1,546,569,783 1 ,508,997,184 
Net Assets - Ending $ 838,397,141 810,572,604 761,494,691 735,997.179 1,599.891,832 1,546,569,783 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 
Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $27,824,537, accounting for 52 percent of the total 
growth in the net assets of the City of Lincoln. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

• The City's current year contribution to the Joint Antelope Valley Authority amounted to $6,462,467, of 
which a significant portion is federally funded. 

• Sales taxes increased by approximately $2.6 million (4.8 percent) during 2011 after showing an increase 
of 1.9 percent in the prior year. 

• Occupation taxes increased by approximately $9.5 million (88 percent) in the current year with the 
January, 2011 imposition of a 2 percent tax on bar and restaurant revenues and a 4 percent tax on car 
rental and hotel revenues, to be used to finance the JPA activities and repayment of the Agency's 
outstanding debt. 
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES 

Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $25,497,512, accounting for 48 percent of the total 
growth in the government's net assets. Key elements of this increase are as follows: 

• Water System operating revenues increased by $3,424,357 (13.6 percent) from 2010. Effective 
February, 2011, there was a 5% user fee increase and metered sales were up 8 percent due to a dry fall 
and spring. Operating expense increased $1,846,422 (8.7 percent) due to increased personnel, energy 
and chemical costs. 

• Wastewater System operating revenues increased $1,270,226 (5.9 percent) primarily due to a 5% user 
fee increase implemented with the billings starting in February, 201l. Sanitary sewer bills for residential 
customers are based on water usage during a two-month period during the winter and remain the same 
over the balance of the following ten-month period. Non-residential customers are billed for sanitary 
sewer based on their monthly water usage. Operating expenses increased $844,288 (4.5 percent) due to 
increased personnel and chemical costs. 
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Lincoln Electric System operating revenue in 20lO was 6% higher than 2009. Retail revenue was 8 
percent higher due to the impact of a 2.4 percent increase on January 1,2010 and energy sales were up 
compared to the mild summer weather in 2009. Wholesale revenue increased 1 percent duc to higher 
prices although energy sales decreased 8 percent. 

LES recorded capital contributions of$1.7 million. 

Lincoln Water and Wastewater Systems reported capital contributions of approximately $1.9 million and 
$1.1 million, respectively. 

Lincoln Water and Wastewater Systems reported increased losses in nonoperating activities in 2011 due 
to higher interest expense and the reduction of interest income and insurance recoveries, respectively. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. 
In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources 
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of August 31, 201 L the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$426,496,342, an increase of $239,607,770 in comparison with the prior year. Of this total amount, 12 
percent constitutes unrestricted fund balance, which is available for spending at the City's discretion. The 
remainder of fund balance is restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has 
already been committed to: 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

long-term loans receivable ($19,837,000), 

pay debt service ($16,060All), 

capital construction and acquisition ($252,381,333), 

West Haymarket Joint Public Agency activities ($9,640,388), 

donor and grantor purposes ($5,832,975), 

generating income for the purpose of funding health and health-related programs for the citizens of 
Lincoln ($56,077,332), and 

a variety of other purposes ($16,164,902). 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At August 31, 2011, the unrestricted fund balance 
of the General Fund was $29,336,927, while total fund balance reached $41,753,836. As a measure of the 
General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both tmrestricted fund balance and total fund balance 
to total fund expenditures. Unrestricted fund balance represents 27 percent of total general fund 
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 38 percent of that same amount. 

The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $2,910,783 during 2011. For the current fiscal 
year, appropriated General fund balance, used as a funding source for the budget increased only 2.8 percent 
over 2010. General Fund balances as a future funding source are projected to decrease as the City reduces 
balances, measured at year end, to a goal of 15% of the projected General Fund budget five years in the 
future. 

The Street Construction Fund had a total fund balance of $36,478,568, which is to be used in the constmction 
and maintenance of street and highways. The net increase in fund balance during 2011 in the Street 
Construction Fund was $4,150,021, the result of changes in the demand for JA V A funding. 

The West Haymarket JPA Fund had a fund balance of $225,432,904 which is to be used for funding 
improvements of the West Haymarket Redevelopment Project. This balance is the result of the settlement of 
$300,000,000 in current year bonds. 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Wastewater System, Water System, Electric System, and other enterprise funds 
amounted to $18,186,672, $14,313,737, $75,913,000 and $(180,020), respectively, at August 31, 2011 
(December 31, 2010 for LES). Factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed 
in the discussion of the City's business-type activities. 
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GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget were relatively minor (decrease of 
$(244,236) in appropriations) and can be briefly summarized as follows: 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

$( 1 ,878,951) in miscellaneous changes in general government activities. 
$1,054,839 in increases allocated to public safety. 
$32,191 in increases to streets & highways. 
$65,859 in increases allocated to parks and recreation. 
$481,826 in increases allocated for General Fund transfers to other City funds. 

Variances between actual General Fund revenues and expenditures and the final amended budget included 
the following: 

• $2,181,663 positive variance in real estate and personal property tax. Actual property collections were 
96.69% of the 2010 levy, while estimated tax revenue is based on 90% collections as provided by the 
City Charter. 

• $1,642,531 positive variance in sales tax receipts. Collections exceeded projections that were based on 
prior years activity. 

• $1,996,370 positive variance in miscellaneous general government expenditures. Significant savings 
were realized in several service line items that are reappropriated to cover ongoing future expenditures. 

• $(1,140,687) negative variance in street lighting function expenditures. This variance was the result of 
additions related to both normal construction as well as Antelope Valley Project construction. 

eAPlT AL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRA TlON 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type actIvIties as of 
August 31, 2011, amounts to $2,150,865,585 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, streets, bridges, storm sewers, 
electric plant, and water and sewer plant. The total increase in the City's investment in capital assets for 
2011 was 5.40 percent (a 14.57 percent increase for governmental activities and a 1.37 percent increase for 
business-type activities). 

Major capital asset events during 2011 included the following: 

• A variety of street construction widening and expansion projects for eXIstmg streets and bridges 
continued. Along with new construction of streets and drainage projects, construction-in-progress of 
infrastructure as of August 31,2011 reached $88,140,000. 

• The City's bus system, StarTran, purchased thirteen new buses at a cost of $4,642,638. 
• The West Haymarket Joint Public Agency (JPA) has investment in capital assets of $80,856,914, which 

includes roads and utility work, arena design and initial construction, site preparation, land purchases, 
and environmental remediation. 

• The City parking system's continued investment in a new downtown parking garage reached 
approximately $8.6 million. 
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Land $ 
Buildings 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Utility Plant 
Infrastructure 
C onstnlction-in-progress 
Total $ 

City Of Lincoln 
Capital Assets (net of depreciation) 

August 31,2011 and 2010 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2011 20lO 2011 2010 
69,850.907 63.866,125 24,144,286 21,950.552 
49,744.391 45.950,230 122,650,291 126,543.523 
37,876,916 38,189,441 445,301,114 446, 114,5 77 
35.685,017 31,600,937 11.894,995 12,232,011 

753,770.000 760,709,000 
352,448,061 354,568.639 
167,924,977 88,621.001 79,574,630 50.372,677 
713,530.269 622,796,373 1,437,335.316 1,417,922,340 

Total 
2011 20lO 

93,995,193 85.816,677 
172.394.682 172.493.753 
483.178,030 484.304,018 

47.580,012 43,832,948 
753.770,000 760,709,000 
352,448,061 354,56M39 
247,499,607 138,993,678 

2,150.865,585 2,040,718,713 

Additional information on the City'S capital assets can be found in Note 7 of the notes to the financial 
statements on pages 46-48 of this report. 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
At August 31, 2011, the City of Lincoln had total bonded debt outstanding of $1,158,233,000. Of this 
amount, $419,663,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. The remainder of the 
City's debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds). 

General Obligation Bonds 

Tax Supported Bonds 

Revenue Bonds 

Total 

$ 

$ 

City Of Lincoln 
Outstanding Bonded Debt 
August 31,2011 and 2010 
(dollar amounts in thousands) 

Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities 

2011 2010 2011 2010 

419.663 118,383 

5,920 6,605 

732,650 745,660 

425,583 124,988 732,650 745,660 

Total 

2011 2010 

419.663 118,383 

5,920 6.605 

732,650 745,660 

1.158,233 870,648 

The City'S total bonded debt increased by $287,585,000 (33 percent) during the current fiscal year. This 
significant increase was the result of the lP A issuance of $300,000,000 in bonds to fund a pOltion of the 
Agency's construction costs. 

The City maintains the following credit ratings: 

General Obligation Bonds 
West Haymarket JP A Bonds 
Antelope Valley Project Bonds 
Water Revenue Bonds 
Wastewater Revenue Bonds 

MBIA insured 
Underlying 

Parking Revenue Bonds 
Lincoln Electric System 

Revenue Bonds 
2005 Revenue Bonds 

FSA insured 
2007 Revenue Bonds 

FGIC insured 
Commercial Paper - tax exempt 

Moody's 
Investors 
Service 

Aaa 
Aal 
Aa2 
Aa2 

Aaa 
Aa2 
Al 

Aa2 

Aaa 
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Standard 
And 

Poor's 

AAA 
AAA 
AA 
AA 

AAA 
AA+ 

A 

AA 

AAA 

AAA 
AI+ 

Fitch 
Investors 
Service 

AA 

AAA 

AAA 
Fl+ 



Under the City's Home Rule Charter, there is no legal debt limit. 

Additional infonnation on the City's long-tenn debt can be found in Note 9 of the notes to the financial 
statements on pages 50-55 of this report. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Property tax revenue required to fund the 2012 budget increased $4,046,259 or 9.83 percent from the 
prior year. Total change in the tax base is estimated at .12 percent, with an increase to the tax rate from 
.28788 to .31580, an increase of 9.7 percent over the prior year. 

The adequacy of fees charged for City service cost recovery is examined each year and some fee 
increases are included in each annual budget. Without periodic increases in fees, amounts collected, or 
other revenue adjustments, inflationary and other cost increases would need to be covered by additional 
property tax revenue or the levels of service provided would need to be reduced. Revenue adjustments 
in 2012 include a "Return on Equity" payment from LES estimated at $5,896,643. 

An increase of $1,376,028 in funding for the Police and Fire Pension Plan was added to fund nonnal cost 
and to provide resources to amortize the unfunded actuarial liability . 

Sales tax collections for 2011 finished 2.92 percent ahead of projections. 2012 projections reflect a 1.20 
percent increase over 2011 actual collections. 

The governor and state legislature eliminated in lieu of tax payments (State Aid) to municipalities, which 
results in a revenue decrease to the City of$I,840,672. 

Staffing changes included in the 2011-2012 budget result in a decrease for all funds of 16.18 full-time 
equivalents. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City's budget for the 2012 fiscal year. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Lincoln's finances for all those 
with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the infornlation provided in this 
report or requests for additional financial infonnation should be addressed to the City of Lincoln, Finance 
Department, 555 South 10th Street, Lincoln, NE 68508. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

AUGUST 31, 2011 
With Summarized Financial Information as of August 31 , 2010 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 145,984,381 24.986,970 
Investments 236,874.740 47,925,521 
Invested Securities Lending Collateral 
Receivables, (Net of Allowance tor Uncol!ectibles) 33.828,857 46,178.527 
Internal Balances (l ,351 ,694) 1.351,694 
Due from Other Governments 29,415.277 4,305 
Inventories 2,221,408 15,591,515 
Plant Operation Assets 13,070.000 
Prepaid Items 700,370 1.131,985 
Deferred Charges and Other Assets 6,162.166 12,745,574 
Restricted Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.051,780 15,907.805 
In vestments 37,160,000 68.149,585 
Receivables 222,448 

Investment in Joint Venture 159,054,244 
Capital Assets: 

Non-depreciable 237,775,884 103.718,916 
Depreciable (Net) 475,754,385 1,333,616,400 

Total Assets 1,364.631,798 1,684,60l.245 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 12,214,633 42,253,871 
Accrued Liabilities 4.837,343 13,043.745 
Due to Other Governments 610,824 153,941 
Unearned Revenue 496.679 935,274 
Obligations under Securities Lending 
Notes Payable 90,000.000 
Accrued Interest Payable 4.012,183 10.o81.l94 
Noncun'ent Liabilities: 

Payable within One Year 25,159,509 33,747,222 
Payable in More Than One Year 478.903,486 732,891,307 

Total Liabilities 526,234.657 923.106.554 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 386,451,715 622,950,944 
Restricted for: 

Debt Service, Net of Related Debt 7,806.827 29,008,060 
Capital Projects 127 ,992.825 1,255.350 
Grantor Loan Programs 19.837,000 
Other 22,167,162 3,486,877 
Trust Donations: 

Expendable 1,653,945 
Nonexpendable 160,000 

Health Care: 
Expendable 19,077.332 
Nonexpendable 37,000,000 

Unrestricted 216.250,335 104,793,460 

Total Net Assets $ 838.397,141 761,494.691 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Totals 
2011 2010 

170,971.351 82,317,793 
284.800,261 148,704,783 

1,025.994 
80,007 .384 70.968.173 

29,419,582 27,971,533 
17,812,923 19,046,403 
13,070,000 14.091.000 

1,832.355 1,828,168 
18,907,740 16,633,543 

16,959,585 18.790.915 
105,309,585 90.547,696 

222,448 248,717 
159,054,244 152,591.777 

341,494.800 224.810,355 
1,809.3 70 .785 1,815,908,358 

3.049,233,043 2,685,485.208 

54.468,504 51,829,414 
17,881,088 17,237.929 

764,765 819,392 
1,431,953 1,624,367 

1,025,994 
90,000,000 92,000.000 
14,093.377 11.998.183 

58.906,73! 55,039,710 
1,211 ,794,793 907,340.436 

1.449,341,211 1,138,915,425 

1 .009,402.659 I ,080.I 52,836 

36,814,887 34,868,834 
129,248,175 42,516.324 

19,837.000 19.566.000 
25,654.039 6,291,153 

1,653,945 1,723,206 
160.000 160.000 

19.077,332 16,070,970 
37,000,000 37,000,000 

321,()43,795 308,220,460 

1.599,891.832 1,546.569,783 



CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 3 1.20 I I 
With Summarized Financial Infonnation for the Year Ended August 31, 2010 

Net (Expense 1 Revenue and 
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Totals 

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities 2011 2010 

Functions/Programs 
Govenlmental Activities: 

General Government $ (40,059,839) 21.544,375 3,109,155 1,021.934 (14,384,375) (14.384,375) (12.962,697) 
Public Safety (81,218,142) 5,730,687 4,675.131 289.798 (70,522.526) (70,522,526 ) (65.685,813 ) 
Streets and Highways (39,840,551 ) 4,087,358 24,184,766 4,612.774 (6,955.653) (6,955,653) (6,559,985) 
Culture and Recreation (26,578.4481 4,114,179 2,880,002 1,945,7:~4 ( 17.638.543) ( 17,638,5431 (18,787,6601 
Economic Opportunity (16.336,855) 2,269.303 12,371,743 (1.695,809) (] ,695.809) 0,852.2(1) 
Health and Welfare (21.153,869) 4,435.710 14,815,283 (1,902,876) (1,902,876) (3,537.257) 
Mass Transit (12.007,410) 1.619,140 7,268,943 (3,119,327) (3,119,327) (4,463,659) 
Equipment Management (1,882,136) 1.626,131 5.000 (251,005) (251,005) (416,580) 
Engineering Services (1,219,084) 995,088 5,135 (218.861) (218,R61 ) (27,929) 
Interest on Long-Term Debt (11,568,353) 4,336 4.289,725 102,302 (7,171,990) (7,171.990) (5,248,980) 

Total Governmental Activities (251,864.687) 46,426,307 73,594,748 7,982,667 ( 123 .860,965 ) (123,860.965) (]21 ,542,761) 

Business-Type Activities: 
Parking Lots (313,810) 363,002 49,192 49,192 82,370 
Golf (3,414,074) 2,759,RIO (654,264) (654,264) (373,791 ) 
Parking Facilities (5,319.163) 7,573,805 4,583 2,259,225 2,259,225 1,658,166 
Municipal Auditorium (2,202.234) 1,606.199 (596,035) (596.035) (648,807) 
Solid Waste Management (R,490,392) 5,555.135 (2.935,257) (2,935,257) (5,294,467) 
Emergency Medical Services (3.940,669) 4,565,087 624,418 624,418 595,929 
Wastewater System (23,135,157) 22,931,019 1,081.660 877,522 X77,522 1.283,437 
Water System (26,084,158) 28,474,175 1,905.819 4,295,836 4,295,836 3,443,725 
Electric System (242,743,000) 261,377,000 1,653,000 20,287,000 20,287,000 18,423,000 

Total Business-Type Activities (315,642.657) 335,205.232 4,645,062 24.207.637 24,207.637 19,169.562 

Total $ (567,507,344) 381,631,539 73,594,748 12,627,729 (123,860,965) 24,207,637 (99,653.328) (102,373,199) 

General R¢venucs: 
Property Tax 48.621,668 48,621.668 48,637,701 
Motor Vehicle Tax 4.284,369 4,284.369 4247,118 

Wheel Tax 12,031,376 12,031,376 11,519.622 

Sales and Use Tax 57,996,100 57,996,100 55,362.688 

Sundry and In Lieu Tax 63.118 63,118 54,431 
Occupation Tax 20,403399 2,059,361 22,462,760 12,831,614 
Unrestricted Grants and Contributions 1,927.588 1,927,588 2,006,071 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings L370,358 1,564,708 2,935J166 3,600,079 

Miscellaneous General Revenues 2,309,497 343.835 2,653.332 1,686,474 

Transfers 2,678,029 (2,678,029) 

Total General Rcvenues and Transfcrs 151,685,502 1,289,875 152,975,377 139,945,798 

Change in l\et Assets 27.824.537 25,497.512 53,322.049 37,572,599 

Nct Assets - Beginning 810,572,604 735,997.l79 1,546,569.783 1,508,997,184 

Net Assets - Ending S 838,397.141 761,494,691 1.599,891,832 1.546,569,783 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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ASSETS 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investment,> 
Receivables, (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles) 
Due from Other Funds 
Due trom Other Governments 
Inventories 
Prepaid Items 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Contracts Payable 
Accmed Liabilities 
Due to Other Funds 
Due to Other Governments 
Unearned Revenue 
Deferred Revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total Fund Balances 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

$ 

$ 

CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
AUGUST 31, 201 I 

Street West Haymarket 
General Construction JPA 

Fund Fund Fund 

4,795,748 4,621,924 123,470,657 
22,850,931 24,333,175 105,940,874 

5,712,901 1,585,226 1,780,646 
1,934.706 5,342,235 

10,290,493 11,044,205 1,622,007 
472,182 450,225 

6,418,988 25,775 
52,475,949 47,376,990 232,839,959 

934,612 1,342,342 6,481,11 I 
146,436 

2,508,561 159,527 
5,714,045 210,877 32,441 

150,093 26,595 

1,414,802 9,012,645 893,503 
10,722,1 13 10,898,422 7,407,055 

6,891,170 450,225 25,775 
5,525,739 22,359,280 225,407,129 

13,750,394 13,669,063 
15,586,533 
41,753,836 36,478,568 225,432,904 
52,475,949 47,376,990 232,839,959 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets llsed in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 
Investment in joint venture is not a tlnancial resource and, therefore, is not reported in the funds. 
Other long-ternl assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain services to individual funds. The m;sets 
and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 

Accmed pension contribution, long-term constmction contracts and other liabilities require the use of unavailable 

financial resources and, theretore, arc not reported in the funds. 
Long-term liabi lities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not 

reported in the fi.mds. 

Net assets of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

8,556,720 
95,784,386 
24,471,836 

3,104,817 
6,199,809 

488,615 
6,500 

138,612,683 

1,888,683 
324,019 

1,640,023 
6,744,955 

253,376 
317,762 

4,612,831 
15,781,649 

37,655,115 
77,046,702 

633.206 
7,636,067 
(140,056) 

122,831,034 
138,612,683 

Total 

141.445,049 
248,909,366 

33,550,609 
10,381.758 
29,156,514 

1,411,022 
6,451,263 

471,305,581 

10,646,748 
470,455 

4,308,11 I 
12,702,318 

430,064 
317,762 

15,933,781 
44,809,239 

45,022,285 
330,338,850 

633,206 
35,055,524 
15,446,477 

426,496,342 

691,479,451 
159,054,244 

15,933,781 

26,780,676 

(5,096,424) 

(476,250,929) 

S 838,397,141 
=~======= 



CITY OF LL"ICOLN, NEBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 20 II 

Street West Haymarket Other 
General Construction JPA Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds Total 
REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Property $ 28,248,373 19,956,099 48,204,472 
Motor Vehicle 4,284,369 4,284,369 
Wheel 1,114,104 10,917,272 12,031,376 
Sales and Use 57,996,100 57,996,100 
Sundry and In Lieu 48,455 12,796 61,251 
Occupation 13.282,814 7,653,744 20,936,558 

Special Assessment 425 1,118,089 1,118,514 
Intergovernmental 4,982,313 27,548,619 3,205,671 35,796,221 71,532,824 
Permits and Fees 4,939,346 2,628,295 10,956,731 18,524,372 
Reimbursement for Services 6,185,640 6,226 1,329,500 7,521,366 
Program Income 944,303 273,633 1,217,936 
Investment Earnings 156,933 (54,541) 5,352,485 5,454,877 
Donations 726,335 75 1.259,271 1,985,681 
Keno Proceeds 3,321,506 3,321,506 
Miscellaneous 2,181,41 I 779,577 1,793,441 4,754,429 

Total Revenues I23,OJ2,08g 32,022,780 1l,803,718 n,087,044 258,g45,63 I 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General Government 26,569,977 454,329 9,598,056 36,622,362 
Public Safety 60,131,286 9,405,771 69,537,057 
Streets and Highways 7,461,505 10,871,181 2.392 18,335,078 
Culture and Recreation 11,628,899 10,165,686 21,794,585 
Economic Opportunity 4,401,646 11,410,268 15,811,914 
Health and Welfare 193,414 21,800,001 21,993,415 
Mass Transit 15,088,883 15,088,883 

Debt Service 6,806 10,801,422 15,631,234 26.439,462 
Capital Outlay 24,IIO,II3 77.310,392 8,160,545 109,581,050 

Total Expenditures IIO,3g3,533 34,g81,294 88,566,143 WI ,26L,836 335,20.5,806 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures 12,638,556 (2,958,5 I 4) (76,762,425) (9,175,792) (76,258,175) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers In 6,889,394 12,003,923 24,966,938 43,860,255 
Transfers Out (16.360,654) (4,945,556) (19,805,398) (4 LI 11,608) 
Issuance of Debt 300,000,000 9,663,000 309,663,000 
Issuance of Refunding Debt 6,692,500 19,540,000 26,232,500 
Premiums/Discounts on Debt Issued (6,427) 4,669,860 1,091,787 5,755,220 
Transfer To Bond Refunding Agent (7,075,474) (21.746,822) (28,822,296) 
Sale of Capital Assets 132,888 50,168 105,818 288,874 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (g,'''ILi,773) 7,108,535 304,66g,860 13,81),323 313,865,g45 

Net Change in Fund Balances 2,910,783 4,150,021 227,907,435 4,639,531 239,607,770 

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, 
Before Restatement 30,425,582 31,586,833 (2,474,53 I) 127,350,688 186,888,572 

Adjustment for Implementation of GASB 54 8,417,471 741,714 (9,159,185) 

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year, 
After Restatement 38,843,053 32,328,547 (2,474,53 I) 11 8,191 ,503 186,888,572 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 41,753,836 36,478,568 225,432,904 122,831,034 426.496,342 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2011 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
are different because: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This 
is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the 
current period. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital 
contributions is to increase net assets. 

Revenues in the statement of activites that do not provide current 
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds: 

change in revenues in fund statements previously recognized 
in the statement of activities. 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current 
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources 
of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect 
on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance 
costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, 
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of 
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the 
treatment of long-term debt and related items. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the 
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. 

Changes in the net pension obligation and the net OPEB obligation 
do not represent financial activity in governmental funds. 

Changes in the interest in the underlying net assets of the joint venture 
do not represent financial activity in governmental funds. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
certain services to individual funds. The net expense of the internal 
service funds is reported within governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement. 
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$ 239,607,770 

83,105,689 

2,623,305 

1,580,917 

(298,039,633) 

(3,736,004) 

(1,393,535) 

6,462,467 

(2,386,439) 

$ ==27=,8=2=4=,5=37= 



CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 201 I 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Real Estate and Personal Property Tax $ 30,404,505 30,404,505 32,586,168 2,181,663 
Taxes Collected by Others 56,317,014 56,317,014 57,959,545 1.642,531 
Sundry Taxes and In Lieu 33,612 33,612 56,055 22,443 
Occupation Taxes 11,764,425 11,764,425 11,982,166 217,741 
Intergovernmental 3,813,352 3,813,352 3,457,174 (356,178) 
Permits and Fees 3,258,531 3,258,531 3,190,409 (68,122) 
Reimbursement for Services 2,989,874 2,989,874 2,848,361 (141,513) 
Court Fees 594,000 594,000 596,781 2,781 
Recreation Receipts 2,Il6,281 2,116,281 2,128,295 12,014 
Investment Earnings 239,800 239,800 159,302 (80,498) 
Donations 723,722 723,722 725,032 1,310 
Rental Incomc 474,064 474,064 504,794 30,730 
Miscellaneous 2,156,816 2,156,816 2,138,925 ~17,891) 

Total Revenucs 114,885,996 114,885,996 118,333,007 3,447,011 
Expenditures: 

General Government: 
Legislative 286,263 286,347 242,765 43,582 
Executive 1,126,728 1,130,843 1,068,484 62,359 
Financial Administration 2,764,538 2,756,371 2,508,454 247,917 
Law 2,456,102 2,470,458 2,455,480 14,978 
Personnel Administration 938,462 942,367 891,388 50,979 
Planning and Zoning 1,851,122 1,861,681 1,831,188 30,493 
Urban Development 897,704 989,714 774,367 215,347 
Misccllaneous 20,520,692 18,524,879 16,528,509 1,996,370 

Total General Government 30,841,6Il 28,962,660 26,300,635 2,662,025 
Public Safety: 

Police 32,946,001 32,976,027 31,759,280 1,216,747 
Fire 21,897,471 22,918,210 22,959,234 (41,024) 
Traffic Engineering 1,568,249 1,572,323 1,520,663 51,660 

Total Public Safety 56,411,721 57,466,560 56,239,177 1,227,383 
Streets and Highways: 

Street Mai ntenance 2,656,242 2,688,433 2,242,639 445,794 
Street Lighting 3,915,681 3,915,681 5,056,368 p,140,687) 

Total Streets and Highways 6,571,923 6,604,114 7,299,007 ~694,8932 
Culture and Recreation: 

Parks and Rccreation 11,710,713 11,776,572 11,442,727 333,845 
Libraries 200,603 200,603 200,603 

Total Culture and Recreation 11 ,911 ,316 11,977,175 11,643,330 333,845 
Economic Opportunity: 

Lincoln Area Agency on Aging 257,117 257,117 257,117 
Health and Welfare: 

LincolnfLancaster County Health 205,472 205,472 205,472 
Debt Service: 

Issuance and Management Costs 6,806 (6,806) 
Total Expenditures 106,199,160 105,473,098 101,951,544 3,521,554 

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 8,686,836 9,412,898 16,381,463 6,968,565 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In 1O,54l,594 10,541,594 6,663,814 (3,877,780) 
Transfers Out (25,137,193) (25,619,019) (20,827,281 ) 4,791,738 
Proceeds from Issuance of Debt 6,692,500 6,692,500 6,692,500 
Discount on Debt Issued (6,427) (6,427) 
Transfer to Bond Refunding Agent (7,068,178) (7,068,178) (7,068,178 ) 
Sale of Capital Assets 95,006 95,006 132,889 37,883 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ~ 14,876,271 2 (15,358,097) ~14,412,6831 945,414 

Net Change in Fund Balances (6,189,435) (5,945,199) 1,968,780 7,913,979 

Fund Balances - Beginning 20,986,052 20,986,052 20,986,052 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 14,796,617 15,040,853 22,954,832 7,913,979 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
STREET CONSTRUCTION FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2011 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Buds;eted Amounts Actual Positive 
Oris;inal Final Amounts ~N es;ati ve l 

Revenues: 
Wheel Tax $ I,ll 1.500 I,ll 1,500 1,108,379 (3,121) 
Special Assessment 425 425 
Intergovemmental 9,044,276 9,044,276 17,601.301 8,557,025 
Pennits and Fees 280,049 280,049 
Reimbursement for Services 400,000 400,000 6,136 (393,864) 
Investment Earnings 50,000 50,000 118,426 68,426 
Miscellaneous 20,620 20,620 

Total Revenues 10,605,776 10,605,776 19,135,336 8,529,560 

Expenditures -- Streets and Highways: 
Personal Services 5,554,680 5,554,680 5,831.956 (277,276) 
Materials and Supplies 1,135,111 1,135,111 986,141 148,970 
Other Services and Charges 4,317,182 4,310,110 4,100,647 209,463 
Capital Outlay 87,127 112,127 40,820 71,307 

Total Expenditures 11,094,100 11,112,028 10,959,564 152,464 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over (Under) Expenditures (488,324l (506,252l 8,175,772 8,682,024 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In 12,040,822 12,040,822 12,040,822 
Transfers Out (4,945,556) (4,945,556) (4,945,556) 
Sale of Capital Assets 50,168 50,168 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 7,095,266 7,095,266 7,145,434 50,168 

Net Change in Fund Balances 6,606,942 6,589,014 15,321,206 8,732,192 

Amount Budgeted on Project Basis (11,512,649) (11,512,649) (I 1,512,649) 

Fund Balances - Begimling 29,269,106 29,269,106 29,269,106 

Fund Balances - Ending $ 24,363,399 24,345,471 33,077,663 8,732,192 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
AUGUST 31, 2011 

Business-Tl:Ee Activities -- Ente!Erise Funds Governrnental 
Activities --

Lincoln Lincoln Lincoln Other Internal 
Wastewater Water Electric Enterprise Service 

Sl'stem System S~stem Funds Total Funds 
ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,401,211 1,270,745 18,694,000 2,621.014 24,986.970 4.539,332 
Investments 36,769,000 11,156.521 47,925,521 25,125.374 
Restricted A'Rets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,909,000 181.964 12.090.964 1.051,780 
Investments 3,328,000 3,328,000 

Receivables, (Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles) 2,542.929 2,745.516 19,937,000 3.285,038 28,510,483 278,248 
Unbilled Revenues 2,386,904 3,848.140 11 ,433,000 17,668.044 
Due from Other Funds 1,214,046 314,208 509,284 2,037,538 1.935,140 
Due from Other Governments 4,305 4,305 258,763 
InventOlies 65.504 932,633 14,385,000 208.378 15,591.515 810,386 
Plant Operation Assets 13,070,000 13,070,000 
Prepaid Expenses 1.072.000 59,985 1,131,985 385,407 

Total Current Assets 8,610,594 9,111.242 130,597,000 18.026,489 166.345,325 34.384,430 
Noncurrent Assets: 

Restricted Assets: 
Cash and Cash EqUivalents 30,000 3,786.841 3.816.841 
Investments 18,750.789 16,352,689 22.466,000 7.252,107 64,821,585 
Receivables 124.867 89,967 7,614 222,448 
Due from Other Funds 304.852 304.852 

Total Restricted Assets 18,875,656 16,442,656 22,496,000 11.351.414 69,165,726 
Deferred Charges 704.520 587,005 11.058,000 396,049 12,745,574 135.576 
Capital Assets: 

Land 5,913,340 5,445,167 12.785,779 24,144.286 1.306,950 
Buildings 75.384.901 67,363,431 50,839,978 193,588,310 5,639.207 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 254.651,742 324.805.770 35.953.374 615,410,886 1,159,425 
Machinery and Equipment 8,596,734 8,569,723 13.188,408 30,354,865 28260,381 
Utility Plant 1,224,514,000 1 ,224,5 I 4,000 
Construction in Progress 6.189.533 1.511,081 58,267.000 13.607.016 79,574.630 388,182 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (97,384,087) (109,692.686) (470,744,000) (52.430.888) (730.251.661) <20,839,627) 
Total Capital Assets. Net 253.352.163 298,002,486 812,037,000 73,943,667 1,437,335,316 15,914.518 

Total Noncurrent Assets 272,932.339 315,032,147 845.591,000 85,691,130 1,519,246,616 16,050,094 
Total Assets 281,542,933 324,143.389 976,188,000 103,717.619 1,685,591.941 50.434,524 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 319,901 449,849 13.920,000 4.300,121 18,989,871 1.097,429 
Construction Contracts 1.996.813 2.169,341 4,166,154 
Accrued Liabilities 473,855 763,871 11 ,469.000 337.019 13.043.745 419,431 
Accrued Compensated Absences 364.696 427,699 315.275 1,107,670 773,045 
Due to Other Funds 990,696 990,696 966,274 
Due to Other Governments 153.941 153.941 570 
Unearned Revenue 935.274 935,274 178,917 
Claims 6,724,159 
Accrued Interest 756,525 122.354 9,136,000 66.315 1O.08l.I94 71,934 
Commercial Paper Notes Payable 90,000,000 90,000,000 

Current POl1ion of Capital Lease 258,306 258,306 117.597 
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 3,075,092 5380.000 18,680.000 1.080.000 28,215.092 
Other 23,264,000 23,264,000 

Total CUITent Liabilities 6.986.882 9,313,114 166,469,000 8,436,947 191,205,943 10,349,356 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Accrued Compensated Absences 194,408 395,957 87.010 677 .375 753.743 

Construction Contracts 1,796.829 193,636 1,990,465 

Claims 4,064,797 

Long-Term Debt, Net 81,138,410 59,884.016 547,604,000 25,637,751 714,264.177 

Capital Lease Payable 751,062 751,062 8.246.025 

Accrued Liabilities 138.352 196.145 241,731 576,228 239,927 

Accrued Landfill ClosurelPostclosure Care Costs 14.632.000 14,632,000 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 83.267.999 60,669,754 547.604,000 41.349.554 732,891.307 13,304,492 

Total Liabilities 90,254.881 69.982,868 7 I 4,073,000 49,786.501 924,097,250 23,653,848 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 171.395.000 239.387,493 158.775.000 53.393,451 622,950,944 8,602,676 

Restricted for: 
Debt Service 1.019,749 419,376 27,427,000 141,935 29,008,060 

Capital Projects 686.631 39,915 528,804 1,255,350 

Other 46,948 46.948 

Unrestricted 18,186,672 14,313,737 75,913,000 (180,020) 108,233,389 18.178,000 

Total Net Assets $ 191,288,052 254.160.521 262,115,000 53,931.118 761,494.691 26,780,676 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,2011 

Business-TY2e Activities -- Ente:2rise Funds Governmental 
Activities --

Lincoln Lincoln Lincoln Other Internal 
Wastewater Water Electric Enterprise Service 

Sl:stem Slstem Sl:stem Funds Total Funds 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for Services $ 22,973,653 28,559.484 261.377,000 4_"65.087 317,475.224 52,320,810 
Fees 7.820,398 7,820,398 
Parking Revenue 7,478,545 7,478,545 
Performance Revenue 1,534.158 1,534,158 
Other Operating Revenue 588.197 588.197 

Total Operating Revenues 22,973,653 28,559,484 261,377.000 21.986,385 334,896,522 52,320,810 

Operating Expenses 
Personal Services 7,915,575 7,915,575 13508,727 
Contractual Services 5.00[,71 [ 5,00[,7[1 
Operation and Maintenance 11,094,850 13,304,010 16,051,000 6,069,119 46,518,979 38,842,696 
Purchased Power [ 18.295,000 118,295,000 
Depreciation 7,128,253 7,645.046 37,283.000 3,835.786 55,892,085 2,450,247 
Administrative Costs 1,449,114 2,151,017 33,051,000 36,651,131 

Total Operating Expenses 19.672,217 23,100,073 204,680.000 22.822,191 270,274,481 54,801.670 

Operating Income (Loss) 3,30[,436 5.459,411 56,697,000 (835,806) 64,622 ,04 [ (2.480,860) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 
Investment Earnings 158,557 892,051 395,000 119,100 [,564,708 93,554 

Gain (Loss) on Di'posa[ of Capital Assets (106,705) (106,705) 72,903 

Insurance Recovery 185,048 18,725 203.773 
Miscellaneous Revenue 448,772 448,772 
Occupation Tax 2,059.361 2.059,361 
Grants 3,658 3,658 
Payments in Lieu of Taxes (9,439'()OO) (9,439,000) 
Amortization of Deferred Charges (38,904) (76,887) (861.000) (23,570) (1,000,361) 
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges (3,424,036) (2.907,198) (27 ,763,(00) (727,875) (34.822,109) (167,338) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (3,119.335) (2,088.376) (37,668,000) [,787,808 (41,087,903) (881) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 182,IOI 3,37[,035 19,029,000 952,002 23,534,138 (2,481,741) 

Capital Contributions 1,081,660 1,902,161 1.653,000 67.962 4.704,783 I02,540 

Transfers In 159,395 859.305 1,018,700 13,421 

Transfers Out (l ,730.(00) (2,030,109) (3,760,109) (20,659) 

Change in Net Assets 1.263,761 5.432,591 18,952,000 (150.840) 25,497,512 (2,386.439) 

Net Assets - Beginning 190,024,291 248,727.930 243.163,000 54,081,958 735,997,179 29,167,115 

Net Assets - Ending $ 191.288,052 254,[60.'521 262,115.000 53,931,118 761,494.691 26,780,676 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIE'lARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 201l 

Business-Type Activities -- Enterpris~ Funds Governmental 
Activities --

Lincoln Lincoln Lincoln Other Internal 
Wastewater Water Electric Enterprise Service 

Sl:stem System System Funds Total Funds 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Receipts from Customers and Users S 23.334,696 27,792,022 271,646,000 20,004,326 342,777,044 12,297,699 
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided 219,365 648,301 5,202,000 160,029 6,229,695 40,000,044 
Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (3,344,814) (4,747,873) (160,171,000) (7,951,306) (176,214,993) (34,264,525) 
Payments to Employees (7,277 ,590) (8, I 04,984) (23,916,000) (7,737,308) (47,035,882) ( 13,259,037) 
Payments for Interli.md Services Provided (1,702,040) (2,711,605) (3,066,000) (1,977,584) (9,457,229) (2.441,670) 
Other Receipts 45,000 588,197 633,197 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 11,229,617 12,875,861 89,740,000 3,086.354 116,931,832 2,332,511 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
Occupation Tax 1,987,948 1,987,948 
Payments in Lieu of Taxes (8,730,000) (8,730,000) 
Transfers from Other Funds 622,387 622,387 19,084 
Transfers to Other Funds (l,597,000) (2.030, I 09) (3,627,109) (l,652) 
Advances from Geneml Fund 1.834.553 1,834,553 1373,11 I 
Repayment of Advances from General Fund (1,544,671) (1,544,671) (1,494,027) 
Advances to Other Funds (167,758) (167,758) (l LI68) 
Payments from Other Funds 54,320 68,777 290,122 413,219 438,964 
Other Miscellaneous Receipts 448,772 44R,772 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 54,320 68,777 (10,327,000) 1,44l,244 (8,762,659) 324,312 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Additions to Capital Assets (6,303,152) (3,994,573) (43,585,000) (12,928,966) (66,811,691) (9,399,846) 
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 13,842 13,842 202,405 
Insuranc~ Recovery 185,048 18,725 203,773 
Transfer from Other Funds 247,502 247,502 5,000 
Proceeds from Long' Term Debt 4,021.999 20,561.084 24.583,083 8,363,622 
Cost of Debt Issuance (282,000) (265,523) (547,523) (135,576) 
Net Cost of Retiring Plant (447,000) (447,000) 
Capital Contributions 414,160 1,177.971 1.653,000 3,245,131 
Principal Payments of Capital Lease (318,288) 018,288) 
Principal Payments of Long-Term Debt (2,865,000) (6,3 10,000) (17,820,000) (6,680,000) (33,675,000) 
Interest and Fiscal Charges Paid (3,512,090) 0, I I 8,530) (28,342,000) (1.019,428) (35,992,048) (95,404) 

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (8,059,035) (12,245,132) (88,823,000) (371.052) (109,498,219) (1 ,(J59, 799) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities oflnvestments 5,108,370 8.023,6 11 8,395,459 21,527,440 13,962,241 
Purchases of Investments (9,388.1 54) (9,727,504) (9,175,000) ( 13,776,(59) (42,067,317) (17,946,578) 
Interest and Other Receipts 375,700 470,210 200,000 308,946 1,354,856 414,016 

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (3,904,084) (1,233,683) (8,975,000) (5,072,254) (19,185,021) (3,570,32 I) 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (679,182) (534,177) (18,385,000) (915,708) (20,514,067) (1,973,297) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents' Beginning 3,080,393 1,804,922 49,018,000 7,505,527 61,408,842 7,564,409 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending S 2,401,211 1,270,745 30,633,000 6,589,819 40,894,775 5,591,112 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Pro>ided by Operating Activities 

Operating Income (Loss) S 3,301,436 5,459.41 I 56,697,000 (835,806) 64,622,041 (2,480,860) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation 7,128,253 7,645,046 37,283,000 3,R35,786 55,892,085 2,450.247 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 

Accounts Receivable and Unbillcd Revenues 584,908 (117,6]] ) (4,543,000) (1.232,727) (5.308,430) 71,305 
Due from Other Funds (31,346) (31,346) (247,302) 

Due fi'om Other Governments (474) (474) 1I8,522 

Inventories 37,476 (92,261) 1.497,000 (27,483) 1,414,732 (109.363) 

Plant Operation Assets 1.021,000 1,021,000 

Prepaid Expenses 4,000 (19.364) 05.364) 9,103 

Other Assets (1,030,000) (1.030,000) 

Accounts Payable 70,486 (215,245) (l ,014,000) 43,()61 (1,115,698) 191,667 

Accrued Liabilities 92,224 153,568 138,986 384,778 153,848 

Accrued Compensated Absences 14,834 42,953 39,281 97,068 95,842 

Due to Other Funds 17,653 17,653 (468) 

Due to Other Governments (13,927) ( 13,927) (29,324) 

Uneamed Revenue 30,714 30,714 34,408 

Claims (478,000) (478,000) 2,074,886 

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 303,000 303,000 

Accrued Landfill Closure!Postclosure Care Costs 1,142,000 LI42,OOO 

Total Adjustments 7,928,181 7,416,450 33,043,000 3,922,160 52,309,791 4,813.371 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities S 11,229,617 12,875,861 89,740,000 3,086,354 116,931,832 2,332,51 I 

Supplemental Disclosure of No tiC ash Investing, 
Capital, and Financing Activities: 

Contribution of Capital Assets S 667,500 724,190 67,962 1,459,652 102,540 

Purchase of Capital Assets on Account 3,793,642 2,362,977 3,348,272 9,504,891 159,503 

Change in Fair Value oflnvcstmcnts (210,635) 439,657 (190,409) 38,613 (270,689) 

Recognition of Sales Tax Settlement Payment 332,000 332,000 

Allowance for Funds in Constntcction and Amortization (1,077,000) (1.077.000) 

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
AUGUST 31, 2011 

Police & 
Fire Pension Agency 
Trust Fund Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2.355,438 3,781,501 
Investments: 

Pooled Investment Funds 2,322,860 
U.S. Agency Obligations 2,243,564 
Corporate Bonds 462,400 
Private Equity 525,252 
Mutual Funds 145,048,224 
Real Estate Limited Partnership 11,901,482 

Total Investments 160,260,218 2,243,564 
Receivables: 

Contributions 434,030 
Accrued Interest 796,691 39,031 
Other 41,193 

Due from Other Governments 188 
Contractor Retainage 797,319 

Total Assets 163,846,565 6,902,608 

LIABILITIES 

Warrants Payable 1,182,481 

Accounts Payable 11,360 213,935 

Accrued Liabilities 6,104 

Accrued Compensated Absences 14,465 

Due to Other Governments 210 3,849,074 

Due to Homeowners 43,604 

Due to Contractors 1,275,391 

Due to Joint Venture 205,384 

Due to Plan Members 14,813 

Due to Bondholders 117,926 

Total Liabilities 32,139 6,902,608 

NET ASSETS 

Held in Trust for Pension Benefits 

and Other Purposes $ 163,814,426 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2011 

Police & 
Fire Pension 
Trust Fund 

Additions: 
Contributions: 

Employer $ 4,470,505 
Employee 2,373,463 

Total Contributions 6,843,968 

Investment Earnings: 
Interest 298,074 
Dividends 3,068,731 
Net Increase in Fair Value ofInvestments 15,123,330 

Net Investment Earnings 18,490,135 

Total Additions 25,334,103 

Deductions: 
Benefit Payments 10,594,707 
Refunds of Contributions 222,572 
Administrative Costs 729,223 

Total Deductions 11,546,502 

Change in Net Assets 13,787,601 

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits 
and Other Purposes - Beginning 150,026,825 

Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits 
and Other Purposes - Ending $ 163,814,426 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31,2011 

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

REPORTING ENTITY 

The accompanying financial statements present the government of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska (City) 
and its blended component unit, the West Haymarket Joint Public Agency (WHJPA), established April 2, 
2010, for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. Regarding related organizations, the 
City's Mayor appoints and the City Council approves all of the board appointments of the Housing 
Authority of the City of Lincoln. However, the City has no further accountability for this organization. 

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the government's 
operations. The participants in the WHJPA are the City and University of Nebraska (UNL), and the 
agency is governed by a board consisting of the Mayor, a member of the UNL Board of Regents, and a 
member of the City Council. The purpose of the agency is to make the most efficient use of the taxing 
authority and other powers of the participants to facilitate the redevelopment of the West Haymarket 
Redevelopment Area. The WHJPA is rcported as a major governmental fund in the City's financial 
statements. Complete separate financial statements for the WHJP A may be obtained at the City of Lincoln 
Finance Department, 555 South 10th Street, Suite 103, Lincoln, NE 68508. 

FISCAL YEAR-END 

All funds of the City, with the exception of Lincoln Electric System (LES), are reported as of and for the 
year ended August 31, 2011. December 31st is the fiscal year-end of LES as established by the City 
Charter, and the last separate financial statements were as of and for the year ended December 31,2010. 
The amounts included in the City'S 2011 financial statements for LES are amounts as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2010. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component unit. 
Fiduciary activities, whose resources are not available to finance the City'S programs, are excluded from 
the government-wide statements. The material effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees 
and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Functional expenses may also include an element of indirect cost, designed 
to recover administrative (overhead) costs. Program revenues include I) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statemcnts. 

30 



CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31, 2011 

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
PRESENTATION 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the total economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and trust fund financial statements. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have 
been met. Agency funds, reporting only assets and liabilities, have no measurement focus but use the 
accrual basis of accounting. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal 
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt serviee expenditures, including interest on long-term debt, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, sales taxes, highway user fees, interdepartmental charges, and intergovernmental revenues 
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual. Special assessments are recorded as revenues in the year the 
assessments become current. Annual installments not yet due are reflected as special assessment 
receivables and deferred revenues. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available 
only when cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund finances the day-to-day operation of the basic governmental activities, such as 
legislative, judicial, administration, aging services, police and fire protection, emergency 
communications, legal services, planning, and parks and recreation. Primary resources of the 
fund include property, sales, and occupation taxes. 

The Street Construction Fund accounts for the resources accumulated, primarily highway 
allocation fees received from the State of Nebraska, and the payments made for the maintenance, 
construction, and improvement of the streets and highways in the City. 

The West Haymarket JPA Fund accounts for the activities of the joint public agency, a blended 
component unit of the City, established to facilitate the redevelopment of the West Haymarket 
Area. Occupation taxes imposed on bar, restaurant, ear rental, and hotel revenues provides the 
resources to finance the activities of the JP A. 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

The Lincoln Wastewater System Fund accounts for the activities of the City's wastewater utility. 

The Lincoln Water System Fund accounts for the activities of the City's water distribution 
operations. 

The Lincoln Electric System Fund accounts for the activities of the City's electric distribution 
operations. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Funds account for data processing, engineering, risk management, fleet 
management, municipal services center operations, telecommunications, and copy services 
provided to other departments or agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost 
reimbursement basis. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31, 2011 

The Pension Trust Fund accounts for the receipt, investment, and distribution of retirement 
contributions made for the benefit of police officers and firefighters. 

The Agency Funds account for the collection of various taxes, fines, and fees due to other 
government entities; funds held in escrow for homeowners; good faith money due to contractors 
upon project completion; funds held for payroll taxes and other payroll related payables: funds 
held to pay outstanding warrants; funds to pay phone system charges; funds to pay matured bonds 
and coupons for which the City Treasurer is trustee; funds for the joint administrative entity 
known as JAVA, created to coordinate planning and implementation of the Antelope Valley 
Project; funds deposited by Gateway Shopping Center in fulfillment of a condition of the use 
pennit for expansion; funds for shared library services; and reserve funds held for the Public 
Building Commission Bonds. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to November 30, 1989, generally 
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their 
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. Only the City's Lincoln 
Wastewater System and Lincoln Water System funds have elected to follow subsequent private-sector 
guidance. 

The effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and charges between the business-type 
functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the 
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, 
fines and forfeitures, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
enterprise funds and of the government's internal service funds are charges to customers for goods and 
services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and service, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is generally the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR FUND EQUITY 

Deposits and Investments 

The City'S cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-tenn 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. These 
investments are not specifically identified with anyone fund. Interest is allocated to the individual funds 
on the basis of average cash balances. 

The City may invest in certificates of deposit, in time deposits, and in any securities in which the state 
investment officer is authorized to invest pursuant to the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska 
State Funds Investment Act and as provided in the authorized investment guidelines of the Nebraska 
Investment Council in effect on the date the investment is made. 
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CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31, 2011 

Investments in the Pension Trust Fund are carried at fair value. Investments in other funds arc carried at 
fair value, except for short-term investments, which are reported at amortized cost, which approximates fair 
value. Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price. Investments that 
do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair value, based on relevant market 
information of similar financial instruments. Income from investments held by the individual funds is 
recorded in the respective funds as it is earned. 

Receivables and Payables 

Loans receivable in governmental funds consist of rehabilitation and redevelopment loans that are 
generally not expected or scheduled to be collected in the subsequent year. 

Noncurrent portions of long-term receivables due to governmental funds are reported on their balance 
sheets, in spite of their spending measurement focus. Recognition of governmental fund type revenues 
represented by noncurrent receivables generally is deferred until they become cun·ent receivables. 

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental fund types 
excludes amounts represented by noncurrent liabilities. Since they do not affect current assets, such 
long-term amounts are not recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities. 

Inventories and Prepaid Items 

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental 
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Amounts of governmental fund inventories and vendor prepaid items are reported as unspendable net 
assets to indicate that they do not represent "available spendable resources". 

Certain payments that have been made which benefit future accounting periods and are funded by interfund 
borrowings, are also recorded as prepayments, with a like amount of interfund liability reflected. These 
prepayments are charged to expenditures on the governmental fund financial statements over the period of 
their related borrowings. On the government-wide financial statements these prepayments have been 
capitalized and are charged to expenditures as the assets are depreciated over their useful lives. 

Deferred Charges 

LES' share of payments made for the construction of the Dry Fork Coal Mine are included in deferred 
charges on the statement of net assets. The mine is expected to provide fuel for Laramie River Station 
over the estimated 25-year life of the mine. The advances will be returned to LES over the estimated life 
of the mine. In addition, costs related to certain capital improvements at Sheldon Station have been 
deferred under accounting pronouncements applicable to regulated utilities. 

Investment in Joint Venture 

Investment in joint venture consists of the City's interest in the Joint Antelope Valley Authority (see Note 
23), a joint administrative entity reported in the City's financial statements using the equity method of 
accounting. 
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Capital Assets 

CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31,2011 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
drainage systems, street lights, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business­
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City 
as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one 
year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. 

The costs of nonnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the 
capitalization value of the assets constructed. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets 
Buildings 
Improvements 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Utility Plant 

Years 
10 - 50 
5 - 40 

20 -100 
2 - 20 

30 - 40 

The exception to this rule is library media, which is depreciated using a composite depreciation method. 

Compensated Absences 

City employees generally earn vacation days at a variable rate based on years of service. In the event of 
termination. an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation time up to a maximum allowed 
accumulation, which is in no case longer than 37 days. 

Employees earn sick leave at the rate of one day per month with total accumulation limits established by 
the employees' bargaining unit. Upon retirement, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated sick leave 
with maximums depending on the employees' bargaining unit contract. Upon resignation from City 
service an employee may also be compensated for a percentage of accumulated sick leave, again, based on 
the employees' bargaining union contract. In some cases payment may be placed in a medical spending 
account rather than reimbursing the employee directly. LES is covered by a separate personnel plan 
regarding vacation and sick leave with the liability for these benefits recorded in accrued liabilities. 

Vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are accrued as the benefits are 
earned if the leave is attributable to past service and it is probable that the City will compensate the 
employees for such benefits. Sick leave and other compensated absences with similar characteristics are 
accrued as the benefits are earned only to the extent it is probable that the City will compensate the 
employees for such benefits through cash payments conditioned on the employee's tennination or 
retirement, and is recorded based on the termination method. Such accruals are based on current salary 
rates and include salary-related payments directly and incrementally associated with payments made for 
compensated absences on termination. 

All vacation and sick leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary 
fund financial statements. In the governmental funds, only compensated absences that have matured as of 
year-end, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements, are recorded as a fund 
liability. 
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Long-Tern1 Obligations 

CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31, 2011 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable 
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred 
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt using the bonds-outstanding method. For current 
and advance refundings of debt, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount 
of the old debt is deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the remaining life of the 
old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as an other 
financing source. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as current expenditures. 

Fund Equity 

Fund balances reflect assets minus liabilities in the governmental fund statements. Fund balance is divided 
into five classifications; nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. Fund balance is 
reported as nonspendable when not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use are either externally 
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations other governments; or imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Fund balance is reported as committed when 
constraints are imposed by formal action (ordinance) of the City Council, the City'S highest level of 
decision-making authority. Fund balance is reported as assigned when the intent of the City (resolution, 
executive order) is to use the funds for a specific purpose. Unassigned fund balance is the residual amount 
and may only be reported in the General Fund. 

The City has established a policy providing for an unreserved fund balance in the City's General Fund. To 
meet excess cash flow needs, no less than twenty percent of the ensuing year's General Fund budget is to 
be set aside as an unrestricted reserve. Currently $24,912,486 of the General Fund's spendable and 
unrestrieted fund balance meets the requirements of this policy. 

Net Assets Classification 

Net assets are assets minus liabilities and are shown in the entity-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund 
financial statements. Net assets are required to be classified into three components - invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This component of net assets consists of capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets. If there 
are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent 
proceeds is not included in the calculation of invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 

Restricted - This component of net assets consists of restrictions placed on net assets use through external 
constraints imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or law or regulations of 
other governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
The government-wide statement of net assets reports $269,445,378 of restricted net assets, of which 
enabling legislation restricts $16,462,427. 

Unrestricted - This component consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 
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BUDGETARY DATA 

CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31, 2011 

The City Council follows these procedures, set out in the City Charter, in establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the financial statements: 

I) At least 40 days prior to the end of the budget and fiscal year, the Mayor submits to the City Council a 
proposed annual budget for the ensuing year. The annual budget is a complete financial plan for the 
ensuing budget year and consists of an operating budget and a capital budget. 

2) Public hearing on the proposed budget is scheduled for not later than 10 days prior to the budget 
adoption date. 

3) Not later than 5 days prior to the end of the fiscal year, the budget is legally adopted by resolution of 
the City Council. 

4) The Mayor is authorized to transfer unencumbered balances between appropnatlOns of the same 
department or agency. The Mayor also has authority to lower appropriations in any fund where actual 
revenues are less than appropriated in order to avoid incurring a budget deficit for the year. 

Appropriation transfers between departments or agencies may only be authorized by resolution of the 
City Council. The Council may not make any appropriations in addition to those authorized in the 
annual budget, except that it may authorize emergency appropriations in the event of an emergency 
threatening serious loss oflife, health, or property in the community. 

5) Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis inconsistent with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America (GAAP). Since encumbrances are included in the City's budget 
accounting, year-end encumbrances are reappropriatcd to the next year in the budget process. Various 
funds have expenditures automatically appropriated through the budget resolution, based on funds 
available. These expenditures are reflected in the original and final budgets at amounts equal to the 
actual expenditures. Budget basis expenditures are presented on a cash basis. 

Amendments to the adopted budget were made this year and resulted from prior fiscal year 
encumbrances identified subsequent to budget adoption, appropriation of unanticipated revenues to 
certain funds as provided in the budget resolution, and appropriation revisions between or among 
departments as provided for under the City Charter. 

6) Appropriation controls are required at the departmental level. However, as a matter of policy and 
practice, appropriations generally are controlled at the next level of organization (division) or by fund 
within a department. 

7) Operating appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year except for capital improvement 
appropriations and year-end encumbrances against operating budgets. Capital improvement 
appropriations are continuing appropriations through completion of the project. 

8) Budgets are adopted by resolution for the following fund types: general, special revenue, debt service, 
capital projects, permanent, enterprise, internal service, and pension trust. Legally adopted annual 
budgets are not established for the West Haymarket JPA component unit, certain special revenue 
(Advance Acquisition, Police & Fire Pension Contributions, Special Assessment, Impact Fees, Parks 
& Recreation Special Projects, Seniors Foundation of Lincoln & Lancaster County, and R.P. Crawford 
Park), permanent (JJ. Hompes), Fast Forward, and agency funds. In addition, capital project funds 
are budgeted on a project rather than an annual basis. 

ENDOWMENTS 

The Community Health Permanent Endowment Fund was established in 1997 with the $37,000,000 cash 
proceeds realized by the City from the sale of Lincoln General Hospital, and may be increased by 
donations, bequests, or appropriations to the fund. Investment earnings of the fund are used for funding 
health and health-related programs that further the health, safety, or welfare of the citizens of Lincoln. 
Earnings deposited with the City Treasurer shall be paid out only by order of those persons designated by 
the Community Health Endowment (CHE) Board of Trustees as outlined in the Fiscal and Budget 
Directives policy between the CHE and the City. State law directs that. subject to the intent of a donor 
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expressed in the gift instrument, an institution may appropriate for expenditure or accumulate so much of 
an endowment fund as the institution determines is prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes, and duration 
for which the endowment fund is established. The current amount of net appreciation available for 
expenditure is $19,077,332, which is reported as expendable health care restricted net assets in the 
statement of net assets. The initial endowment principal is reported as nonexpendable health care 
restricted net assets in the statement of net assets. 

PRIOR-YEAR SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The basic financial statemcnts include certain prior-year summarized comparative inforn1ation in total but 
not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction 
with the City's basic financial statements as of and for the year ended August 31, 2010, from which the 
summarized information was derived. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been 
reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's presentation. 

ESTIMATES 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates. 

IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES 

In 2011, the City implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and 
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a 
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed on 
the use of resources reported in the governmental funds, thereby enhancing the usefulness of fund balance 
information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied. 

Adoption of GASB 54 also clarified the existing governmental fund type definitions, changed how the City 
reports various fund activities, and resulted in the following beginning fund balance adjustments: General 
Fund $8,417,471, Athletic Field & Facilities Improvements $(628,453), Lincoln Area Agency on Aging 
$(326,980), 911 Communications $(560,848), Unemployment Compensation $(163,329), Fast Forward 
$(6,480,191), Development Services Center $(257,670) and Street Construction $741,714, Snow Removal 
$(741,714). 

In 2011, the City implemented the provisions ofGASB Statement No. 59, Financial Instruments Omnibus. 
which looks to improve existing standards regarding financial reporting and disclosure requirements of 
certain financial instruments and external investment pools for which significant issues have been 
identified in practice. The implementation of GASB 59 did not have a material impact on the financial 
statements. 

(2) RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fimd balance - total 
governmental fund~ and net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement 
of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains, "Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, 
are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds." The details of 
the $476,250,929 difference are as follows: 
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Bonds P,lyablc 
l.cs~ deferred chflrge for issuance costs 
Less issuance discounts 
Plus issuance premiums 
Less dderrcd dlargc OIl refunding 

Capillli Leases Payahle 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Net Pension Ohligati()n 
Net OPES Obligation 
Compensated Absences 

Net dine-rence 

$ 425583.495 
(6'()26590) 
(1'()05247) 
9.179.477 
(155,456) 

2:U83.737 
3.940249 
3.757.017 
3.137.0')4 

12.657.153 

$ 476.250,929 

EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND THE 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

The governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net change in fund balances - total governmentalfunds and change in net assets of 
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that 
reconciliation explains, "Govelnmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense." The details of this $83,105,689 difference are as follows: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expen~c 

Net dilTcrencc 

$ 107.295.%2 
(24.l9U,2SU) 

$ 83,105,689 

Another element of that reconciliation states, "The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, leases) provides 
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any 
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are defen'ed and amortized in the 
statement of activities." The details of this $(298,039,633) difference are as follows: 

Debt is~ued or im:un'ed: 
Issuance of genera! obligation stormwater bonds 
Issuance of general obligation refunding bonds 
Is~uance of general obligation facihy hond, 
Issuance of tax allocation bonds 
IssualK<: of :,pcciaJ assessment 

revolving fund hOlld~ 
Is~mance of capital lease 
Issuance of certificate" of participation 
Deferred charge for issuance costs 
lssuam:e discuunt); 
hSUimce premiums 

Amortiz,\tion of deferred item:" 
Principalrepaymellh 

Net difference 

5 

S 

38 

(8.200,000) 
(l9.290.000) 

(~()() ,000 .(100) 
(263.00Oi 

( I ,2tX),(JOO) 
(J.817.500) 
(3 . I 25 ,fIOO) 
4.449524 

995'()()9 
(6.750.230) 

28,229 
.19J3B35 

(298.(B9.633l 
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Another element of that reconciliation states, "Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not 
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds." The details of this $(3,736,004) difference are as follows: 

Loss on disposal of capital assets 
Consl ruction contrads 
Other 
Accrued interest 
Compensated absence, 

Net difference 

(3) RESTRICTED ASSETS 

s (537.()41) 
(249)17) 
245,032 

(2,29tl.417l 
(898,261) 

$ ==(;:3;,,:,7;,;,:36;,;;' .OO;;,;;",;4f:::l 

Certain proceeds of the enterprise funds revenue bonds and resources set aside for their repayment are 
classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because their use is limited by applicable bond 
covenants. Assets included in the Bond Principal and Interest Account and the Bond Reserve Account are 
restricted for the payment of bond principal and interest. Assets included in the Surplus Account and the 
Depreciation and Replacement Account are restricted for purposes including improvements, repairs and 
replacements, acquisition of equipment, and the payment of bond principal and interest. Assets included in 
the Construction Account are restricted for paying the cost of the capital projects. 

Certain assets of the Pershing Municipal Auditorium Enterprise Fund are classified as restricted assets to 
be used for improvements. 

A recap of restrictions and related balances at August 31, 2011, are as follows: 

Pershing Solid Lin.:()ln Lin('()ln Lmcoln 

Parkini/ Municipal Wa~te Wastewater WaleI' Electric 

Fund Account Fadlilie~ Auditoriulll ~lallal!cmCJl! 
% 

Sy~tem Sy"tem Sy~tcm Totals 

Principul and 
Interest $ 192.679 1.330.040 346.521 15.237.000 17.106.240 

Reserve 233lS575 400.000 6.206J6S 9)l2S.597 22.496,1)00 41.269.3.'7 

Depreciation and 
Rcp!<K'cmcnt 930.475 9'<0.475 

Con,truttion 7595.1"1 14.818 il3,'W,451 ti267."UlS 25217.('118 

Capita I Pf'<ljl~cts 14J)72 14.072 

Marketing 4<l,94k 46.941{ 

$ 11.057,5.tO 61,020 4J4.818 18.R75M6 16A42,656 37.7.u.ono 84.5R4,690 

Resources of the permanent funds totaling $37,160,000 are legally restricted to the extent that only 
earnings and not principal may be used to support the City's programs. 

(4) DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

DEPOSITS 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government's deposits may not be 
returned to it. The City's deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions of 
state law. 

State Statutes 15-846 and 15-847 R.R.S., 1943 require banks either to provide a bond or to pledge 
government securities (types of which are specifically identified in the Statutes) to the City Treasurer in 
the amount of the City'S deposits. The Statutes allow pledged securities to be reduced by the amount ofthe 
deposit insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 

39 



CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31,2011 

One or more of the financial institutions holding the City's cash accounts are participating in the FDIC 
Transaction Account Guarantee Program. Under the program, through December 31, 2012, all 
non interest-bearing transaction accounts at these institutions are fully guaranteed by the FDIC for the 
entire amount in the account. For interest-bearing cash accounts, the City's cash deposits, including 
certificates of deposit, are insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC. Any cash deposits or certificates of 
deposit in excess of the $250,000 FDIC limits are covered by collateral held in a Federal Reserve pledge 
account or by an agent for the City and thus no custodial risk exists. 

INVESTMENTS 

At August 31, 2011, the City had the following investments, maturities and credit ratings: 

G~ncral Cit,,: 

V,S, Tred~ury OhJIj!"tivll~ 
tJ . .s. Spon'\prud ,>\gClll.'y Ohligat!!l1l!'. 
t{ljhd:rrali7~,xt Rl.:pur<ha:-;c AgrccmenlS 
Cull,-lIcmlj'{cd [nvt>ro.lnH:tll Agr-cl'mcnts 
CoJhtemlilcJ fnvestrnent Agfc\. ... mcnb 
,\1un~)' \:lar'kd Funds ~ t: .S. Trc.r!;.ur} 

MooL'\' ~1arkcl FuruJ~ . l'.$, Agcm:ic:-.; 
E\tcn~alln\'c~tnlt'nt Tm\t ... 
'tlX Increml,:'m Fimuwinl? In\'{"'~rml"'l1's 

1'".<1 In<'o",e :'I-lul .. ,,1 Fum!> 
Equities 
C{lmpl~fl~elltary Stnm:glc:-o 
[('nl !\s'S('ts 

Communil)' lI"alth t:ndowmenl: 

Money ~brkct Mutual Fund", 
\1urual Fun~b. 

Con\"('rtihle Bond .. 
IH' .. liHl1iullul Fumh 

H"(~d Income 
rntf.!nnt::di.atc Tt~ml ('rl..~Jit 
L;u'ge C;'P &luity 
lnt"nltuiunal F~II.tity 
High Yield Bonds 
Lnwrging Markets EqUllj 
Hedge Fmllh 
~1id CHI' E<ju,ty 
U.s. Trl':,.s.urit.·-s. 
SIII,,11 Cap E<luity 
CnHlnlodirks 
Rca! El'>tatt; 

Umit~J P<u1ner~hip 

Olher 

Tntal Community Uealth Endowment 

i'vlicc & nr~ P.n.~l<lIl Trust: 

('orp.m't~ flnnd ... 
Mutual I"uud, 
Priv .. w EAluity 
ltc~\1 E:-;ti1W Limll~J P~U"tncr"'hip'i. 

Total Prim,,'Y Go"crmncl1I 

~ 'IV·HAN 
2J6,~8-t5:M 

31U.:156 
U20,{))() 
3,13'),%1 
',W2Jl4: 

71 529JJ23 
5,1,74OJK1O 
~.789.b3(} 

153J169 
5OR265 
57.425 
78591 

'll.05·U80 

R846 

~3i>1.1~1 

12AOl\.'J)) 
7S72.971 
l).61JO.()()(, 

'I;H35x3 
2.712.~12 

2:J76Y4~ 

2.734.710 
I,OX5.:l;' 
2.703J)46 

:n75.\4 
l,9142<}/\ 

Uil.S'O 
US7.41S 

733.'4 

5552:!.><83 

,4/,2..If)(1 

!4.iJ);I~.:!14 

;25>~5~ 

1 t.9()1.4~2 

S 72551~Ji12 

AtHlUst 3t, 2011 
\1~turititt~ in Yem~ 

'Ij\..l41A74 
1(!I).6HSJliQ 10(}.1}9,';16-

::t2H356 
1.l20DOO 

'.,'92M2 
71529,023 
J<)}40J~KI Jm().t~K) 

19\1.6':~) 1.6.'14557 9MJ~.1 

15".069 
50ts.Z65 
57A25 
735<)1 

8,K46 

5 . .'61.281 

12.Wll.9.'.\ 
'1571,971 
~.<>W'(KlI) 

4.1P5j\,\ 
2.712.li12 
2.716.'141' 
2.H4,7l(l 
IJI~:--;}2.{ 

1."03.1,)46 
.'.'r7.),~4 

!.91429~ 

I "II SlH 
!.I 87.428 

7,'\),lJ 

5·L1J5A55 US7.42~ 

40 

Crt.:dit R,lting 

M",.I\'\ :i&t' 

NiA N:A 
Aau AA+ 

NiA NlA 

nm" A+(l'ildli 
'\;11 AA· 
N/A N:'A 
A.a~'I- AAAnl 

NntRal<'J ;..Jut Raled 
Not Ralcd NmR .. !.,d 
Notntitxl Nnt Ral~d 
Notnlh,X! ~nt R'1h."d 
1"ot mh,,"U :'\l(1l Rated 

l'\ot rntC'd NOl Rat~d 

Snlmt~d N('lt rated 

;\'ntmh.'tj )';o.t mt~d 

:\otml~d Nut rated 
Xot t<Jh.'(\ Not ntkd 
:'\ot fl1h:d Notmte<l 
Not rHh.·d j\;OI ral~d 

!\ot rated No! rated 
Notmk«J 1'\01 mhxl 
Not fCllC'<i t\(1t rated 
1'\01 rakt.l N01 raf~d 

Not rahXl N01 mkd 
Nnt fUtl,,~d 1\01 tah.'d 

.KOf rah..'li t-.:01 nUl,.';d 

N01 falL.' .. l No1 fat~d 

~otmh:d Kot mh:d 

Ntll rall'1 Nolrald 

II tFitch. B+ 



CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31, 20 II 

INVESTMENT POLICIES 

General City Policy 

Generally, the City's investing activities are managed under the custody of the City Treasurer. Investing is 
performed in accordance with the investment policy adopted by the City Council complying with state 
statutes and the City Charter. The City may legally invest in U.S. government securities and agencies, 
U.S. government sponsored agencies, and in bank repurchase agreements. It may also invest to a limited 
extent in corporate bonds, bankers' acceptances, and investment agreements. 

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investment securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. 

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
rates, the City's investment policy limits current operating funds to be invested with maturities of not 
longer than twenty-four months. Fixed income investments held in construction funds, operating funds, 
and other nonoperating funds are limited to ten-year matm1ties. Investment agreements are not subject to 
interest rate risk, as the issuer guarantees the interest rate. Money market mutual funds and external 
investment funds are presented as investments with a maturity of less than one year because they are 
redeemable in full immediately. Tax Increment Financing investments are allowed to exceed 10 years as 
the interest rates are guaranteed by the fund and the investment is made within the City's funds. 

Credit Risk. Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. The City's investment policy establishes requirements for certain investment securities to be 
rated at certain rates or higher without having collateral pledged to the City. The following investment 
types must be rated at the minimum rates noted below: 

Money Markets 
Corporate Notes 
Investment Agreements 

S&P 
AA 
AA­
AA-

Moody's 
Aa 
Aa3 
Aa3 

Investment agreements are made with provIsIOns that if the provider is downgraded below Aa3 by 
Moody's Investors Service (Moody's) or AA- by Standard & Poor's (S&P) the provider must deliver 
collateral of U.S. Government agencies obligations at a margin of 104% and if the provider is further 
downgraded, the City will have the right to terminate the agreement and receive all invested amounts plus 
accrued but unpaid interest without penalty. As of August 31, 2011, the investment agreements were 
adequately collateralized with U.S. Government agencies obligations that had a rating of Aaa by Moody's 
and AA+ by S&P. 

The external investment funds are held in the City's idle fund pool and are comprised of Nebraska Public 
Agency Investment Trust (NPAIT) and Short-Term Federal Investment Trust (STFIT). NPAIT and STFIT 
invest in only the highest quality securities, including U.S. government, rated U.S. sponsored agencies, and 
guaranteed student loans. 

Type 

u.s. agency obligations: 
Federal Home Loan Bank 

Federal Hume Loan Mortgage Corpuf<lliol1 
Federal National Mortgage Associati()ll 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 

Portfolio 
Composition 

41 

2()X2 qr 
').26 

20.17 

3.81 

Policy Limits 

on Issuer 

40.00 lit· 

40.00 

40.00 

40.00 
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Concentration of Credit Risk. The City's investment policy places various limits on the amount that may 
be invested in anyone issuer. Per the policy, allocation limits do not apply to the investment of proceeds 
from issuance of debt. These investments shall be governed by the debt covenant included in the debt 
instrument. Non-compliance due to a decrease in investment balance does not require corrective action. 

Community Health Endowment (CHE) Policy 

As a public endowment fund, under State law, CHE is permitted to invest in the manner required of a 
prudent investor acting with care, skill and diligence under the prevailing circumstance, without restrictions 
as to the type and limits of investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty, CHE will not be able to recover the value of its investment securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. 

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest 
rates, CHE's investment policy requires the average duration of the fixed income portfolio to be no more 
than 120% of the appropriate fixed income benchmark. Mutual and institutional funds are presented as an 
investment with a maturity of less than one year because they are redeemable in full immediately. 

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. It is CHE's policy to limit its investments in fixed income securities to issues with at least 
BBB-/Baa3 ratings. Short-term fixed income issues should have a minimum A-2/P-2 rating. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. CHE limits the percentage of cost that may be invested in anyone industry, 
company and issuer. CHE's portfolio shall not own more than 5% of the outstanding securities of any 
single issuer. Exceptions are allowed where a fund's benchmark includes securities greater than 3%, in 
which case the investment manager may have no more than the securities index weight plus 2%. The 
entire portfolio shall have no more than 5% of its assets invested in the securities of anyone issuer, with 
the exception of U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies obligations. 

Foreign Currency Risk. This risk relates to adverse affects on the fair value of an investment fi'om changes 
in exchange rates. CHE had no investment denominated in foreign currency at August 31, 2011. 

Police & Fire Pension Trust Policy 

The Police & Fire Pension Trust Investment Board, established by the City Council in accordance with the 
Lincoln Municipal Code chapter 4.62, directs and oversees the trust's investments for the sole benefit of 
plan participants and beneficiaries. The board also provides oversight and directions to the plan 
administrator with regard to the investments of the trust's funds. The daily management responsibility of 
the trust and routine investment transactions are delegated to the plan administrator. 

The Police & Fire Pension Trust is allowed to invest in domestic and international equity funds, domestic 
and foreign bonds, real estate, mortgage-backed securities, and other alternative investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of 
the counterparty, Police & Fire Pension Trust will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 

Interest Rate Risk. The Investment Board for the Police & Fire Pension Trust compares the risk and 
return characteristics derived from the actual performance of the Fund, separate asset classes and specific 
securities to appropriate benchmarks, financial indices and/or funds at least annually. Asset allocation, 
investments, and/or investment managers are adjusted as necessary by this monitoring. 
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Credit Risk. The policy states that the plan wiIl select appropriate investments, or investment manager(s), 
to fiIl each asset class allocation. The individual investment, or investment managers, chosen shall be 
those determined to meet the board's objectives in terms of their overall combination of risk, return, and 
liquidity. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. It is the desire of the board that no more than 5% of assets may be from a 
single corporate or sovereign issuer exclusive of the U.S. government. The board reviews assets to 
monitor the concentration of overlapping securities held by multiple mutual funds. 

Summary of Deposit and Investment Balances 

Following is a reconciliation of the City's deposit and investment balances as of August 31,2011: 

Investments 
Deposits and Cash on Hand 

Cash alld Cash El\uivalcnt:; 
Investments 
Restricted Assets: 

Cll!>h am1 Cash Etjuivalcllts 
Investments 

Totals 
$ 715514,622 

2 1.1 66,HS I 
$ 746.6RI503 

Gnvl'mmcnl-widc Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Statement of 

Net Asset~ 

$ !7().97lJ5I 
284,SOO.261 

16.959.585 
!OS309,58S 

$ 578J)40,782 
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:-.let As~ts 

6,136,939 
1 62.503JR2 

16K.640.nl 

177,IOS.290 
447 o304.!J4.\ 

16,959.585 
IOS.309.511S 
746,681.503 
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Fund balances are classitied as unspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. The 
generally follows this same order in spending available resources unless special circumstances apply. 
following provides details of the aggregate amounts displayed on the face of the balance sheet: 

Major Funds 
West 

General Sireet Haymarlk"l Other 
Fund Conslmction JI'A Funds Total 

Fund Brt!allces: 
Nonspendable: 

Inventory S 472,182 450.225 495.115 1.417,522 
Prepaid Itellls 6,418,988 25.775 6.444.763 
f'emwncnt Fund Principal 37,160,000 J7.l60,OOO 

6,891.170 450,225 25.775 37,655.115 45,n22,2R5 

Restricted For: 
Capitallmproveme!lts 506.854 22.359.280 215.766.74! 13.748.458 251,3l>IJJ3 
Human Services 820,O:n 820,O.B 
Donor Purposes 2.1 65JC3 IJ92.l66 3.558.189 
l'uhlic Imprvvmm:nls 2,033.029 2Jl.B,029 
Agency Activities 9.640.381$ '),640,31$1$ 
Land Purchases 1.02t1.338 1,1)2)038 
Social Security Obligations R14J)43 1I14,043 
Community Betterment 1,840,359 1,84fl,359 
Federal LOllll Prog:rurn~ J ,>,R37.0(}O l'Um,()OO 
Grant Programs 2.274.786 2.274,7116 
Special Assessment Improvements 497.823 497))23 
Debt Service 16,060,41 ! 16,060,411 
Health Care 19.1)77332 19.n77.J3~ 

Library Mcdill 475,7S6 475,7i\6 
5525.739 22,359.280 225,407,129 77,046.702 330.338,850 

Committed To: 
Public Aeces, Television 633.206 633.206 

Assigned to; 
Capitallmpwvcments 13.192.256 207.940 I j,400.196 
Donor Purposes 755)751 755,751 
Public Impro\'cm.:nts 488,9()2 48R.902 
Athletic facility Improvemcnts 905.862 905.862 
S.:nior Can: 246.132 246.132 
Emergency Communications 929MO 929,640 
Economic Dcvdopmcl11 Pwjccl,- 6.40g,344 6,40g,344 
Snow Removal 476.807 476,807 
Land Purcha::;cs 16,055 16,055 
Publ ie Accc~s Televi~i()n II.M6 11.666 
Ubrary Services 2,922,073 2,922,073 

Health Care 599,716 599,716 

Social Security Obligations 351,432 351,432 

Public TrHllsporllltion 869.494 S69,494 

Community Bettermcnt 29,225 29.225 

Building Code Enforcement 2,479.899 2.479.899 

Park Projects 148.567 148.567 

Olll.:r Purposes 4.015.763 4.015.763 
!3,750,394 13.669.063 7.6363367 35,055.524 

Unas.slgll~d 15.5g(,,533 (14n.{l56) 15,446.4i7 

s 41.753.836 36.4n.568 225,432,9()4 12:2.1<31,034 426,496.342 
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August 31,2011 

(6) RECEIV ABLES AND DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

Receivables at August 31,2011, consist of the following (in thousands): 

Spssial i\!\x~~nxnt AC'f!J~0 Gro:-~ Allowanre 1:01: 

n~.\c!>- At.;.:mmt'.> ~ (\l~llribmuH1~ Cummt Dcf('!;IYtt Intcrc~[ Rc"\'i,ahlc, t:nwlk,libb :>Id 

Gcn.:ral 
Street C~)n~lru(tJon 

WN i'bymarkd JPA 
W,htc,\vater System 
Wale! Sy,(cm 

Elcdri( S) ~kHl 

NnnrnaJOf 

Sp<dal RC"ctu, 
lkbt S~!\ ;e. 
(""ilal Pmjeel, 
Permanent 
Emcrrme 

illlernai Servit'c 
Filludaf)' 

~J4X 

lng, 

1346 

8:11 

---
6,612 

~,27~ 

!5li'1 
357 

~,\).J(! 

6,594 

.11$1)7 

!7R l-t5S,1 
T;6 ')66 

7D 

7,749 

166 
41 4,4 ---

56,419 145~J .g.; J76 966 

'14 S.ID 5.71:~ 

7~ 15&5 15R5 
m LiXI i,7&1 

12:,\ 5!155 5055 
'lIJ 6JiS4 6.6$4 

443 J~:5D 8:\0 .lU70 

in l6,~X3 4,746 21537 
71) :.2-U IOJ 2.1-12 
74 791 791 

lfl 7 .. ~46 4j~3 .12'1' 
III ciS 278 
83f, un un 

1.'t~2 91.$::2 H).2BO 81542 

Enterprise funds customer accounts receivable include unbilled charges for services. Delinquent special 
assessment receivables at August 31, 2011, were $229,861. 

The total of Due From Other Governments of$29,419,582 includes the following significant items: 

Fund/Fund Type 
GeneraliMajor Governmental 

Street Construction/Major Governmental 

West Haymarket JPAlMajor Governmental 

LincolnlLancaster Co. Health/Special Revenue 

StarTraniSpecial Revenue 

Federal Grants/Special Revenue 

Antelope Valley/Tax Supported BondslDebt Service 

Vehicle Ta;'{/Capital Projects 

Information Services/Internal Service 

Insurance Revolving!lnternal Service 

Copy Services/lntemal Service 

Subtotal 

All other 

Total Due From Other Governments 

S 

$ 
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Amount 
9,669,716 

408,829 

93,761 

90,740 

3,203,486 

38,072 

7,693,368 

107,319 

812,558 

809,449 

345.732 

122,807 

3,943,336 

549,903 

19,019 

166,666 

1.051,635 

221,189 

13,348 

15,139 

29,376,072 

43,510 

')2412582 

Service 
State of Nebraska, July/August 
Sales and Use Tax 

August Motor Vehicle Taxes 
Collected by Lancaster County 

Federal Government, Cost Reimbursements 

Lancaster County, Cost Reimbursements 

State of Nebraska, July/August 
Highway User Fees 

Railroad Transportation Safety District, Cost 
Reimbursements 

Federal Government, Cost Reimbursements 

August Motor Vehicle Taxes 
Collected by Lancaster County 

Federal Government, Cost Reimbursements 

State of Nebraska, Cost Reimbursements 

Lancaster County, Cost Reimbursements 

Federal Government, Cost Reimbursements 

Federal Government, Cost Reimbursements 

State of Nebraska, Cost Reimbursements 

Lincoln Public Schools, Cost Reimbursements 

State of Nebraska, July/August Development 
Fund Disbursements 

August Motor Vehicle Taxes 
Collected by Lancaster County 

Lancaster County Billings 

Lancaster County Billings 

Lancaster County Billings 



(7) CAPITAL ASSETS 

CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31,2011 

Capital asset activity for the year ended August 31, 2011 was as follows: 

Beginning 
BalanLes Increases 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital Assets. not heing Depreciated: 
Land $ 63.866.125 6J)(}4.782 
Construction in Progress 8i(62 1.00 1 SO.S7? .695 
-liltal Capital Asset,. not being Depreciated 152.487.126 86.882.477 

Capital As!>t,t;. heing D.:prccimcd: 
BUildings 76,662582 5.9UJ.6,n 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 64.922,165 1,666.76') 
Machinery and Equipmcnt 81.682.704 10.876.217 
InfrastflR'wre :H4.930.606 14185.600 
Total Capital As~C!s. being ~preciated 75g,l98.057 31.732213 

Less Accumulmed Dq>fc..:iation i(lr: 
Building> 30.712.352 2.1)(>1.624 
ImproWll1enh Othel Than Building:. 26.731324 1.968.678 
Machinery and Equipm.:nt 50.081.767 6.655,949 
!nffll~lructure 180J61,967 15,954289 
TOI'l1 AeCUlllUla!~"{! l)cpn;eiatinn 287,888,810 26,6.:1(l540 

Tmal Capital A~sels. being Depreciated. Net 470.309.247 6.091.683 

Guv,'mlllen!a! Acli.ilie- Capital A,,,;;K Net S 612.79637> 92,974,ltiO 

Bchiulling 
Balam:es * Increases 

Business-type Acth'ities: 
Capitul A~seh, Ullt hdnJ; Depl\~ialcd: 
Laud S 21.950552 2.193.nt 
Con~lnlction in Pmgre,s SO;371.677 67,664,006 
Total Capital Assets. nn! heing Depredated 72323229 (;9.857.740 

Capitlll A,seK heillg Depreci;ded 
Buildings J9.1,3HU67 464,387 
!mpmVC'l11ent~ Olh'-f Than Buildings ()(U.90J.096 Il.6Z1J85 
Ma"hincry ;md r--:'luipm<'llt :?9J 2,~.7}t~ 1521574 
\,Ttilhy Plam 1.l9<) .. ~77,OOO 27364J)()() 
Total Capital Assets. being Depreciated 2JIZ5.iI4.045 -10.971.146 

L,~~s Accumulated D",p!\~.:iatinl1 for: 
Buildings 66.766.644 -1.334592 
Improvements Oth()[ Than Buildings 157 .i88.5 19 12.431.105 
Machin~ry and Equipment 1(;.891.771 1.8-1J,088 
Utility Plant 416.1 16,lltKt ·n,?Rl.nnn 

T"tal Accumulated Dcpreciation 677 582.934 55,892,085 

Total Capita! Assets. being Deprcd(ttcd. Net U48.1.~ 1.111 , 14,920,939) 

Bu"int"s-lyp~ A,'livities Capital As~h. Net S I .,110 A5·1340 5·t,9.16.80 I 
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Emling 
Decreases Balances 

20.000 (9)'1;;0.907 
l.'in.7l9 1 67.9l'¥.977 
i~'i'lJ.71,) 237.775.884 

,,40,607 82.225.612 
2795-'6 66,309J98 

6'<)24){07 85.634.114 
503.091 548.71:'.115 

8,048.041 782.!~!Q.2J9 

2\11.755 32,481.111 
268,920 28.4-'2.482 

6.788.619 49.949.097 
51.102 !96.26S,054 

7.4nl.4% 307.1:;7.854 

6-+6545 475.754.385 

2.240,264 713530.269 

Ending 
Decreases Balances 

24,144.286 
-'8,462.053 i9574.6JO 
;<8.462,l153 HI:l.7 P!.91 6 

186.244 193.5883 lO 
11.1)95 615,410.886 
290,491 ~03:i4.);65 

2227J)00 I 124514.00() 
~.817.l30 2.063.868.061 

163.217 70m8.019 
llO.15:! 170.109.772 
274.989 iK,459,870 

'.fl7~ .nnn J70.7.u .001) 

3.223,358 730.151.661 

(-I()6.228) I 3.13.616.100 

:<8.o:'i:i.8~:i lA37.335)16 



CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31, 2011 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows: 

Gowmmenral Activitie,;: 
General Govcrnment 
Public SaMy 
Streets and Highways. including Infrastruetnre 
Culture and Rccreation 
Economic Opportunity 
Health and Welfare 
:Vla~b Transit 

Subtotal 
Internal Service Funds Capital Assds 

Deprecilltion is chargt'd to the various 
functions based on usage of the assets, 

Total f)epreeimion Expellse - Govemmt'nrnl 

BU$ines~'(ypc Activitit~S; 
Parking LOb 
Gnlf 
Parking Facililie~ 
Pershing Municipal Auditorium 
Solid Waste Managemcut 
Emergency Medical Services 
Wastewater System 
Wakr System 
Lincojn Etedril: System 

Total Depreciation Expense. Business·type 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1.156,876 
I.iN9,9~5 

15.3 18.875 
3.593.628 

52520 
29f>JM 

1,872.044 
24.190,293 

2,450.2..t7 
26M05..tt1 

28.081 
591,046 

1.133.980 
21355 

1,969.068 
92.256 

7.128.253 
7.645,()46 

37,283.000 

$ ==55=,=89=' 2=.0=. 8:=5= 

Capital asset activity of each major enterprise fund was as follows: 

B\.~ginnin~ 

£hlanct's hlCn:,\$CS 

Lincoln Wastewater System: 
Capital Ass~ts, not b~illg Depreciated: 
I ,and S 5.iQO.KH 915(}7 
Construction in Progress 6524586 5,945.499 
Total Cltpil;;' Assets, !lOt being Depreci<lted 12J45AI9 6J)18,OO6 

Capital AssCB, heing l)epl'eciatcd: 
Building. 75J59,(,9li 252m 
Improvements Other Th~m Buildings 247 JC8JJ03 6,937.134 
Machinery ltnd Equipment 8551.731 68.483 
Total Capital Assets, being Depredated 331.739.432 7JJ]O,820 

1 ,~SS A""ulllulated Depreciation l"r: 
Buildings 21567.175 1,70.1,959 
Impnwemenls Other Than Buildings 64,367 ~'16 4.960,488 
Ma<.:hinery lmd Equipment 4.447544 463,806 
'I(lwl Accumulated f)<::prc.:iatinll 90JICJ)3S 7.12K,2~B 

Tulal Capilal A,,~ts. hdng Dcpl'cciak'<i. ~(:I 241 ,357.397 (97,433) 

W<l~k' .. akr SY'il'tn (\!pit.,1 A'M:I" Net $ ~)3,70VH6 5,l)40j73 
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Ending 
D~creas..:~ Balanc." 

5,91 ,~J40 
6,280551 6,189533 
6280552 12.102,873 

75 "~1\",,l)01 
11:'395 254.65L742 
::!3,480 8596,734 

13(1,1\75 338,633,:177 

n,27lJ34 
110.152 69.217.651 
16,U49 4.X95,JO! 

116,2() 1 97 Jx..t.mn 

10.674 141 ,249,:!90 

6.:!<) 1.226 253J52J6:~ 



CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
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August 31,2011 

Beginning 
Balances 

Lincoln Water System: 
Capital As;;ets, not heing Depreciuted: 
I ,and S 'i.4441ll17 
Construe( ion in Prugrc~~ 2.116,922 
Total Capillt! Assets. not being Depreciated 7561529 

Capital Assets. bdng Depreciated: 
Buildi,,&, 1l7.219.9N2 
ImpWVCI11CIHS Other Than Buildings 320.129285 
Mm:h i ncr)' ,HId Etluipment S.l8UM 
TOI.al Capital Assets. being Depreciated 3955.n.051 

L.:ss Ac<:umulatcd Depreciation lilr: 
Builllill)!s 22.896,770 
ImpW\'CtnCllts Olh"r Than Building; 74.957.759 
Mu..:hincry and Equipment 4,212.023 
Total Accumulated Dcprccilllion 102,{)66552 

Tot(l] C,pilal /\>~cts. being D"pr''''i"h:d. :-.let 29.H66A99 

Walt'"~ Sy"'''" Capital As";,,. Nd :5 ~() 1.O:tI.O~:\ 

Beginning 
Balances w 

Lincoln Electric Systcm: 
Caplla! Assds. not being Depreciated: 
Construction in Progress S 41.219,{X)O 

Capil<l! }\ssels. bdng Deprcci,\(cd: 
Utili!), Plant 1.!91}~~17.00(l 

Less Accumulated Depredation 436.136.000 
Tolal Capital Assets. being [)cpreciak'<i. N'::l 763.141.000 

EkTtrll: System Capilal Assel>. Net :5 804,470.000 

Emling 
In'T~ascs Decreases B~ilal1,:es 

'\60 ').445.167 

~! _~~~~.~£T~ '" 4.170.514 I.SII.OSI 
3565.233 4.170514 6.956.2·18 

'.4.1.449 67,36",0$11 
4.676,485 324.805.770 

404.851 Ig.')12 8569,723 
5.224.7H) PI.') 12 400.7JN.914 

1502.175 24.398.945 
5.M9.850 SO.607 .609 

493.021 IS.912 4.686.132 
7,645,(}46 I iI.'l I 1 109.692.6:\6 

(2.420,261) 2')1.046,23:\ 

1.1-44.97::> 4.17051.4 298J)()2,486 

Ending 
Increases l><:t:reases Balances 

44.&47.00U 21.1109,(KX) 51L261 ,000 

21.J64.0(){) 2.227.(lOO I .224.5 I 4JKJO 
37.2tH.OOO ",675.000 470.7<W.OOO 
(9.919.000) {·H8.0(0) 753.770.000 

~~.ng.oon 27J61.0(lO RI2Jl.n.()O(j 

During 20 II, Lincoln Wastewater System incurred $3,559,554 of interest cost, of which $135,518 was 
capitalized into construction in progress. Lincoln Water System incurred $3,179,819 of interest cost, of 
which $73,328 was capitalized into construction in progress. Lincoln Parking System incun'ed $905,572 
of interest cost, of which $366,508 was capitalized into construction in progress. Capitalized interest is 
added to the cost of the underlying assets and is amortized over the useful lives of the assets. 

Lincoln Electric System utility plant includes an allowance for funds used during construction for projects 
costing in excess of $500,000 with a construction period in excess of 12 months. The allowance for funds 
used during construction consists of the project balance times the weighted-average interest rate on debt 
based on Federal Energy Regulatory Commission accounting method. The weighted-average rate for 2010 
was 4.6%. 

* EfTective January I, 2010, LES implemented GASB No. 51 Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
intangible Assets. As a result, software assets and accumulated amortization of $6,977,000 and 
$4,445,000, respectively, were reclassified from other assets to capital assets and restated in beginning 
balances. 
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(8) INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 

Balances Due To/From Other Funds at August 31, 2011, consist of the following: 

Due'fo Due From 

General Street We" Nmllnajor Nonmajor 
Fund Construction Haymarket JPA Governmental Enll~rprise 

Genera! Fund S ",15K 9.466 25.:m 97(),685 
Street ConstfUi:tiun lJ)22.9K3 4319.252 
Nonmajnr O()verOm"nta! 1.I\(}6.1I5 1,49l\.7n2 
Liru:oln Wastcwater SVslcm 527,415 686.631 
Lincoln W;tler Svstem 2R293 .,9.915 
Nonmajor Enterprise 773,994 5,774 34.357 
Inkrn:tl Snvi<:(' 1,509.245 195.845 22.975 140.875 20JJII 

S 5.7I4.U45 210.877 :'11.441 6,744,955 990,696 

inlemal 
Scn'l'e TOI,II 

92<l.O74 1.934,706 
5342235 
3J04,817 
Ul4Jl46 

314.20R 
II 814.136 

46.189 L935.140 

966.274 14.65'}.1~8 

"Due to" and "Due from" balances are recorded when funds overdraw their share of pooled cash. Other 
balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or 
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments 
between funds are made. 

During 2005 the City's General Fund purchased the street light system from LES at an amount equal to the 
net book value of the street light system at the transaction date. The purchase was financed through an 
interfund borrowing. On the government-wide statements, the purchase was accounted for as a purchase 
of capital assets of governmental activities and a sale of capital assets of business-type activities. On the 
governmental fund statements, the General Fund recognized a liability in due to other funds and a 
prepayment for the funds borrowed from the City's other funds. Each fund has recorded a receivable for 
the pro-rata share of the borrowed funds. The General Fund will pay back the amount borrowed plus 
interest in scheduled monthly installments over a period of 120 months. As payments are made, the 
General Fund will reduce the liability, the related prepayment, and recognize streets and highways 
expenditures. 

Transfers To/From Other Funds for thc year ended August 31, 2011, consist of the following: 

Transfer To Transfer From 

Geneml Street Nonmajor Un.:oln Electric Nonmajor Internal 

Fund Construction O()vernmenllli System Enh:rpri5<: Sen;" '1',)1<11 

General Fund $ 4._,81.7-"1 1.7.'0.000 75752,} 2!U26 6,8119394 
Str.:ct Con;.lructioll 423.871 I I 580.0S2 12.003,923 
Nomnajor Governmental 15.2t:LOI5 4.940556 3.788.756 1.025m8 5~:I 24,966.9:18 
Lincoln Water System 129395 30.000 159395 
Nonlllajnr Enterprise 589.415 22388 247502 859JOS 
Internal Service 5.958 5.00n 2.463 13.421 

'l,'lai S 16.360.tiS4 4.945.55r. 1.9.805398 1.130.000 2.030.109 20.6:W 44.892376 

Transfers are used to (l) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the 
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) use unrestricted revenues in the General Fund to 
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and 
(3) transfer payment in lieu of taxes from LES to the General Fund. 

49 



(9) DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

SHORT-TERM 

CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

August 31,2011 

Established by City Ordinance, LES may borrow up to $150 million under a commercial paper note 
program. At December 31, 2010, LES had $90 million of tax-exempt commercial paper notes outstanding. 
The notes mature at various dates but not more than 270 days after the date of issuance. The weighted­
average interest rate for the year ended December 31, 2010, was 0.31 percent. The outstanding 
commercial paper notes are secured by a revolving credit agreement, which provides for borrowings up to 
$150 million. LES pays a commitment fee for the credit agreement. Under the terms of the agreement, 
LES can either settle or refinance the commercial paper upon maturity. LES uses these vehicles as part of 
their long-term financing strategy. As such, commercial paper is renewed as it matures. The weighted 
average length of maturity of commercial paper for 2010 was 66 days. 

Lincoln fo:Iectrie Sy<tem: 
Commercial Papcr Note" 

B~giJming 

SalallC<' Reduction ... 
Emling 
!{alancc 
9{),OnO,O{)() 

Due Withm 
OJ1CYC;lf 

'In ,000 ,om 

The City of Lincoln is authorized by Ordinance No. 19402 to issue General Obligation Bond Anticipation 
Notes for the purpose of providing interim financing for costs in connection with construction of a new 
arena and related improvements in the West Haymarket area of the City. As of August 31, 2010, only 
$2,000,000 of tax anticipation notes had been issued. Payment of the principal and interest on the notes 
was paid from the proceeds of bonds issued by the West Haymarket JP A. At August 31, 2011, there were 
no notes outstanding. 

City of Lincoln: 
Ta, Anth.:iptltion ~ntc ... 

LONG-TERM 

fkgioning 
Balatl<:c Addilinlls 

(2 JX)O IX1()) 

Endiug 

BaJan(~ 

Due \V~thjrt 

On.: ¥c;u 

The City issues general obligation, special assessment, and revenue bonds to finance the acquisition and 
construction of major capital assets. Bonded indebtedness has also been entered into to advance refund 
several general obligation and revenue bonds. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge 
the full faith and credit of the government. Special assessment bonds are repaid from amounts levied 
against affected property owners, but in the unlikely event collections are not sufficient to make debt 
payments, the responsibility rests with the City to meet that obligation. For revenue bonds the government 
pledges income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay the debt service. 

Net assets of $2,666,408, $3,016,975, $10,291,693, and $85,335 are currently available in the debt service 
funds to service the General Obligation Bonds, Tax Supported Bonds, Tax Allocation Bonds, and Special 
Assessment Bonds, respectively. Revenue Bonds are funded partially from reserve accounts set up for 
debt repayment and partially from proceeds of daily operations. 

The City has entered into lease agreements for financing the acquisition of land, buildings, street lights, 
emergency ambulances and defibrillators, fire engines, golf equipment, and computer equipment and 
software. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have 
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been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. Assets 
acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Land 11 1.774.450 '> 210.000 
Buildings IlU7LW9 
Improvements 219.925 
Infrastructure 13JI9.213 
MII('hillcry and Equipment 2.946J)OO 3,492J56 
Constmction in Progres~ 3liX.l X I 
Less Accumulated DepreCiation. 

(where applicable) (5,566307) (2.256.254) 

Total S 31.652.861 $ 1.446.502 

In 2011, the City issued $3,125,000 in refunding certificates of participation (COPS) with an average 
interest rate of 1.64% to refund $3,655,000 in outstanding 2006, 2005 and 2004 COPS. The refunding 
resulted in a cash flow differential of$371,658 and an economic gain of$154,538. 

Under the City's Home Rule Charter, there is no legal debt limit. The various bond indentures contain 
significant limitations and restrictions on annual debt service requirements, minimum amounts to be 
maintained in various bond reserve funds, and minimum revenue bond coverages. 

In 2011, the City issued $19,290,000 in general obligation refunding bonds with an average interest rate of 
2.84% to refund $21,500,000 of 1999A various purpose bonds, 2002 storm sewer and drainage bonds, and 
2005 storm sewer refunding bonds. The refunding resulted in a cash flow differential of $4,411,524, and 
an economic gain of $2,504,754. 

In 2011, the City also issued $4,025,000 in parking refunding bonds with an average interest rate of 4.9% 
to refund $5,525,000 in outstanding Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A. The refunding resulted in a 
cash flow differential of $(346,476) and an economic loss of $(25,445). 

Lincoln Wastewater System has entered into a loan agreement with the Nebraska Department of 
Environmental Quality (NDEQ) consisting of two separate contracts. Funding totaling $5,000,000 is 
available under Contract A to fund celiain sewer system extension and repairs. During the year ended 
August 31, 2011, Lincoln Wastewater System incurred project costs totaling $558,399, resulting in 
additional project loan payable of $509,901. Under Contract B Lincoln Wastewater System has available a 
$5,000,000 loan, subject to availability of state and federal funds, to finance certain projects of the system. 
During the year ended August 31, 2011, the System incurred project costs totaling $3,546,400 resulting in 
the recognition of a project loan payable of $3,512,098. The remaining available funds under Contract B 
totaling $1,487,902 are not reflected on the financial statements. The interest rate for these loans range 
from 0.0 to 2.0 percent. 

The Wastewater System has also entered into a $17,000,000 loan agreement with NDEQ to fund certain 
System improvements. The interest rate during the period of construction is 2%. After the date of 
initiation of operation, the interest rate will increase to 2.25%. In addition, an administrative fee of 1 % 
will be incurred on the loan. No project costs were incurred during the fiscal year ended August 31, 2011, 
therefore, the available loan is not reflected on the financial statements. 
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Long-tenn bonded debt of the City is comprised of the following individual issues (in thousands of 
dollars): 

Ori~ma( lntcrcst Dat",; InfCl'~st 

Atn~l*'t "!>.u~d I~"'h¢ Rak \Vh~n Pu¢ (';;~llahj>;· r);~t¢ ()ut:-t411~li:nS" 

Govt'rllmcntal Adhitic'S: 
GI:,~t1eral Ohh£,Alti\)n Rnnds: 

Gefwral B'PHds: 

~.2.!.O o "lJ\iW V.(t.flOU'" f~Jrp<\~¢ St"rks H ,\.4XHl. ,~,J~H ~·~~rbJ p.JL)1.) 10 20 J I 20p} Sf'minnnu{,~ly S 1«; 
155,,5 n7,.1,}X;1f\ V"tn1'HHi PUfpO~~ 2.625 .1,750 S('rbl 20t};.~ to 2017 2013 5.:!t5 
'.710 07;08:0.' v,>.,ri~,u.,; PllfPf)!\.C HW~Jf -l,125 T .... rm 1020 &- ::!U2:~ ),{JI3 .1,710 
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Annual requirements to pay principal and interest to maturity on outstanding debt follow (in thousands of 
dollars): 
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Major Enterprise fund annual requirements to pay principal and interest to maturity on outstanding debt 
follow (in thousands of dollars): 

fisol I\,tuj"r Entcrpri.c Fum" 
Year End"d W",tcW;lIcr Svstem Water Svslcm Electric System 
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Long-term liability activity for the year ended August 31, 2011 was as follows (in thousands of 
dollars): 
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Internal Service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Therefore, their long-tenn liabilities 
are included with the governmental activities above. Compensated absences for governmental activities 
are generally liquidated in the General Fund as well as various other Special Revenue and Internal Service 
funds where personal costs are incurred. The construction contracts are liquidated in the Street 
Construction fund, financed primarily with impact fee collections. The claims and judgments liability will 
generally be liquidated through the City'S Insurance Revolving Internal Service Fund, which will finance 
the payment of those claims by charging other funds based on management's assessment of the relative 
insurance risk that should be assumed by individual funds. The net pension obligation will be liquidated 
through the Police & Fire Pension Contributions Special Revenue Fund with financing provided by an 
annual propelty tax levy. The net OPEB obligation for an implicit rate subsidy will be liquidated with 
those governmental funds where personal insurance costs are incurred. 

Long-tenn liability activity for thc major enterprise funds for the year ended August 31, 2011, was as 
follows (in thousands of dollars): 
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(10) RECONCILIATION OF BUDGET BASIS TO GAAP 

Amounts presented on a non-GAAP budget basis of accounting differ from those presented in accordance 
with GAAP due to the treatment afforded accruals, encumbrances, funds for which budget and reporting 
structures differ, and funds for which legally adopted annual budgets are not established. A reconciliation 
for the year ended August 31, 2011, which discloses the nature and amount of the adjustments necessary to 
convert the actual GAAP data to the budgetary basis, is presented below: 

Net Change in Fund Balances: 
Balance on a GAAP basis 

Basis differences (accruals) occur because the cash 
basis of accounting used for budgeting differs from 
the modified accrual basis of accounting prescribed 
for governmental funds. 

Perspective differences occur when the structure used 
for budgeting differs from the fund structure used for 
financial reporting. 

Amount budgeted on a project basis. 
Balance on a budget basis 

(11) DEFICIT NET ASSETS 

General 
Fund 

$ 2,910,783 

(589,953) 

(352,050) 

$ 1.968,780 

Street 
Construction 

Fund 

4,150,021 

(341,464) 

11,512,649 
15,321.206 

The following funds had a net asset or fund balance deficit as of August 31, 2011: 

Special Revenue - Impact Fees Fund $ (140,056) 

Internal Service - Engineering Revolving Fund (589,900) 

The Impact Fees Fund deficit is expected to be reduced through future fee collections. 

The Engineering Revolving Fund is evaluating various means to reduce expenses and improve revenue 
collections affected by staffing levels, overhead costs, billing practices, and intra-City services 
reimbursements. 

(12) EXCESSES OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

The following fund had expenditures for which there were no appropriations: 

General Fund 
Fire 
Street Lighting 
Debt Service 

(13) EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT PLANS 

$ 41,024 
1,140,687 

6,806 

The employees of the City are covered by several retirement plans. Article II Section 3 of the Lincoln 
Charter assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the various plans to the City 
Council. The Police and Fire Department Plan (PFDP) is administered by the City and is included in the 
Fiduciary Fund type. All other plans are administered by outside trustees and are not included in the City'S 
basic financial statements. 
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POLICE AND FIRE PENSION 

Plan Description - PFDP is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the City of 
Lincoln. PFDP provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 
PFDP recognizes plan member contributions in the period in which they are due. Employer contributions 
are recognized when due and the City has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. 
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Cost­
of-living adjustments are provided to members and beneficiaries in accordance with the plan document. 
The City does not issue a separate report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for PFDP. 

The City has established the Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) for police and fire pension 
members. The DROP program allows a member to retire for pension purposes, but to continue working. 
The member receives a paycheck and the member's monthly pension benefit is deposited into the 
member's DROP account. At the end of five years, or anytime before five years, the member must "retire­
in-fact". Contributions to the pension are eliminated at the beginning of the DROP period. Pension 
benefits arc set, and will not be increased because of raises, promotions, increased years of service or 
pension enhancements. When a member retires-in-fact, their monthly pension benefit will be paid directly 
to them and the member will have access to the funds in their DROP account. 

Membership of the pension plan consisted of the following at August 31, 2011, the date of the latest 
actuarial valuation: 

Retirees and benefkiaries receiving benefits 415 
Terminated plan members entitled to 

but not yet receiving benefits 28 
Al.:tive plan members (non-DROP) 562 
DROP members 52 

Total 1,057 

Number of participating employers 

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established by City 
Ordinance # 15728 dated September 24, 1990, and may be amended by the City Council. Plan members 
are required to contribute between 7% and 8% of their annual covered salary based on an election made by 
the employee. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the rate for fiscal year 
2011 was 13.34% of annual covered payroll. Actual contributions by the City were 12.12% of annual 
covered payroll. Administrative costs of PFDP are financed through investment earnings. 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - The City's annual pension cost and net pension 
obligation to PFDP for the current year were as follows: 

(Dollar amounts in thousands) 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net pension obligation 
Adjustmt~nt to annual required contribution 
Annual pension cost 
Contributions made 
Increase in net pension obligation 
Net pension obligation beginning 
Net pension obligation ending 
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$' 4,652 
269 

(426) 

4,495 

(4,334) 

161 
3596 

$' 3,757 



Year 
Ended 

August 31 
.2011 
2010 
2009 
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Annulil 
Pensiun 

Three-Yem Trend Information 
(Dollar aIllUlIllIs Inlholl';Ultl\) 

Annllal 
Pension 

Percentage 
ofAPC 

Co!>! (APC) Contribution COt1tri.bukd 
$ 4.49:5 $ 43~'4 96 ,,>{. 

.'576 J,96} 111 
3,123 3572 114 

Ncr 
Pension 

Obligation 
$ 3,757 

1,596 
1.983 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - The annual required contribution for the current year was 
deternlined as part of the August 31, 2009, actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial funding 
method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future 
assets of 7.5% per year compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.25 to 8.25% per year, 
including wage inflation at 4.25%, and (c) the assumption that benefits will not increase after retirement. 
The actuarial value of assets was deternlined using a five year smoothed market method. The unfunded 
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payrolls on an open basis over a 
period of thirty years. 

Funded Status and Funding Progress - As of August 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the 
plan was 81 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $204,990,000, and the 
actuarial value of assets was $165,436,000, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of 
$39,554,000. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was 
$35,763,000, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 110.6 percent. 

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as RSI following the Notes to the Financial Statements, 
presents multiyear trend infornlation about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

ELECTRIC SYSTEM 

The City owns and operates its own electric system which is included in the enterprise funds in the 
accompanying basic financial statements. The electric system is controlled and managed by an 
administrative board and is not supported by the City's general tax revenues. The electric system provides 
retirement benefits to its employees under its own separate plan, such benefits being funded solely from 
revenues derived from the operation of the electric system. A summary of the electric system plan is as 
follows: 

LES has a defined contribution retirement plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 
401 (K) covering all employees upon employment; however, employees are not eligible to receive 
employer contributions until they have been employed six months. The plan is a straight-money purchase 
plan, with plan assets held, managed and administered by a trustee. The LES administrative board of 
directors authorized this plan and related contribution requirements. LES' contribution is equal to 200% of 
the employees' contributions, which range from 1 % to 5% of gross wages. Vesting of LES contributions 
occurs over a five-year period. Employee forfeitures are used to reduce employer contributions. Vested 
benefits are fully funded. For the year ended December 31,2010, LES incurred contribution expense of 
approximately $3,214,000 or 9.4% of covered payroll and its employees contributed approximately 
$2,206,000 or 6.5% of covered payroll. 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS 

Directors of City departments are eligible the first of the month following the date employed to be covered 
by the Director's Money Purchase Plan, established by City Ordinance, and administered by an insurance 
company. The Plan is a defined contribution plan requiring contributions determined by the employees' 
date of hire. The City contributes 6% to 12% and the employee contributes 0% to 6% of earned income in 
one calendar year. Employees covered by the Plan may also make voluntary contributions. Participant 
accounts are immediately 100% vested. Total and covered payroll for the year ended December 31, 2010, 
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was $1,821,626. City contributions totaled $215,911 or 11.8% of covered payroll. There were no 
employee contributions made for the year ended December 31, 20 10. 

ALL OTHER CITY EMPLOYEES 

All other City employees are eligible after 6 months' service and age 19 to be covered under the City's 
Money Purchase Pension Plan, established by City Ordinance, and administered by an insurance company. 
Enrollment in the program is mandatory at age 40 with 5 years service. Vesting occurs in increments 
between 3 and 7 years of enrollment in the plan. The Plan is a defined contribution plan requiring 
employees to contribute at a rate determined by the employees' bargaining unit and date of hire. The City 
contributes between $1.29 and $2.00 for every $1.00 contributed by employees. Employee forfeitures are 
used to reduce employer contributions. Employees covered by the Plan may also make voluntary 
contributions. During the year ended December 31, 2010, total payroll was approximately $75,906,000 
and covered payroll was approximately $67,347,000. City contributions totaled $7,610,244 or 11.3% of 
covered payroll and employee contributions totaled $3,847,900 or 5.7% of covered payroll. Employees 
made $271,564 in voluntary contributions for the year ended December 31,2010. 

(14) OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

Plan Description - The City offers employees and their families the opportunity to continue their health 
care coverage when there is a qualifying event, such as retirement, that would result in a loss of coverage 
under the City's plan. Each qualified beneficiary pays the entire cost of premiums for the continuous 
coverage. The City recognizes as OPEB the implicit rate subsidy provided to retirees when their premium 
is the "full cost" of the insurer's charge for the active population. Since the retirees have higher costs, the 
premium they pay is not expected to cover their costs, and the difference is essentially covered by the 
City's payment for active employees. The City plan is a single-employer defined benefit plan. The City 
does not issue a separate report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
forOPEB. 

Funding Policy - The plan is a pay-as-you-go and therefore, is not funded. 

Annual OPEB cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The City'S annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated 
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if 
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover nonnal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded 
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. 

The net OPEB obligation as of August 31, 2011, was calculated as follows: 

(Dollar amounts ill thousands) 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net OPES obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual OPEB cosl 
Contributions made 
Increase in net OPEB obligation 
Net OPEB obligation beginning 
Net OPEB obligation ending 
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$ 2,111 
lOR 

(141) 

2.078 
(524) 
\554 
2AOI 

$ 3,955 
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The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB costs contributed and the net OPEB 
obligation are as follows: 

Year Annual Percentage of Net 
Ended OPEE AnnualOPEE OPEE 

AugusUI Cost Cnst Contributed Oblie3tion 
" 2011 $ 1.078.000 25.2 u ,( S 3.955.000 

2010 2,097,000 25.1 2,401.0()O 
2009 656.000 37.2 830.000 

Funded Status and Funding Progress ~ As of September 1,2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, 
the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial liability for benefits was $19,796,000 and the actuarial 
value of assets was zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) of $19,796,000. Annual 
covered payroll was approximately $112,002,000, and the ratio of the UAL to the covered payroll was 
17.7%. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of OCCUlTence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about 
the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statement, presents multi-year trend infonnation about whether the actuarial value 
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions ~ Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on 
the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types 
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-tenn volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-tenn perspective of the calculations. 

In the September I, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The actuarial 
assumptions includcd a 4.5% discount rate and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.5% initially, 
reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0% for 2020 and beyond. Implicit in this medical trend rate 
is an underlying general inflation rate in the range of 3 to 4%. Participation assumptions include 60% of 
eligible civilian members and 40% of eligible FirelPolice members electing coverage, with 30% and 20% 
participation assumed for civilian and Fire/Police spouses, respectively. The plan's unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis over a period of thirty years. 

PEHP ~ Defined Contribution Plan 

The City has a defined contribution Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP) administered by Nationwide 
Retirement Solutions. The purpose of the PEHP plan is to provide reimbursement of qualifying health care 
and medical insurance premium expenses for employees upon separation from employment. 

Terms for eligibility and contribution rates are specified in the City's various collective bargaining 
agreements. Individual employee accounts consist of employer contributions, investment returns and any 
forfeiture allocations. Current employer contributions range from $18-$50 per pay period based on union 
contracts. Current year contributions totaled approximately $1,297,000. 
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The Home Rule Charter of the City imposes a tax ceiling for general revenue purposes. The City tax 
ceiling was established by using the September I, 1966, City dollar tax limit as an initial tax limit, and 
increasing that tax limit each year following 1966 by 7% so that in each fiscal year thereafter the amount 
of the City tax limit shall be the amount of the City tax limit for the previous year plus 7% thereof. In 
addition, the City has the power to levy taxes each year sufficient to pay any judgment existing against the 
City, the interest on bonded debt and the principal on bonded debt maturing during the fiscal year or 
within 6 months thereafter, as well as taxes authorized by state law. The 2010 tax levy, for the 2010-2011 
fiscal year, was $93,513,495 below the legal limit, with a tax rate per $100 valuation of $0.2879. The 
assessed value upon which the 2010 levy was based was $15,881,260,420. 

The tax levies for all political subdivisions in Lancaster County are certified by the County Board on or 
before October 15th. Real estate taxes are due on December 31 st and attach as an enforceable lien on 
property on January 1st following the levy date and become delinquent in two equal installments on April 
1 st and August 1 s1. Personal property taxes are due December 31 st and become delinquent on April 1 st 
and August 1 st following the levy date. Delinquent taxes bear 14% interest. 

Within the government-wide financial statements, property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for 
which they are levied. Property taxes levied for 2010-2011 are recorded as revenue in the fund financial 
statements when expected to be collected within 60 days after August 31, 2011. Prior-year levies were 
recorded using these same principles, and remaining receivables are re-evaluated annually. Property taxes 
expected to be collected after 60 days are recorded as deferred revenue on the fund balance sheets. 

The City-owned electric utility is required by City Charter to make payments in lieu of taxes, aggregating 
5% of its gross retail operating revenues derived from within the city limits of incorporated cities and 
towns served. 

(16) RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; 
elTors or omissions; injuries to employees and the public; or acts of God. All risk management activities 
are accounted for in the Insurance Revolving Fund, an internal service fund, and administered through the 
Risk Management Division. 

For the year ended August 31, 2011, the City had a self-insured retention for workers' compensation 
exposures up to $750,000 per individual; law enforcement liability, general liability, public officials 
liability, public transportation liability, medical professional liability, and auto liability exposures up to 
$250,000 per occurrence; building and contents property exposures up to $50,000 per occurrence; health 
and dental benefits, and employee long-term disability benefits. 

The City also obtained excess liability insurance coverage in the current year. Workers' compensation was 
covered by a policy that provided statutory limits above the City's retention of $750,000 per individual. 
Law enforcement, general, public officials, public transportation, medical professional, and auto liabilities 
were covered by policies that provided limits of $6 million per occurrence with a $12 million annual 
aggregate. Health had excess loss indemnity coverage above $150,000 per claim and above 125% of the 
aggregate attachment point. The Nebraska Political Tort Claims Act limits the City'S liability for tort 
claims to $1 million per individual and $5 million per occurrence. 

There were no significant insurance recoveries in the current year, and settled claims have not exceeded 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

The City annually retains the services of independent actuaries to analyze the self-insured workers' 
compensation, general liability, public transportation liability, law enforcement liability, auto liability, and 
long-term disability exposures. Such analysis has been used to assist the City with its financial planning 
and management of the self-insurance program. Included in the specific objectives of the studies were to: 
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Estimate the outstanding liabilities for the current fiscal year ended August 31, 

Forecast ultimate incurred losses and incurred but not reported losses for future years, and 

Estimate the required funding level for the City's self-insured liabilities. 

The City funds its self-insurance program on an "incurred loss" basis. The governmental and proprietary 
funds pay annual premium amounts, based on past experience of incurred losses, to the Insurance 
Revolving Fund. Claim liabilities of $10,788,956 were recorded at August 31, 2011. Excluding medical 
care claims approximating $2,909,000, the remaining liability is the actuarially estimated amount of claims 
based on an estimate of ultimate incurred and incUlTed but not reported losses as of that date and is 
calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends including frequency and 
amount of pay-outs, and other economic and social factors. The claims liability estimate also includes 
amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific claims and other claim adjustment 
expenses regardless of their allocation to specific claims. These liabilities have been discounted using a 
.50% discount rate. The City has purchased no annuity contracts in the current fiscal year to resolve City 
of Lincoln claims. 

The following is a summary of the changes 111 the estimated claims liability for the years ended 
August 31, 2011 and 2010: 

Worker's 
2011 C()mpen~ation Long-Term Health 

llnd Others Di,ahilil~ and Dental Total 
Balance .11 September I $ 6.590J~JO 896.183 1.227.887 8.714.070 
Current YC(lr claims anJ changes in estimates 2.977.000 230.1\86 22J15.628 15523.514 
Claims payments (2.717 JlOO) (97.272) t20.6,i4J56) (23.4411.628) 
Balam:t at Aug!!>! .; I $ 6J'50.00U 1,029J97 2,909,15'1 IOJR8.IJ5fl 

Wtlrke6 
2010 Compensatiull Long-TeHll Health 

and Others Dbability and Dental Tutul 
Balat1(,'e at September i $ 6167.000 604}70 1.691.707 8563,477 
Current year claims and changes in estimates 1088.000 370Jl67 18.659.998 21J 18.065 
Claims payments (2.765 JJ{lO) (78.654) (!9.11l818) (21.9(17 AiZ) 
Balance at AuguM 3 ! S 6590.0{)O 896.1113 1.227$87 8.714,070 

LINCOLN ELECTRIC SYSTEM 

LES has a self-funded health insurance program with claims processed by and on behalf of the utility. As 
part of the plan, a reinsurance policy has been purchased which covers claims in excess of $150.000 per 
individual. Total accmal and payment history is shown below: 

Balance beginning of year 
Claims accrued 
Claims paid/other 
B:!lllncc end of year 

2010 
$ 478,000 

5J)9~,(K10 

(5.132,000) 
$ 444.000 
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(17) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

GENERAL 

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. Federal financial assistance 
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount of expenditures, if any, which may 
be disallowed by the granting agencies is not determinable at this time; however, City officials do not 
believe that such amounts would be significant. 

At August 31, 2011, approximately 96% of the full-time, regular City's employees are represented by a 
Union. The existing union contracts will expire in August 2012. 

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits and claims in its normal course of operations. 
Management is currently of the opinion that ultimate settlement of such lawsuits and claims will not have a 
materially adverse effect on the financial statements. 

The City has been identified as a potentially responsible party (PRP) or equivalent status in relation to 
several sites with environmental remediation activities. Management currently believes that the liability of 
the City in connection with these activities will be immaterial. However, the ultimate cost will depend on 
the extent of remediation required. Management does not believe that changes in these cost estimates will 
have a materially adverse effect on the financial statements. 

The City of Lincoln owns a solid waste disposal area which discontinued operations in 1990, but still 
requires certain closure and postclosure care, including the construction of final cover, monitoring of 
groundwater conditions and landfill gas migration, and general site maintenance. While accrual of closure 
and postclosure care costs has been reflected in the financial statements in the cun·ent year, additional 
corrective action costs related to landfill gas migration and groundwater conditions may be identified once 
testing is completed and the state regulatory agency has issued a final determination. 

The City has entered into various agreements with developers to build infrastructure for new 
developments. These commitments are included in the City's current 6 year capital improvement program 
or depending on when the commitment is due, will be included in the City's future capital improvement 
program. As of August 31, 2011, the City's commitment to developers is estimated to be approximately 
$43,560,000. 

STREET CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

The City's Street Construction Capital Projects Fund has commitments under major construction contracts 
in progress of approximately $4,400,000 as of August 31, 2011, which will be financed primarily through 
highway user fees, bond proceeds, federal and state grants, and developer contributions. 

WEST HAYMARKET JOINT PUBLIC AGENCY 

The West Haymarket JPA Fund has commitments under major construction contracts in progress of 
approximately $22,000,000 as of August 31, 2011. 

PARKING FACILITIES 

The Lincoln Parking System has commitments under major contracts in progress of approximately 
$7,000,000 as of August 31,2011 for construction of the Catalyst One Garage project. 

LINCOLN WASTEWATER SYSTEM 

The Lincoln Wastewater System has commitments under major construction contracts in progress of 
approximately $8,800,000 at August 31, 2011. 
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LINCOLN WATER SYSTEM 

The Lincoln Water System has commitments under major construction contracts III progress of 
approximately $572,000 as of August 31, 2011. 

LINCOLN ELECTRIC SYSTEM 

Participation Contracts with NPPD 

LES has participating interests in the output of two existing NPPD power plants, a thirty percent (68 M W) 
and eight percent (109 MW) entitlement to the output of the Sheldon Station Power Plant (nominally rated 
225 MW coal plant) and Gerald Gentleman Station Power Plant (nominally rated 1,268 MW coal plant), 
respectively. 

LES is responsible for its respective participating interests in the two facilities' capital additions and 
improvements. LES's share of debt service payments necessary to retire the respective participating 
interests of principal and interest on bonds issued by NPPD for the facilities was approximately $6,800,000 
in 2011. LES recognizes its share of capital acquisition costs and debt service payments as power costs in 
the period the costs are billed with the exception of costs approved for deferral under ASC 980. Fixed cost 
payments under the agreements are on a participation basis whether or not such plants are operating or 
operable. LES recognized expense for its share of the total fixed costs of approximately $16,600,000 in 
2010. 

The participation contracts continue until the facilities are removed from commercial operation or the final 
maturity occurs on the related debt incurred by NPPD to finance the facilities, whichever occurs last. The 
estimated fixed cost payments to NPPD under these contracts, including capital additions and 
improvements, debt service payments and fixed costs, and credits aggregate approximately $19,000,000, 
$21,600,000, $25,100,000, $24,200,000, and $21,600,000, respectivcly, in each of the five years 
subsequent to December 31, 2010. 

Laramie River Station (LRS) 

LES is a 12.76 percent co-owner of the Missouri Basin Power Project, which includes LRS, a three-unit, 
1,650 MW coal-fired generating station in eastern Wyoming and a related transmission system. Costs, net 
of accumulated depreciation, associated with LRS of approximately $23,000,000 are reflected in utility 
plant at December 31,2010. 

LES has a participation power sales agreement with the County of Los Alamos, New Mexico (the County) 
whereby the County purchases from LES 10 MW of LES's capacity interest in LRS. The agreement 
provides for the County to pay LES monthly fixed payments for the repayment of debt service. The 
amount is subject to change each July 1 based on debt costs of LES relative to the current market rates, 
until termination of the agreement. The agreement remains in effect until either the final maturity occurs 
on any LRS related debt, LRS is removed from commercial operation, or the County gives LES six­
months notice to terminate the agreement. During 2010, LES billed the County approximately $3,100,000 
for demand and energy charges. 

The LRS project participants, including LES, filed a rate case in 2004 with the federal Surface 
Transportation Board (STB) challenging the reasonableness of the freight rates from the Burlington 
Northern Santa Fe (BNSF) railroad for coal deliveries to LRS. In early 2009 the STB issued its decision 
and awarded the LRS project participants a favorable decision estimated by the STB at approximately 
$345 million in rate relief. The STB awarded $119 million to the LRS participants for past freight 
overcharges plus an expectation of present value rate benefits of approximately $245 million due to a new 
tariff the STB ordered to be charged through 2024. BNSF remitted $15,000,000 to LES, which has been 
escrowed pending an appeal filed by BNSF. 
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Walter Scott Energy Center (WS4) 

MidAmerican Energy's Walter Scott Energy Center includes the following units: Unit #1 - a 1954 coal­
fired unit built with 43 MW capacity, Unit #2 - a 1958 coal-fired unit built with 88 MW capacity, Unit #3 
- a 1979 coal-fired unit built with 675 MW capacity, and Unit #4 - a supercritical technology, coal-fired 
790 MW unit that became commercial in June, 2007, as well as the associated common equipment and 
inventories. LES maintains ownership interest in 12.6 percent or 105 MW of Unit #4. In order to 
minimize unit outage risk, LES has executed a power purchase and sales agreement with MidAmerican 
Energy. Under this agreement, beginning in 2009, LES will schedule 50 MW of Unit #3 and 55 MW of 
Unit #4. This twenty year unit agreement which can be extended through mutual agreement of the parties. 
LES is responsible for the operation and maintenance expense and maintains a fuel inventory at the plant 
site. LES issued debt in conjunction with the construction of Unit #4 and has capitalized these costs plus 
interest. 

(18) LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS 

The City of Lincoln currently owns and operates both a municipal solid waste landfill and a construction 
and demolition debris landfill. State and federal laws require the City to close the landfills once capacity is 
reached and to monitor and maintain the site for thirty subsequent years on the municipal solid waste 
landfill and five subsequent years on the construction and demolition debris landfilL Although certain 
closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfills stop accepting 
waste, the City reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each 
period based on landfill capacity used as of each statement of net assets date. 

At August 31, 2011, the City had inculTed a liability of approximately $9,774,000 for the municipal solid 
waste landfill which represents the amount of costs reported to date based on the approximately 50 percent 
of landfill capacity used to date. The remaining estimated liability for these costs is approximately $9.9 
million, which will be recognized as the remaining capacity is used (estimated to be approximately 22 
years). 

As of August 31, 2011, the City had inculTed a liability of approximately $600,000 for the construction 
and demolition debris landfill which represents the amount of costs reported to date based on the 
approximately 55 percent of landfill capacity used to date. The remaining estimated liability for these 
costs is approximately $492,000, which will be recognized as the remaining capacity is used (estimated to 
be approximately 16 years). 

The estimated costs of closure and postclosure care, as determined by an independent engineering 
consultant, are subject to changes including the effects of inflation, revision of laws, changes in 
technology, actual sequence of landfill development and closure, and other variables. 

The City of Lincoln, in a review by the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality (NDEQ), has 
demonstrated compliance with the financial assurance requirements as specified in Title 132 - Integrated 
Solid Waste Management Regulations, through the Local Government Financial Test. 

The City of Lincoln also owns a solid waste disposal area that discontinued operations in 1990. Although 
exempt from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Solid Waste Disposal Facility Criteria issued 
October 9, 1991, the City must still adhere to certain closure and postclosure care requirements under prior 
legislation, including the construction of final cover, monitoring of ground water conditions and landfill 
gas migration, and general site maintenance. At August 31, 2011, a liability for closure and postclosure 
care costs is recorded in the amount of approximately $4,258.000, which is based on appropriations 
identified in the City's capital improvement projects budgeting process. Additional corrective action costs 
related to possible landfill gas migration and groundwater conditions may be identified once testing is 
completed and the state regulatory agency has issued a final determination. These additional potential 
costs cannot be reasonably estimated and thus no liability has been accrued as of August 31, 2011. 
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(19) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Lincoln Water System and Lincoln Wastewater 
System to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it is practicable to 
estimate that value: 

Cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable - The carrying amount approximates fair value because 
of the short maturity of these instruments. 

Long-term debt - The estimated fair value of the long-term debt is approximately $75,013,000 for the 
Water System and $96,296,000 for the Wastewater System based on borrowing rates currently available as 
of August 31, 2010. 

Investments - The fair values of investments held directly by the funds are based on quoted market prices. 

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant market information and 
information about the financial instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve 
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. 
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. 

(20) SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The City has issued revenue bonds and other debt instruments to finance capital construction and 
acquisitions for both the Urban Development and Public Works/Utilities Departments. The Parking 
Facilities Division of the Urban Development Department operates the City's downtown parking garages 
and is accounted for in the Parking Facilities Fund. The Solid Waste Operations Section of the Public 
WorkslUtilities Department operates the City's solid waste disposal sites, yard waste compo sting facility, 
and re-cycling drop-off program. Summary financial information for these divisions as of and for the year 
ended August 31, 2011, is presented as follows: 
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The City has pledged future revenues derived from the operation of the Lincoln Wastewater System, net of 
operating and maintenance expenses, to repay $100,530,890 in wastewater revenue bonds & loans. 
Proceeds provided financing for improvements to the sanitary sewer system, as well as refunding a $4.5 
million loan to the City from the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality. The debt is payable 
solely from the net earnings of the Wastewater System and are payable through 2032. The total principal 
and interest remaining to be paid on the debt is $122,182,913, with annual payments expected to require 
59.2 percent of net revenues. Principal and interest paid for the current year and net system revenues were 
$6,512,609 and $11,002,406, respectively. 

The City has pledged future revenues derived from the operation of the Lincoln Water System, net of 
operating and maintenance expenses, to repay $106,110,000 in water revenue bonds. Proceeds from the 
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bonds provided financing for improvements to the water supply system, as well as refunding $37.8 million 
of water revenue bonds. The bonds are payable solely from the net earnings of the Water System and are 
payable through 2034. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $89,677,532, 
with annual payments expected to require 62.6 percent of net revenues. Principal and interest paid for the 
current year and net system revenues were $9,501,857 and $15,174,479, respectively. 

The City has pledged future revenues derived from the operation of the Lincoln Electric System, net of 
operating, maintenance and certain power expenses, to repay $654,580,000 in electric revenue bonds. 
Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for construction of additional utility plant, as well as 
refunding certain issues of electric revenue bonds. The bonds are payable solely from the net earnings of 
the Electric System and are payable through 2037. The total Plincipal and interest remaining to be paid on 
the bonds is $951,515,000, with annual payments expected to require 50 percent of net revenues. Principal 
and interest paid for the current year and net system revenues were $45,947,000 and $94,375,000, 
respectively. 

The City has pledged future revenues derived from the operation of the Lincoln Parking System, net of 
operating and maintenance expenses, and amounts, if any, distributed by the State for street purposes to 
repay $26,585,000 in parking revenue bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for construction 
and improvements to the parking system, as well as refunding $5,525,000 of Series 1994A parking 
revenue bonds. The bonds are payable solely from the net earnings of the Parking System and are payable 
through 2031. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $37,673,781, with 
annual payments expected to require 45 percent of net revenues. Principal and interest paid for the current 
year and net system revenues were $1,269,717 and $4,092,010, respectively. 

The City has pledged future revenues derived from the operation of the municipally owned solid waste 
management facilities, net of operating and maintenance expenses, to repay $4,000,000 in solid waste 
management revenue bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for improvements to the solid 
waste facilities. The bonds are payable solely from the net earnings of the Solid Waste System and are 
payable through 2021. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $3,819,887, 
with annual payments expected to require 23 percent of net revenues. Principal and interest paid for the 
current year and net system revenues were $342,425 and $1,242,077, respectively. 

(22) PUBLIC BUILDING COMMISSION 

In 1990, the City and the County of Lancaster, pursuant to state statute, activated a separate governmental 
entity denominated as the Lincoln-Lancaster County Public Building Commission. The purpose of this 
joint venture is to design, acquire, construct, maintain, operate, improve, remodel, remove and reconstruct, 
so long as its corporate existence continues, public buildings, structures, or facilities for use jointly by the 
City and the County. The City and the County each appoint two members to the five-member 
Commission, with the fifth member being appointed by the other four members. All property held or 
acquired by the Commission is held or acquired in the name of the City and the County for use by the 
Commission in its corporate capacity. The Commission's costs of operation and debt service are funded 
through rental payments made by the City and the County based upon their proportionate occupancy of 
such buildings to the extent not covered by a maximum property tax levy of 1.7 cents for each $100 of 
actual valuation of taxable property in the County. For the year ended August 31, 2011, the City made 
rental payments of approximately $2.8 million to the Commission. 

As of August 31, 2011, the Commission has bonds outstanding of $41 ,240,000 attributable to several bond 
issues. Certain proceeds from the bonds totaling $28,945,000 have been utilized by the Commission to 
acquire, construct, and/or renovate celtain buildings occupied by the City and County. The City's 
proportionate share of such buildings are recorded as capital assets and the corresponding debt are 
reflected as capital leases in the City's financial statements. Lease payments are not recorded as capital 
lease payments in the Debt Service funds but rather are recorded as current expenditures in the various 
individual funds. 
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Additional bond proceeds, totaling $29,000,000, have been utilized by the Commission to construct a new 
County-City building and to renovate the prior County-City building to be used as a Hall of Justice. It is 
anticipated that property tax levies by the Commission will be sufficient to meet bond principal and 
interest payments. Should revenues from such property tax levies not be sufficient to meet debt service 
requirements in any given year, the City and County would contribute the necessary payments based on 
their proportionate occupancy in such buildings. Such contributions are expected to be minimal and will 
be expensed in the appropriate funds when incurred. The City's proportionate share of the buildings has 
been recorded in capital assets in accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement regarding the 
ultimate transfer of assets to the City and County. 

Complete separate financial statements for the Commission may be obtained at the Lincoln-Lancaster 
County Public Building Commission, 920 "0" Street, Room 203, Lincoln, Nebraska 68508. 

(23) JOINT ANTELOPE V ALLEY AUTHORITY 

Joint Antelope Valley Authority is a joint administrative entity created April 15, 2000, in accordance with 
Article XV, Section 18 of the Constitution of the State of Nebraska and Nebraska Revenue Statutes 
Sections 13.801 through 13.827 (1997) authorizing the creation of a joint entity by public agencies. Per an 
interlocal cooperative agreement by and between the Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska, a 
public body corporate, the City of Lincoln, Nebraska, a municipal corporation, and the Lower Platte South 
Natural Resources District, a political subdivision of the State of Nebraska, this joint administrative entity 
was created to be known as Joint Antelope Valley Authority (JAVA). JA V A constitutes a separate 
administrative entity, exercising the public power granted by the interlocal cooperation agreement on 
behalf of the three aforementioned "Partners" to coordinate planning and implementation of a public 
project described in the Antelope Valley Study and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Antelope Creek 
Feasibility Study (the Project). The Project generally includes community revitalization, transportation, 
and drainage/flood control improvements. 

After completion of a specific component of the Project, JA V A will transfer all real estate and 
improvements thereon to the appropriate individual Partner, subject to the necessary and agreed upon 
easements which will be conveyed to such Partner or other appropriate public or private entity, or reserved 
by such a Partner, for the operation, maintenance, repair, and inspection of each specific component. 

During the implementation period of the agreement, JAVA shall have the power and authority to acquire 
and condemn property rights, borrow, mortgage, pledge, or secure loans and bond its appropriated 
revenues and assets; provided, however, that JAVA shall have no power and authority to bond the credit or 
revenues of the three Partners or each Partner, or levy taxes. 

For the year ended August 31, 2011, total assets of JAVA reached approximately $189 million, an increase 
of$7 million from the prior year. The City's equity interest increased by approximately $6 million to $159 
million. 

Complete separate financial statements for JAVA may be obtained at the City of Lincoln Public Works 
Business Office, 555 South loth Street, Lincoln, Nebraska 68508. 

(24) JOINTL Y GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS 

District Energy Corporation 

LES, in conjunction with two other governmental entities, created the District Energy Corporation (DEC) 
in 1989 to own, operate, maintain, and finance the heating and cooling facilities utilized by certain city, 
county, and state buildings. The Board of Directors of DEC is comprised of five members: two appointed 
by the County Board of Commissioners, two by the Mayor of Lincoln who must be confirmed by the City 
Council, and one by LES. No participant has any obligation, entitlement, or residual interest. 
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The DEC Board of Directors, under a management agreement, has appointed LES to supervise and manage 
the system and business affairs of DEC. LES is reimbursed for these management services based on the 
allocated actual costs of these services. LES also provides electric energy to DEC at an established rate 
schedule. The total amount of payments to LES for management, operations, and maintenance services 
was approximately $574,000 in 2010. The increase is due to management of the new SW 40th Thermal 
Energy System plant construction. The total amount of payments to LES for energy was approximately 
$95,000 in 2010. 

Nebraska Utility Corporation 

On May 17,2001, LES, in conjunction with another govemmental entity, created the Nebraska Utility 
Corporation (NUCorp) to purchase, lease, construct, and finance facilities and acquire services in order to 
fumish energy requirements, utility and infrastructure facilities, and all related energy, utility, and 
infrastructure services to counties, cities, villages, school districts, sanitary and improvement districts, or 
other municipal corporations or political subdivisions of the State of Nebraska or political subdivisions of 
another state. The Board of Directors of NUCorp is comprised of five members: three members appointed 
by the University of Nebraska and two members appointed by LES. No participant has any obligation, 
entitlement, or residual interest. 

Operations commenced in January 2002. The NUCorp board of directors, under a twenty-year 
management agreement, appointed LES to supervise and manage the system and business affairs of 
NUCorp. LES is reimbursed for these management services based on the allocated actual costs of these 
services. LES also provides electric energy to NUCorp on an established rate schedule. The total payment 
to LES for management, operations, and maintenance services was approximately $120,000 in 2010. The 
total amount of payments to LES for energy was approximately $11 million in 2010. 

(25) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In November 2011, the City issued $4,600,000 in Certificates of Participation, Series 2011B, to provide 
funds for the acquisition of street lights, computer software, and construction and equipping a new golf 
clubhouse. Interest rates range from 2.000 to 2.625 percent and the final maturity is September 2021. 
Debt service principal payments are scheduled annually at amounts that range from $350,000 to $605,000. 

Also in November 2011, the City issued $3,000,000 of General Obligation Special Assessment Revolving 
Fund Bonds, Series 2011B, to provide funds to maintain and replenish the Special Assessment Revolving 
Fund for the purpose of paying the costs of improvements. The interest rates on the bonds range from 
2.000 to 3.500 percent and the final maturity is August 2031. Debt service principal payments are 
scheduled annually at amounts that range from $120,000 to $200,000. 

70 



Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

August 31, 2011 S 
August 31. 2010 

August 31 , 2009 

August 31, 2008 

Au !,'1lst 31, 2007 

August 31,2006 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

September I. 2009 $ 
September I. 2007 

Actuarial 

Value of 

Assets 
(a) 

165,436 

172,317 

177,526 

179,390 

171,264 
157,527 

CITY OF LINCOLN, NEBRASKA 
Required Supplementary Information 

August 31,2011 

Schedule of Funding Progress for PFDP Pension 
(dollar amounts in thousands) 

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded 
Liability (AAL) AAL Funded 
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'0 

195,206 22,889 88.3 
187,292 9,766 94.8 

179,376 (4) 100.0 
169,587 (1,677) 101.0 
16L583 4,056 97.5 

Schedule of Employer Contributions for PImp Pension 
(dollar amounts in thousands) 

Year Annual Annual 
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Schedule of Funding Progress for City OPEB 
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BOOK ENTRY SYSTEM 

The Depository Trust Company, New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The 
Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership 
nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully­
registered Bond will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of 
such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the 
New York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a 
member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York 
Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 A 
of the Bonds Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues 
of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from 
over 100 countries) that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also 
facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in 
deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct 
Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct 
Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. Bonds brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust 
& Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities 
Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing 
agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also 
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, 
and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, 
either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. 
The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will 
receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each 
Bond ("Beneficial Owner") is in tum to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. 
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners 
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as 
periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial 
Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished 
by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. 
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in 
the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. ' 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in 
the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of 
Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no 
knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the 
Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which mayor may not be the Beneficial 
Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their 
holdings on behalf oftheir customers. 
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Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in 
effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the 
transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, 
tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of 
Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and 
transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their 
names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices will be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being redeemed, 
DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to 
be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date. The 
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose 
accounts Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or 
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to 
credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information 
from the City, or the Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown 
on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing 
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with Bonds held for the accounts of customers in 
bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of 
DTC nor its nominee, the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect 
from time to time. 

Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the City or 
the Paying Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, 
and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and 
Indirect Participants. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to the City or the Paying Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that 
a successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

The City decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a 
successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from 
DTC, and neither the City nor the Underwriter takes responsibility for the accuracy thereof, and neither 
the DTC Participants nor the Beneficial Owners should rely on the foregoing information with respect to 
such matters but should instead confirm the same with DTC or the DTC Participants, as the case may be. 
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